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CORDPORATE PROFILE

China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the
“Company”) is a subsidiary of COFCO Corporation /NS %
(“COFCQ") and listed on the main board of Mg%

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited R R
O INT ] =1% NS
(Stock Code: 506). The primary business of the PERMARAR ([PERM] % [ ARA])

SPREEARAR ([TFEEE]) HEA
Al WEBRBH AR ZAARARER LT (X
ERHF:506) - ANAREREBBIEHKE B
B BERMEKERR AARHINREE
BREEE RBE XRNEERM ALRFR
RHERES BRI MGmE f1in =5
AR [REM ] BRRMAm (%] IhRh
K TEFRE | BEEE - FRR DR ZAREF
BB B AARBARMMEETOR]
LEARDIEREYL

Company includes beverage, wine, kitchen food
and confectionery. The Company is committed
to providing consumers with nutritious, healthy,
delicious and quality food. Currently, the
Company’s product portfolio includes a number
of well-known brands, such as “Greatwall” wine,
“t&8ERF9" consumer-pack edible oil, “Le conté”
chocolate and “&A 2" Shaoxing rice wine. As a
strategic partner of The Coca-Cola Company in
China, the Company also bottles and distributes

Coca-Cola beverages.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

LIF518%
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2013
20 (5P EELAF—F

Design diagram
of Ningxia winery
plant and grape

January —F

L . o base
Ningxia winery which has distinctive .
. - 5T R R B
western region characteristics was - e
: B REHE

under construction.

B AT HE o0 B EEE R
e .

March =H

Classic series of Greatwall wine and Lohas
Peach Yogurt lactobacillus juice drinks were
e - — sssesss/ laUnched.

RRAEELART - SR EHRUBILE
BTG IER £ ©

Greatwall wine ranked first in terms of
market share amongst products of the same
category in the “2012 (the 21st) China
Retail Consumption Statistical Analysis”,
maintaining its leading position in the market
for ten consecutive years (2003-2012).

’aﬂ A [2012 FE (%\21@) FEmSEmEESR

gttt ;i % 5 48 S5 5120125
ENES2 HESTEGAGERE N REE &
(2003-2012) & 51| FIHEE ST B & 16 5 %
B -
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2013 20135 HERmAE—&

RN

April 73

Chateau Sungod Greatwall sponsored the Boao Forum for the
fifth time and became the sole designated wine brand of Boao
Forum for Asia in 2013 and served as the PRC
representative to treat important political and business
elites from all over the world.

ERKRTEHRAELEETFBEIMNRE  KAE
013FFEHE—HEFEE  KRPERFRAMY
REBRRENEFIGE -

May 1 H

Chateau Sungod Greatwall Special Selection
Cabernet Sauvignon was awarded Brussels Gold
Medal. Greatwall Terroir Yantai Winery — Longshan
Valley Classic Cabernet Dry Red was awarded Silver |

Medal by Decanter World Wine Awards.

REKTERFREERERTARENEEZRT
R REABAEESER « BEILILAKHE T
THRE (mER) BFRFFEERE -

WOR LD WINE
ARARDS Jo

e

July £58

Greatwall Yantai Winery commenced the establishment and application
demonstration project of grapes and wine production information security system
in July, and similar projects had been launched by other wineries.

RPBEEZES IR AF Lt AR ERBBESAEEEEERERLLER
SR AEA TSR - AMERITEEERRRBTIR -

4?‘_-‘- s e r =
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2013 2013 HEIRmAE—58

August /\ 5

Greatwall wine won various important awards including the Hua
Zun Cup “The Most Innovative Chinese Wine Brand” and the
“Top 10 Most Competitive Chinese Liquor and Wine Brand”, and
won “No. 1 Brand Value in the Grape Wine Category” for five
consecutive years.

@ hREERN [FEEEEKAEM I miE]  [HEE
B AmERAEENEF IME] WERSAFEY [TEEE
EmEEES B ] KRB -

September 71H

Chateau Sungod Greatwall completed its
“quality and quantity improvement” project.
Chateau Sungod Greatwall represents
China’s most high-end winery image,
and has launched to run an experiential
marketing campaign for promoting Chateau
Sungod Greatwall wines.

RUETHERREEERBTHK - KXP
B&=mEETR  HBRTELERR
AHERR -

October TH

The bottling plant of COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Co. Ltd. located in Hebei commenced
operation.

RA QAR
BR 23 ) 4 3 B B
P ERBE -

November +—A

Greatwall wine was awarded “Top China

Brand Power Index (C-BPI) Brand of the
Chinese Wine Industry” for three consecutive
years.

BB EREEES = FEY [hERE
BEBITRC-BPIRENE—F | KBRS -

-

.
: .
ikt &

BLLLET 2]

Wl R A e

e AR R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
3Reuty

Enhancing its core
competitiveness of
branded consumer goods and
developing its large-scale sales
and distribution platform
FIEmiR R E m =58
BOBFEN R
ERRERSARE
HEXEHE

FHEE YU XUBO

F /& Chairman

6 ‘ CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2013, the Company’s operations were significantly affected by
external and internal challenges and changes and as a result, our
operating results were disappointing. On behalf of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), | would like to express our
sincere appreciation for your understanding and support.

In 2014, all members of the Board will endeavour to reinforce
management’s efforts to improve corporate governance and business
operations, strengthen product development and innovation,
enhance product competitiveness, optimize product portfolios,
rebuild and enhance brand image, reinforce strategic partnerships
with our distributors, and extend the coverage of our sales and
distribution network. Our mission is that by offering more quality
products which are safe, nutritious and healthy, we can expand our
market share and improve business performance.

China Foods as a large-scale downstream sales and distribution
platform of COFCO, we have quality assurance processes in place for
all products along the entire value chain. Our brands are favored and
relied upon by consumers. Looking forward, COFCO will continue to
support the business development of China Foods in enhancing its
core competitiveness of branded consumer goods and developing
its large-scale sales and distribution platform, with an aim to expand
the branded consumer food business in the future.

| believe, with the joint efforts of the Board and our management,

China Foods can outperform the market, deliver better results and
create greater value for our shareholders.

YU Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE R4

BOREMRBIR -

20134 - RIMNEBIRIME LA R RIEETK
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR
2 3B BB U G

Continue to promote the
“Secondary Entrepreneurial
Culture” and
take decisive steps to
improve internal management
and operations.
RALE B BNT | ZIRBIZE] 518
A E—FIRMEEEEN
RIESHRIE -

JIE < JIANG GUOJIN
Managing Director
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR E 54 &1 3 &

Dear Shareholders,

2013 REVIEW

BOREMRBIR -

2013 FEIEE

In 2013, China Foods faced the most significant challenges we
ever had. The slowing domestic macroeconomic environment,
and intense industry competition, led to a deteriorating business
environment for certain key businesses of China Foods and
its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”). With the impact of
government controls over its spending and restriction on alcoholic
consumption at official functions, official spending and banquet
expenditures declined. Slowing domestic growth had a significant
impact on middle-to high-end catering in general, and the overall
wine industry was under pressure. These factors together with the
impact of short-term disruption arising from internal restructuring of
the Group, resulted in a disappointing operational performance.

During the second half of 2013, the Company took a number of
initiatives to enhance our competitiveness and improve operations.
Firstly, we made changes to our organizational structure and
reduced the number of management layers in order to shorten
decision-making processes, enhance response time and efficiency of
our business operations. Secondly, we promoted an internal culture,
namely ‘Secondary Entrepreneurial Culture’, which will strengthen
internal management, improve team execution and organizational
effectiveness, with an aim to raise sales revenues, save costs and
enhance expense efficiency. Thirdly, we optimized performance
assessment and incentive schemes so as to promote team
enthusiasm and aggressiveness, and stimulate job commitment and
enhance creativity.

20134 - HEIR ME R T AT AT KRB KBk
B XEALBKERL  TEARRFE
BERFE  FERBLEMBAR (F5HE
[REE]) BETETEERBNLEHREN
BRE - N RBUFEIE = 2B B MRE
SBRYE  RBHEZRERSPED P
B EREENEBRETE - SHEEY
EBTESRENFEEX - BUtRE - &
RAEEANI R EMEEREIESRE -
SMNARMBINGBEEXETAKE -

EE AIMNRIB AL PRE, - RABE T FR
7T REHER : (1) AREMRE - B
LERER BEAKRE BREWHER
FEREMERBEEWE : (2) BB [ ZRAY
%1 ANMBRIEXE - ss{cAEERE -
R E BT H AR - B1TRIRE
o BEAIERE : (3) BALRF BB - B
BHERGFRISTEDUEN - 28 TERA
MBI -
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR E 54 &1 3 &

2014 PROSPECTS

In 2014, we expect the macroeconomic environment will be slightly
better in spite of the intensifying competition in the industry. As
opportunities and challenges often co-exist, China Foods will strive
for a breakthrough amidst the competition, which will be the primary
goal of the entire team.

We will continue to promote the ‘Secondary Entrepreneurial Culture’
and take decisive steps to improve internal management and
operations. On the basis of the completed organizational structure of
2013, we will further streamline the structure of headquarters and
allocate more resources at the front line. Process re-engineering will
be implemented for the sake of boosting market responsiveness and
improving operational efficiency.

We will analyze the market trends accurately for in-depth
understanding and form a more specific strategy based on these
trends, with a view to fully explore the competitive edge of each
major product category and increase market competitiveness. By
focusing on customers’ preference, we aim to strengthen product
development and innovation, improve product competitiveness,
optimize product portfolios. As a result, the gross margins are
expected to improve. ‘Value Chain and Good Products’ will continue
to be the core value in our brand building, and brand promotion

1 O | CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
TERRARAR —E-=FH
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR E 54 &1 3 &

efforts will be strengthened to enhance brand value and boost sales.
We will continue to strengthen our downstream sales and distribution
platform and improve our coverage in third-tier and fourth-tier cities
in China. We will achieve a ‘win-win’ situation in which we work
closely with our downstream distributors, and develop healthy and
stable relationships with them so that our entire value chain can
share the fruits of improved results.

We believe, with the implementation of a number of improvement
measures outlined above, China Foods will enter a healthy and a
new stage of business development. On behalf of the Company,
| would like to thank our shareholders for their confidence in the
management team and their encouragement. | would also like to
thank our business partners for their understanding and support
and express my heartfelt gratitude to each of our staff for their
unremitting efforts. Let us join hands to take on the new journey of
China Foods!

Jiang Guojin
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TARRGH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & EmmT

2013 was a difficult year for the Group. The slowing domestic
macroeconomic environment, and intense industry competition, led
to a deteriorating business environment for certain key businesses of
the Group. With the impact of government controls over its spending
and restriction on alcoholic consumption at official functions, official
spending and banquet expenditures declined. Slowing domestic
growth had a significant impact on middle-to high-end catering in
general, and the overall wine industry was under pressure. These
factors together with the impact of short-term disruption arising
from internal restructuring of the Group, resulted in a disappointing
financial and operational performance.

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the
“Year”) compared with 2012 were:

° Our Revenue has decreased by 15.1% to HK$26,218 million.

° Our EBITDAA has decreased by HK$1,011.4 million to
HK$270.3 million.

o Our Operating Loss* was HK$467 million for the year, while
our Operating Profit* amounted to HK$707 million for the
previous year 2012.

° Our Net Loss attributable to Owners of the Parent was HK$890
million for the year, while our Net Profit attributable to Owners
of the Parent amounted to HK$382 million for the previous
year 2012.

Reference is made to the profit warning announcement dated 3
August 2013 issued by the Company in which, among other things,
it was stated that the reduction in the Group’s profitability raised the
question as to whether there was a need to record an impairment
in certain deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2012 and certain
potential deferred tax assets arising in the first half of 2013. Having
reviewed the situation, the Board concluded that the Group should
recognize an impairment of certain deferred tax assets as at 31
December 2012 of approximately HK$94 million, and not recognize
certain potential deferred tax assets resulting from tax losses arising
during 2013, on the grounds that it appeared unlikely that it will be
possible to utilize the tax losses, that were the basis of the deferred
tax assets, before their expiration.

BEN—FEASERLLEBRHEMLITN
—F - REANZBBERR - ITTERBHS
FEEREE  AREETETIEEBH
EERIRPHRBRE - IH  FBFEIE=Q
HENRBACHRTZE  REHEERER
PEE - PERERCETESRETE -
BURBEFRAATESRENTERXR - [
B R ASE AN EMEENERET
B REXBMABRAEE  EESAX
=z

=z °

AEBEHZ2013F12A31B8EFE (IR
FE) 2 FBEE2012FFE ML -

. ANEFI AR 15.1% & 262.181{57%8
7TE o
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2. 70318 TT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Emif

The Board did not recommend any final dividend for the year.

N EBITDA represents earnings before finance cost, income tax
expense, depreciation, amortization of other intangible assets,
recognition of prepaid land premiums, impairment related to
goodwill, available-for-sale investments, items of property, plant
and equipment and receivables, provision against inventories
and share of profits of associates.

Operating Profit (Loss) of the Group represents the aggregation
of segment results less corporate and other unallocated
expenses.

Facing severe challenges, China Food’s management took a number
of measures in the second half of 2013 to improve operational and
financial performance. These included adjusting the organizational
structure and strengthening internal management, with emphasis on
raising revenues, reducing expenditure and enhancing efficiencies.

In 2014, the Group will follow the management philosophy
of “delegation of authority, comprehensive supervision and
collaboration to operate an efficient management system”. In terms
of management, an appropriate degree of delegation of authority
will be permitted to enhance responsiveness to market conditions;
monitoring will be strengthened to manage risk effectively; the
Group’s organization structure will be optimized in order to create
synergy between product category management and the distribution
regions; performance assessment will be strengthened to enhance
execution capability; in terms of operation, product innovation
and product competitiveness will be enhanced; channel planning
will be optimized to further improve channel penetration; strategic
partnerships will be established to help improve sales; logistics
efficiency will be improved; and centralized marketing management
will be set up to enhance the reputation of our brands.

By implementing the above initiatives, the Group is confident that
the 2014 revenue and result will show improvement over the 2013
performance but it is expected that the Group will continue to record
a loss in 2014.

14 ‘ CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 BT

BEVERAGE BUSINESS EESE 38
Business Overview EXKEN

e The beverage business of the Company is primarily carried e  ARFMAHEBEEZEBEED

out by COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL"), a A RBIEVERIHE &SR RIFIER
joint venture established by the Company and The Coca-Cola AR BR AR ([HFAT]) 2R

Company, in which the Company holds a 65% interest. & B RRAEEH 65% i o

o CCBL has the exclusive right to manufacture, market and . AR AEKRZE UL itf?? -1

distribute Coca-Cola products in 15 provinces, municipalities ReMm-I@m-B M B8m
and regions including Tianjin, Hebei, Beijing, Shandong, FEE-BHE AR AFH
Hunan, Jiangxi, Guizhou, Hainan, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai, B BRCEX)ISMEE ™ HEH
Tibet, Inner Mongolia, Xinjiang and Guangdong (Zhanmao). AIAA R RT|EmMmMEE - MHEHE
CCBL has minority equity stakes in Coca-Cola bottling Mo EEE - BBASKRAN £
companies located in Guangdong, Zhejiang and Jiangsu. FEER - AT ROTERAT O AT SE 38R b 5

FA B

Regional Map of CCBL's CoCa-Cola
Franchised Sales and Distribution
Territories in China

EPTH R Z AR O] R E &R R

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 1 5
TERRARAR —E-=FK



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Emif

Development Strategy BRI

The strategic goal of CCBL is to build a world-class bottling system FRATRIRES B IR R B A RNERERES
and become a recognized first-class employer, business partner, and EHRBEBHOFERS - KARR—IMHE
corporate citizen in every region in which it has operations. To this * - —REBRBHEM—RHEEAR - B
end, we will adopt the following business strategies: It - —EZEITA T HTE5E

Insist on our commitment to food safety and quality;

Continue to improve our product portfolio, grow the sparkling
beverages category, introduce new products with higher
margin, and to increase the enthusiasm of the distributors,
speed up the inventory turnover at point-of-sale, and offer
better margin to distributors for the reinforcement of strategic
relationships;

o Strengthen our relationship with participants in our outlet
delivery partners program and provide support for the growth
of customers through product category management;

° Constantly and effectively control costs and improve efficiency;
and

o Encourage creative concepts and innovative ideas in business
processes, marketing and management systems.

Coke Summer Nickname Poster
i ImE R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Emif

Industry Overview

The beverage market as a whole grew by 11% in 2013 while the
growth rate of bottled water, sports drinks and functional beverages
grew at a rate in excess of 13%. Consumers are increasingly
concerned about nutrition, health and safety. As a result, newly-
introduced juice drinks and ready-to-drink milk tea have begun to
capture market share from products such as sparkling beverages,
traditional juices and tea products.

Annual Results for 2013

In 2013, sales volume of the beverage business was 1% higher
compared with 2012 with stable selling prices. Due to improved
packaging mix, sales revenue increased by 2.5%, a faster rate than
sales volume. Our major products, sparkling beverages and orange
juice drinks, continued to maintain leading positions in the industry.
The overall gross profit margin improved by 2.1 percentage points,
mainly attributable to reduced raw material costs and improved
packaging mix.

Due to increased labor costs and higher sales expenditure caused
by intense market competition, the selling expenses to revenue ratio
increased by 3.1 percentage points over 2012 and as a result, the
segment result to revenue ratio declined by 0.8 percentage point
and segment profit decreased from HK$579 million to HK$496
million.

Outlook

A number of initiatives are underway to address the challenge of
maintaining steady growth — particularly for higher-margin products
— at a time when the growth rate of the industry is slower. In the
sparkling beverages category, we will continue to introduce creative
ways of marketing in order to attract regular consumers. For non-
sparkling beverages, we will continue to introduce new flavours and
develop new products in order to compete for market share and
maintain industry leadership. In order to maintain revenue growth,
we will also continue to improve on-premise channel penetration
and coverage ratio and increase channel marketing expenditures. By
coordinating production planning across CCBL franchises we expect
efficiency improvements across the supply chain which will reduce
unit costs.

2013%F > KBNS EBEREEZRITHE
1% 7%H  BFEK - BERINEEIEREHE
BRITFELIBIAL - BEEBIRBITES
B RBENZE - Qi LHEHMERT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & @17

LEE S

Business Overview EXKEN

WINE BUSINESS

The wine business of the Group is based on its famous
Greatwall brand, which has a fine tradition and has long been
a leader in the market. Various types of wines are produced
from a number of high quality grapes, which include Cabernet
Sauvignon, Merlot, Pinot Noir, Cabernet, Cabenet Franc,
Shiraz for red wines; and Chardonnay, Riesling, Sauvignon
Blanc for white wines. We also produce brandies and sparkling
wines.

The Group offers single varietal wines as well as blended wines
with different grape varieties. The grapes that we use come
from vineyards that are either managed by us or from sources
with whom we have cooperative agreements. Production,
storage and aging, are carried out at our top five wineries
in China, namely, Huaxia Wine Manor in Huaxia, Chateau
Sungod in Shacheng, Chateau Junding in Yantai, Chateau
YunMo in Ningxia and Xinjiang Tianlu winery in Xinjian. There
are also two overseas wineries: Sas du Chateau de Viaud in
France and Vifia Santa Andrea Ltda in Chile.

o ERE E DR
d-N. BFRENE

AEBBERERED  KEEEELA®
MEREESENERSS  MRKE
HBETMISHEEESMA - BEEE
HEHEERRNENNER  BFEES
7x & Tk (Cabernet Sauvignon) 18 i
# (Merlot) + & tb # (Pinot Noir) -
fi# 8 4 (Cabernet) « mEBZK (Cabenet
Franc) * P54z (Shiraz) SEEK WAL E
- LARBEZE (Chardonnay)
B#3% (Riesling) « =482 (Sauvignon
Blanc) EEEAMBEE A - - &
B EEARMM - BT o

AEEEEAEEMBIIES mER
B HPEANBEREAREER
EENBRAFNEEE  MEEE
AIABRFBERAR B - LREEN
EEER R RTIER -
REENETRER  URBEENEER
B IR FTER KT - BSMNR
KB - ABERE - BRENGH
RIAEEE - HhfE S PREE -

Be moved by growing affection, to eternal friendship—to each classical moment.

REIGIERRE) - BOKERRE—BE—2KH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE BT

The Group is the dealer of almost a hundred imported wine REBBEABER RIBIBEEE
brands. The Group offers our customers a wide variety of HBEmE - REBEREBEFPIREZ T
wines at different price levels ranging from daily wines to M BESE B ESZRANEE
quality fine wines for special events. The wines of the Group ZERRSEHANRERLETAE
are sold through distributors with point-of-sale located in such B EERA  EETREKKE-
outlets as specialty shops, supermarkets, on-premise channels AEENEEHEBEHEPETY
and tobacco shops. i EEUEMEE - BM - ERK
fEBITERT o

Development Strategy BRRRE
The Company will systematically improve the competitiveness KRG GRS RATED - METNERE

of its products, brand image and sales channels with strategic BTN - REEFERNOT -
adjustments as follows:

Regions — to enhance marketing by formulating regional
marketing plans;

Channels — to formulate channel planning based on the market
demand by consumers, develop tailored channel marketing
programs, and actively explore new channel opportunities
such as e-commerce;

Distributors — to rationalize regions and channels, and
formulate reasonable sales targets with improved co-operation
terms;

Promotion — to integrate online and offline marketing
resources, formulate promotion programs, and define regions
with distributors; and

Brand - to advocate healthy lifestyles and focus on the
communication of Greatwall brand.

B UG RE - pNoR = - BIE R
$HETE

RERE  NEIEP RERGIER
BHRE BYEHTERRREMSE
AR WREBHRETBESHE
REEH

7B RS - BIE SRR EAMER
B RIEEBR  BUEAIFER

HERKE: BARLEBTERAE—
B R RANESE S LR S
E o HEEEA

iR R - BEREEETN - B
R mEEHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Emif

° Strategy for competing against imported wines — to compete
with imported wines, we will uplift the quality of domestic wines
through improved production techniques so as to enhance
value-for-money. Meanwhile, we stage more marketing
activities such as wine tasting events, winery tours and
showroom visits, and place emphasis on direct communication
with consumers. We will also leverage on COFCQ’s overseas

production bases to develop strategic products, with emphasis

on modern channels and e-commerce channels.

Industry Overview

In 2013, the slowing economy of China had a direct impact on wine
consumption. Data from National Bureau of Statistics shows that
the total consumption of wine in China as of June 2013 decreased
by 8.9% as compared with 2012. With the impact of government
controls over its spending and restriction on alcoholic consumption
at official functions, official spending and banquet expenditures
declined. Slowing domestic growth had a significant impact on
middle- to high-end catering in general, and the overall wine industry
was under pressure. As wine producing countries increased exports
to China, leveraging on price and perceived quality advantages,
imported wine products gained market share. We expect that the
competition will become more intense and will continue to exert
significant pressure on domestic wine companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE BT

Annual Results for 2013

2013 sales volume and revenue were down 48.0% and 52.5%
year-on-year respectively. Due to trading down in product mix,
sales volume for high-price, high-margin products declined and
gross profit margin declined 10.9 percentage points year-on-year.
Operating results turned from a profit of HK$535.7 million to a loss
of HK$454.7 million mainly due to a combination of the substantial
decline in revenue coupled with the fixed costs of sales operations
and management.

Outlook

At the end of 2013, inventory levels of distributors were lower, and
their confidence in the wine business had been restored. We will
give more attention to the mass consumption market. We will also
improve value-for-money through a systematic enhancement of
product quality. Currently, the successful Greatwall Classic Series is
positioned as a wine for daily consumption and family gatherings,
and is priced in the same range as the other mainstream wines. The
company plans to launch a new smaller-sized package, specifically
for family gatherings which will be sold via the mass market
channels. Through marketing activities such as showroom visits,
wine tasting events and winery tours, the Company will strengthen
the direct communication with consumers, so as to achieve the
target of promoting and bringing wines to the dining tables of a
wider range of consumers, and at the same time enhance our
competitiveness in the mass market. As far as distribution channels
are concerned, we will improve the control and monitoring over the
promotional activities at point-of-sale, and improve the cooperation
terms with distributors so as to achieve the revenue growth. Despite
the fact that market conditions will continue to be difficult, the
actions we plan to take will produce an expected recovery of our
wine business in 2014.

2013 F2FEE

2013FHE R A 7 R EF T £48.0%
K 525% : HESBEE  REMNSEEE
miBE T ENEXREF TR I09EED
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KITCHEN FOOD BUSINESS
Business Overview

The Kitchen Food business covers the sale, distribution and
marketing of edible oil, sugar, soy sauce, vinegar, MSG, seasoning
sauce and cereals. Fortune brand is a leading consumer-pack edible
oil brand in China and is ranked number two nationwide in terms of
market share.

Development Strategy

The Company’s strategic objective in the Kitchen Food business is to
maintain the position as a strong player in the market. To this end,
we will purse the following strategies:

Focus on top-tier, high-margin oil types, promote the Fortune
brand name, monitor in-outlet availability and merchandising,
enhance channel penetration, improve market share, and
increase overall gross profit margin by benchmarking with key
competitors so as to improve business performance;

Increase efficiency of the supply chain and reduce operating
costs, control marketing and promotion costs, and enhance
promotional efficiency, improve the efficiency of the workforce,
and reduce administrative expenses.

Industry Overview

In 2013, the growth of small packaged oil slowed down. According
to the data of ACNielsen in December 2013, the overall sales volume
growth rate dropped from 11.4% in 2012 to 2.5%. The commodity
price of bulk oil, our key raw material, continued to fall in general, as
did prices of consumer-pack edible oil. Sales volume of blended oil
and peanut oil fell, soybean oil remained unchanged while the sales
volume growth of sunflower seed oil and corn oil was relatively fast.
The sales trend reflects a growing consumer preference for more
nutritional oil products such as corn oil.

y Gl .
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE BT

Annual Results for 2013

Distributors were cautious in replenishing stocks in an environment
of declining prices because of the risk of being left with over-priced
inventory. As a result of intense competition arising from increased
marketing by our competitors, we recorded a 10% fall in sales
volume, and a 18% decline in revenue in 2013 compared with
2012.

In the second quarter of 2013, we revised the terms in relation
to the purchase of edible oil from upstream suppliers in order to
reduce our inventory holding risk. We also took measures to increase
inventory turnover and improve product mix. As a result, gross profit
margin increased by 1.5 percentage points year-on-year.

Similar to the wine business, the operating loss for the year was
mainly due to the negative operating leverage with declining revenue
and relatively fixed storage, transportation and marketing costs.
Meanwhile we experienced intense market challenges arising from
increased marketing by competitors. With a combination of the
above factors, our kitchen food business continued to record a loss.
Starting from the latter part of 2013, actions were taken to lower
the overall expense-to-sales ratio. Measures implemented included
direct distribution from factories which reduced costs in storage and
delivery, optimized the cost management, and improved the cost-
efficiency ratio. Significant improvement was noted in the second
half of the year as compared with the first half.

Outlook

Looking forward, we will monitor consumer research in order to
enhance our understanding of consumer trends, focus on sales of
top-tier high-margin oil types in cities’ outlets. While at the same
time increasing our penetration of downstream channels in counties
with lower-margin oil types in order to obtain growth. We will also
control sales and distribution networks. With the implementation of
the above, we look forward to an improvement in our performance.
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CONFECTIONERY BUSINESS
Business Overview

The confectionery business covers the development, production,
marketing and distribution of a range of snack foods including
chocolates, candies and nuts. The company operates two brands,
namely Le conté and Merveille.

Development Strategy

The strategic objective of the confectionery business is to become
a major player in the confectionery industry in China and provide
consumers with high quality and delicious confectionery and snack
products. To this end, we will pursue the following strategies:

Continuously pay attention to consumers’ needs and the
competitive market situation, and tailor our products to suit
consumers’ demands;

Continue to adopt the “dual-brand” (Le conté and Merveille)
strategy by aggressively and effectively launching brand
promotion activities, reinforcing communications with
consumers, and improving brand value;

Continue to enhance and improve the productivity and
efficiency of the supply chain, sales management and
distribution to effectively reduce operating and marketing
costs, and improve efficiency and competitiveness; and

Implement “Total Quality Management”, comply with laws and
regulations, and uphold our commitment to safety and quality.

Industry Overview

In 2013, the chocolate industry maintained rapid growth with a
12% growth rate year-on-year and a market size that reached
approximately RMB10 billion in terms of value. The competition
in the industry was intense, with the major brands increasing
their marketing expenditures and spending on media. Meanwhile,
imported chocolates were making inroads into the PRC market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &3 &7

The candy category continued to grow in 2013. However, owing
to the competition from the hard candies, and the reduction
in marketing expenditure, sales in the soft candy subcategory
experienced a drop of 4.6%.

As chocolate and candy confectioneries continue to penetrate into
the second- and third-tier cities and counties, new requirements and
challenges with respect to sales and distribution, warehousing and
logistics systems were experienced.

Annual Results for 2013

Sales volume and revenue declined by 31% and 40.1% year-on-
year respectively, primarily due to increased marketing expenditures
by competitors which we were unable to match, and no new
products were launched. The gross profit margin decreased by 10.7
percentage points as compared with 2012 mainly due to higher
sales discount.

Higher segment losses of HK$223 million were recorded owing to a
number of factors including the substantial decrease in revenue and
higher retailing marketing charges.

Outlook

It is expected that the confectionery industry will remain highly
competitive, and that our business will continue to operate in a
challenging environment. Strenuous efforts are being made to
improve the revenue and profitability for the confectionery business.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Supplemental information of segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 with comparative figures, are set out
below:

Growth of revenue by segment:
— Beverage

— Wine

— Kitchen Food

— Confectionery

— Others

— #hn
B
_HEAR
_KHRS
- Eofts

DEUEEH AL -
- 8

- R

_HEAR
KRS

- Eofts

Segment results to revenue ratio:
— Beverage

— Wine

— Kitchen Food

— Confectionery

— Others

REVENUE

The Group’s total revenue for the year amounted to HK$26,218
million, down by 15.1% from HK$30,878 million in the previous
year 2012. Kitchen Food segment, Wine segment and Confectionery
segment reported negative growth of revenue for the year and their
aggregate contribution to the Group’s total revenue amounted to
55.5% for the year (2012: 63.4%).

The contribution of Beverage segment to the Group’s total revenue
amounted to 43.4% (2012: 36.0%), with -2.3% revenue growth in
the first half of 2013 and 8.4% revenue growth in the second half of
2013 when compared to the corresponding periods in 2012.

The contribution of “Others” segment to the Group’s total revenue
increased given it's low-base comparative number, as this segment
started its cross products sales and distribution of certain food and
beverage products since 2012.
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GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit margin dropped from 21.02% to 20.15%
mainly attributable to the Wine segment and Confectionery segment.

For the Wine segment, its gross profit margin declined 10.9
percentage points year-on-year mainly due to the deterioration in
product mix as a result of industry factors including a decline in
demand for high-end wine following more stringent government’s
controls on official spending, alcoholic consumption restrictions at
official government functions and competition from imported wine
enterprises.

For the Confectionery segment, its gross profit margin declined 10.7
percentage points year-on-year mainly due to higher sales discount.

For the Beverage segment, gross profit margin delivered a year-on-
year improvement of 2.1 percentage points, mainly attributable to
reduced raw material costs and improved packaging mix.

For the Kitchen Food segment, gross profit margin increased by 1.5
percentage points year-on-year, mainly attributable to the new terms
in relation to the purchase of edible oil from upstream suppliers in
order to reduce our inventory holding risk since the second quarter
of 2013 and the measures taken to increase the inventory turnover
and improve the product mix.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES/
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year, mainly due to the effect of negative operating
leverage with declining revenue and relatively fixed storage,
transportation and marketing costs and the intense market
challenges arising from increased marketing by competitors,
the aggregate amount of selling and distribution expenses and
administrative expenses decreased slightly by 1% year-on-year
whereas the Group’s revenue was down by 15.1%.

FINANCE COSTS

Overall finance costs increased by 46.8% which was mainly due
to an increase in outstanding loan balances. The weighted average
borrowing interest rate also increased in general.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates increased by 69.2%, mainly attributable
to an increase in profitability of an associate engaged in the production
of still beverage.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense was up 62.5%, mainly attributable to an
impairment of certain deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2012
and non-recognition of certain potential deferred tax assets arising
during the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Company’s treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic review
by the senior management of the Company. The treasury function
operates as a centralized service for managing financial risks,
including interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, reallocating
surplus financial resources within the Group, procuring cost-efficient
funding and targeting yield enhancement opportunities. The treasury
function regularly and closely monitors its overall cash and debt
positions, proactively reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles
to facilitate timely refinancing, if appropriate.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash
equivalents totalled approximately HK$2,458 million (31 December
2012: approximately HK$1,901 million), and the Group’s net current
assets were approximately HK$1,601 million (31 December 2012:
approximately HK$1,916 million).

During the year, EBITDA has decreased by HK$1,011.4 million to
HK$270.3 million (2012: approximately HK$1,281.7 million), mainly
attributable to the decline in the overall operating profitability of the
Group.

Having considered the expected cash flow from operating activities
according to budget, existing financial resources, gearing and
banking facilities available to the Group and loan repayment
schedules, the management believes that the Group’s financial
resources are sufficient to fund its debt payments, day-to-day
operations and committed capital expenditures.

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. The management is of the view that the overall
downside risk exposure of the Group in relation to exchange rate risk
and interest rate risk is limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Emmif

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the total number of issued shares of the Company
increased by 32,000 shares as certain employees of the Group
exercised their share options granted in 2007. As at 31 December
2013, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
2,797,223,396.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had certain interest-bearing
bank borrowings of approximately HK$4,092.4 million (31 December
2012: approximately HK$2,854.1 million) and other borrowing of
approximately HK$45.2 million (31 December 2012: approximately
HK$246.7 million).

Bank borrowings carried annual interest rates ranging between
0.62% and 6% (31 December 2012: between 0.66% and 6%).
Other borrowing carried an annual interest rate of 5.60% (31
December 2012: 5.04%).

As at 31 December 2013, net assets attributable to owners of the
parent were approximately HK$6,146 million (31 December 2012:
approximately HK$6,805 million) and the net borrowing position
of the Group (unpledged cash and cash equivalents less interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings) was approximately HK$1,680
million (31 December 2012: approximately HK$1,199 million)
and the net gearing ratio (the ratio of net borrowing to net assets
attributable to owners of the parent) was approximately 27.3% (31
December 2012: approximately 17.6%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings of the Group
were secured by charges over certain buildings, land use rights
and time deposits of the Group with aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$324 million (31 December 2012: approximately
HK$325 million).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 17,933 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2012: 17,288).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 Emif

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO scheme
or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as life
insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland China
are provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in
compliance with the requirements of the laws of China. Details of
these benefit schemes are set out in the “Other employee benefits”
under note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies” to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”) was
adopted on 21 November 2006 for a term of ten years for the
purpose of rewarding eligible employees of the Group (including
executive directors and nonexecutive directors of the Company)
based on individual merit.

As at 1 January 2013, a total of 38,375,480 share options of the
Company remained outstanding. During the year, a total of 2,414,080
share options lapsed and a total of 32,000 shares were issued
and allotted by the Company upon the exercises of share options
of the Company. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2013, a total of
35,929,400 share options of the Company remained outstanding.
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DIRECTORS PROFILE

1A 4Gk

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ESEIRENRFHTES

MR. YU XUBO

Mr. Yu, 48, was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) and a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2013. Mr. Yu ceased to be the chairman but
remaining as a director of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited,
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from September
2013. Mr. Yu joined COFCO Corporation in 1988 and is currently
the president of COFCO Corporation and a director of certain
subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation, including COFCO (Hong Kong)
Limited. Currently, Mr. Yu is the chairman and an executive director
of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a vice-chairman and a
non-executive director of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited
and the chairman and a non-executive director of China Modern
Dairy Holdings Ltd., all of which are listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu
was a director of Glory River Holdings Limited, convertible bonds of
which are listed and quoted in Singapore, until May 2013 and the
chairman of COFCO Meat Investment Company Limited until August
2013.

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in economics from University of
International Business and Economics in Beijing and an Executive
Master of Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EEf/

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

MR. JIANG GUOJIN

Mr. Jiang, 46, was appointed as the managing director and an
executive director of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Jiang
joined COFCO Corporation in 1989 and was the general manager
of COFCO Malt (Dalian) Co., Ltd. from December 1995 to August
2000, the general manager of the Malt Division of China Foods
(Beijing) Company from August 2000 to December 2007 and a
deputy general manager of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a
company listed in Hong Kong, as well as the general manager of the
Brewing Materials Division of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited
from December 2007 to July 2008. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Jiang was the general manager of COFCO Meat Investment
Company Limited. Mr. Jiang has extensive experience in food
business and general management with strong performance record.

Mr. Jiang graduated from Beijing Institute of Light Industry (now
Beijing Technology and Business University) with a Bachelor’s degree
in engineering and holds a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School.

MS. WU WENTING

Ms. Wu, 50, joined the Company as a non-executive director in March
2007 and was re-designated as an executive director and appointed
as the deputy general manager and the chief financial officer of the
Company on 10 March 2014. Ms. Wu joined COFCO Corporation in
1992 and was the director of the Audit and Discipline Department of
COFCO Corporation from 2006 to March 2014. Ms. Wu has also held
various positions at the subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation, including
the deputy general manager of the Finance Department of China
Liang Feng Grains Import & Export Company from 1994 to 2000 and
the general manager of the Finance Department of COFCO Oils &
Grains Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2006. Ms. Wu has extensive experience
in financial management and auditing.

Ms. Wu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from Beijing
Technology and Business University and a Master of Arts degree in
professional accounting from Central University of Finance and Economics.
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MR. LU XIAOHUI

Mr. Lu, 36, was appointed as an executive director and the assistant
general manager of the Company in September 2013 and is
currently also the general manager of the audit and supervision
department of the Company. Mr. Lu served as the chief financial
officer of the Company from September 2013 to March 2014. Mr.
Lu joined COFCO Corporation in July 2008 and prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Lu was the deputy general manager of the
Performance Audit Division of the Audit and Supervision Department
of COFCO Corporation and the deputy general manager of the
Finance Department of China Grain and Logistics Corporation.
Prior to joining COFCO Corporation, Mr. Lu worked at Vocation
International CPAs (now known as Baker Tilly International) for
more than six years. Mr. Lu has extensive experience in the area of
accounting and auditing.

Mr. Lu is a senior accountant, a PRC registered accountant and a
PRC registered tax adviser as well as a member of China Institute of
Internal Auditors (authorised by the Institute of Internal Auditors).
He graduated from Tianjin Open University with a college diploma in
Finance and Securities Management, and subsequently graduated
from Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economic.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FHTES

MR. NING GAONING

Mr. Ning, 55, was re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company in November 2013. Mr. Ning was as an executive director
of the Company from January 2005 to November 2013 and the
chairman of the Board from January 2005 to March 2012. Mr.
Ning joined COFCO Corporation in December 2004 and is currently
the chairman of each of COFCO Corporation, COFCO (Hong Kong)
Limited and Top Glory International Holdings Limited, as well as a
director of certain subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation. Currently, Mr.
Ning is a non-executive director of each of China Agri-Industries
Holdings Limited and CPMC Holdings Limited, both of which are
listed in Hong Kong; and the chairman and a non-executive director
of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ning is also an independent non-executive director of
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong;
an independent director of Huayuan Property Co. Ltd, a company
listed in Shanghai; an independent non-executive director of Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited and a director of BOC International
Holdings Limited. Mr. Ning was a director of Smithfield Foods, Inc.,
a company listed in New York, until March 2011. Mr. Ning has
over 20 years of experience in corporate management, investment
and corporate finance, business restructurings and governmental
relations.

Mr. Ning graduated from Shandong University in China with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in economics and from the University
of Pittsburgh in the United States with a Master of Business
Administration degree in finance.
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MR. CHI JINGTAO

Mr. Chi, 51, was re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2013. Mr. Chi was appointed as an executive
director and the executive vice-chairman of the Board in February
2011 and served as the chairman of the Board from March 2012 to
March 2013. Mr. Chi joined COFCO Corporation in August 2003 and
is currently a vice president of COFCO Corporation and a director
of certain subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation. Currently, Mr. Chi is
the general manager of China Grain and Logistics Corporation. Mr.
Chi was an independent director of China Hainan Rubber Industry
Group Co., Ltd, a company listed in Shanghai until November 2013
and a non-executive director of China Agri-Industries Holdings
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, from March 2007 to March
2011. Mr. Chi was also the director of human resources department
of COFCO Corporation from October 2004 to February 2011. Prior to
joining COFCO Corporation, Mr. Chi held various positions in China
Minmetals Corporation, including the general manager of Human
Resources Department.

Mr. Chi graduated from the Academy of Armored Forces Engineering
in Beijing with a Bachelor's degree in engineering and holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of International Business and Economics.
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MS. LIU DING

Ms. Liu, 59, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2011. Ms. Liu joined COFCO Corporation in April
2005 and is currently a director and the head of the Communist
Party Discipline and Inspection Team of COFCO Corporation. Ms.
Liu is also a vice-chairwoman and a non-executive director of China
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong.
Ms. Liu was a director of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd., a
company listed in Shenzhen, until July 2011. Prior to joining COFCO
Corporation, Ms. Liu was a deputy director of the Propaganda and
Education Bureau of the Propaganda Department of the Communist
Party of China. Ms. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in
legal affairs, general management, government relations, public
relations, corporate culture development, organization development
and propaganda and education.

Ms. Liu graduated from Beijing Normal University with a Bachelor’s
degree in history and holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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MR. MA JIANPING

Mr. Ma, 50, was re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2008. Mr. Ma was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in March 2007 and served a deputy general
manager of the Company from June 2003 to February 2008. Mr. Ma
joined COFCO Corporation in 1986 and is currently a vice president
and the director of the strategy department of COFCO Corporation
and a director of certain subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation, and the
chairman of COFCO Meat Investment Company Limited. Currently,
Mr. Ma is also a non-executive director of COFCO Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as The Hong Kong Parkview Group Limited)
and a non-executive director of China Mengniu Dairy Company
Limited, both of which are listed in Hong Kong; and a director of
COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen.
Mr. Ma has extensive experience in corporate finance, investment,
strategic planning and management and worked in Japan for over
five years.

Mr. Ma graduated from University of International Business and
Economics in Beijing with a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BAFHITES

MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark , 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in January 2005. Mr. Clark is a joint
managing director of The Anglo Chinese Investment Company,
Limited, the chairman of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and a
member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission, a former director of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute and has served as an alternate member of the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Clark has extensive experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and
history of art from the University of Nottingham in England and a
degree of Master in Business Administration from the University of
Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa.

MR. PAUL KENNETH ETCHELLS

Mr. Etchells , 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Etchells is currently
also an independent non-executive director of each of Samsonite
International S.A. and Swire Properties Limited, both of which are
listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells was employed by The Coca-Cola
Company from July 1998 to June 2010, and worked in the U.S.A.,
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells has held various
positions at The Coca-Cola Company, including the deputy group
president of Pacific Group of The Coca-Cola Company from 2007 to
2010 and the president of China Division of The Coca-Cola Company
from 2002 to 2007. Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr.
Etchells was employed by the Swire Group in Hong Kong from 1976
to 1998.

Mr. Etchells graduated from the University of Leeds in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree in political studies, and is a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company in November 2008. Mr. Li is the chairman of HM
Corporate Advisory Limited. Mr. Li was a director of My Top Home
(China) Holdings Limited, until January 2012 and he was a member
of each of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Listing Committee of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert member of the
Finance Committee of the Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and
an executive director and the chief finance officer of Hang Lung
Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has more
than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and
sociology from The University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.

MR. YUEN TIN FAN, FRANCIS

Mr. Yuen , 61, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 1993. Mr. Yuen is currently also the
non-executive deputy chairman of Pacific Century Regional
Developments Limited, a company listed in Singapore; an
independent non-executive director of Agricultural Bank of China
Limited, a company listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong; and an
independent non-executive director of China Chengxin International
Credit Rating Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yuen was a chief executive of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 1991, a non-executive
director of Kee Shing (Holdings) Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, until November 2010, and an independent non-executive
director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., a company
listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong until June 2013.

Mr. Yuen holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from the
University of Chicago and is currently a member of board of trustees
of the university. Mr. Yuen is also the chairman of the board of
trustees of Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research, a member of
Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference and a member
of the board of trustees of Fudan University in Shanghai.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT ¥4 &5

INTRODUCTION

China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company”) regards
corporate social responsibilities as inherent in the sustainable
development of our business and the society to which we belong.
We fulfill our corporate mission and responsibilities by “offering
nutritious, healthy, delicious and quality foods and seek to realize
maximum value for our customers, shareholders and employees”.

This report summarizes the various social responsibility programs
across four important domains food safety, environmental protection,
personnel development and social welfare of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) in 2013. This report will help
readers understand our practices efforts, and improvements the
Group has undertaken during the year.

FOOD SAFETY

Based on the Plan-Do-Check-Act (PDCA) Cycle, China Foods’
Supply Chain Management System develops food quality and safety
control system and continually improves our food quality and safety
management standards.

Plan — Determine objectives and targets and develop
management systems and implementation plans.

In December 2013, China Foods completed the preparation,
issuance and implementation of 23 items of food quality and safety
management systems in accordance with national regulations and
the requirements of parent company COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”").
During the year, there were no incidents or reports of non-
compliance of agricultural based pollution, illegal use of additives, or
quality and integrity issues of the suppliers and factories.

Supply Chain Technical Center
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Do — Promote systems establishment, and implement the
practice of quality assurance systems.

China Foods completed an end-to-end risk analysis and
rationalisation of control measures for four product lines including
beverage, wine, edible oil and chocolate. An employee performance
linked end-to-end quality and safety responsibilty system
participated by all employees was implemented.

Check — A three-tiered quality system is in place which
includes audits by third-party certification bodies,
inspected by COFCO, and self-inspected and inspected by
China Foods. By identifying weaknesses in the food safety
management cycle, we can implement timely rectification
measures.

The internationally renowned DNV (Det Norske Veritas) and SGS
(SGS-CSTC Standards Technical Services Co., Ltd.) were selected
as the third-party certification and auditing bodies for the quality
management system (ISO9001) and the food safety management
system (1SO22000). Framework agreements were signed for
certification work to commence in order to ensure the adoption of
internationally accepted standards by the Company.

In 2013, 18 factories of China Foods passed the DNV or SGS
inspection audits on quality management system (1ISO9001)
and food safety management system (1ISO22000).

In 2013, external spot checks on product quality indicated
100% satisfaction. No product quality non-conformances or
integrity issues were noted.

Action — Take corrective actions and make continuous
improvements.

In order to improve quality and safety management systems, to build
a long-term mechanism for food safety management, and to promote
the continuous improvements of food quality and safety inspection
and testing capabilities were uplifted and supply chain sources and
process controls were strengthened.
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In 2013, China Foods’ complaint handling mechanism was
further improved. In addition to the 24-hour countrywide hot line-
4008506506 which is open to the public, a common processing
platform was established for the collaboration of customer service,
public relations and frontline staff, so as to build the first firewall for
China Foods’ food quality crisis management. Complaints are now
handled within two hours after receipt and contact with consumers
and/or customers established within four hours. After reviewing each
quality complaint, comprehensive analysis is conducted and specific
improvements implemented. The alert and emergency management
has operated effectively. Practice recall exercises are carried out
regularly and quality information traceability systems were evaluated
to ensure that the consumers’ expectations are known by the
Company and that the consumers’ interests are protected. During
2013, there were no major incidents of product safety or customer
complaints.

External Recognition

o The Fortune Brand edible oil was awarded a quality product
gold medal in the 2013 China (Beijing) National Edible Oil
Industry Expo.

The Greatwall Wine Huaxia Winery received the honorary title
of “National Green Foods Model Enterprise” from China Green
Food Assaociation.

COFCO Coca-cola Beverage (China) Investment Limited won
the honorary title of “Excellent Enterprises in Ten years of
China’s Beverage Industry” at the China Beverage Industry
Association Annual Awards Ceremony.

China Foods received the “2013 China Food Safety Annual
Meeting’'s 100 Most Trustworthy Model Enterprises” award.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Energy Conservation and Pollution Reduction

Greatwall Huaxia winery passed an external audit of its environmental
management system and recycled 100% of solid wastes in September
2013. Greatwall Yantai winery’s effective treatment of waste water,
waste gas and noise pollution resulted in the SGS certification of its
Environmental Management System. A 100% satisfaction rate was
achieved and energy-saving technologies, processes, equipment
and materials were actively promoted. In 2013, RMB2.4 million
was invested in strengthening environmental management systems
in order to reduce pollutant emissions. Centrifugal separators was
installed to replace traditional filtration processes to reduce pollutant
emissions. Greatwall Wine Shacheng Plant obtained the ISO14001
system certification, and invested RMB2 million in the expansion of
the Sungod sewage station.

Centrifugal Separator installed in

Yantai Winery

“QL”ILE\ B ,\.E
SGS Certificate of 1% & TRREVEE

Yantai Winery
1E & Tk SGS R

By the end of 2013, the overall energy consumption as compared
to the output value of the Beverage Business Unit was 0.0289 tons
of standard coal equivalent/RMB10,000, a 20.88% reduction year
on year. The emission of all pollutants was in line with industry
standards with total discharge of 62.25 tons of COD representing
a 25.98% reduction as compared to last year. Total SO2 emissions
were 3.13 tons, a 84.78% reduction year-on-year. In 2013, twelve
factories are certified by ISO14001 and there were no incidents of
environmental pollution. In 2013, 17 energy conservation programs
were launched, including Real Time Energy Information Collection
System, Steam Flow Metering, resulting in an annual cost savings of
RMB1.96 million.
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The discharge of waste water by the Le conté plant in 2013 was
100%. The hazardous solid wastes arising from production in the
plant were handed over to Shenzhen Hazardous Waste Treatment
Station Co. Ltd. regularly for paid treatments. During the year, 100%
of hazardous wastes were transferred and treated, and the Plant
actively participated in carbon emission trading in Shengzhen, and
became the second group of pilot enterprises in Shenzhen’s carbon
emission trading. The total carbon emissions of the Company in
2013 were reduced by 2,820 tons, which is equivalent to a profit
of RMB169,200 according to the current carbon market price in
Shenzhen.

Reducing Consumables through Product Research and
Development

Two important changes resulted from research conducted on
replacing glue on labeling material with adhesive stickers: package
designs were adjusted according to the special characteristics
of adhesive stickers which improved product aesthetics, and
productivity was enhanced as the large volume of pollutants needed
to clean glue residue was eliminated. Adhesive materials are now
being used for chateau wines, “Greatwall Terroir” series, classical
series and some of the traditional Greatwall series. Environmentally-
friendly wine packaging materials are also now used. The original
wood packaging was replaced with medium-density fibreboard
(MDF), an environmentally-friendly wood pulp recycled paper.
Research and development identified polyethylene terephthalate
(PET) as an alternative packaging material, which is now being used
for “Greatwall Chateau Sungod” series of wines.

External Recognition

° In January 2013, Shandong plant of the Beverage Business
Unit was honored as the “Environmental Friendly Enterprise in
Qingdao”.

In February 2013, Xinjiang plant of the Beverage Business
Unit was honored as the “Progressive Enterprise in
Construction of Water-saving Urumgi”.

In March 2013, the Water Authority of Fangshan District,
Beijing held a “World Water Day and Water-saving Enterprises
Commendation” event, and the Beijing bottling plant of
Beverage Business Unit was honored as the “Outstanding
Water-saving Enterprise” in May 2013.
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In October 2013, the Gansu bottling plant of Beverage
Business Unit was honored as the “2012 Progressive
Enterprise in Industrial Water-saving”.

In November 2013, bottling plants of Beverage Business
Unit in Hainan, Zhanjiang, Shandong, Tianjin, and Hunan
were honored as the “2013 Outstanding Enterprise of Energy
Conservation in Chinese Beverage Industry”.

For the third consecutive year, the “Le conté” plant was
honored as “Enterprise of Clean Production in Guangdong”,
and for the fifth consecutive year, was honored as “Enterprise
of Clean Production in Shenzhen”.
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Certificate of 2013 Enterprise of Clean

Production in Guangdong
2013 FERABFREERE

The Le conté plant was honored as the “Top 100 Demonstration
Projects in 4 Aspects of Informatization and Industrialization
integration in Guangdong” in 2013, and was honored as the
“Progressive Enterprise in Pengcheng Waste Reduction” by
Human Settlements and Environment Commission of Shenzhen
Municipality for the third consecutive year.

STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Staff Training

A total of 369,000 hours of training were provided to the staff
of China Foods. Training time per staff was approximately 18
hours.

A total of 1,266 management staff received training on
leadership skills including operation management, team
management, and personal management.

Four sessions of professional and technical training on supply
chain were conducted and approximately 120 person-time of
employees completed training on quality and safety, statistical
process control and 5S (scene management of food).
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China Foods Business School Training

FRIRME

A series of internal training classes including “Winning
Workplace”, “OFFICE series”, “Brand Series” were offered to
all staff and 410 person-time of employees were trained.

Train-the-trainer sales training classes were launched. The
training enables participants to train the other staff and
eventually all employees including the shop assistants. The
training classes included “Sales Technique FAB”, “Wine
Knowledge”, and “Images of Successful Channels”. There
were a total of 78 person-time of trainers participated training
classes.

Staff Development and Motivation

An employee career development path program was
introduced and provides a Y-type dual path of managerial and
professional development for the employees. Employment
qualification standards were also established for employee
promotion and career development purposes. Organizational
and personnel performance assessments were conducted and
successor personnel for 150 key positions were identified.

Employees’ skills and talents were managed by categories:
promotions, salary adjustments, job transfers, and training and
development plans were provided accordingly. Internal talent
selection was conducted according to the Company’s business
development plans with a view of preparing a broader platform
for employee development.

Different long-term incentive schemes were introduced,
including share options and an equity-linked reward program,
that reward and recognize employee contributions.
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Annual awards such as “Person of the Year” and “Top 10
Touching Characters” were set up for the selection, recognition
and reward to individuals or teams for their extra efforts,
brilliant performance and outstanding achievements.

Staff Care

In 2013, an inter-departmental communication event was organized
by China Foods at its headquarters. Teams of at least 30 members
from at least two primary departments helped to lay a solid
foundation for close collaboration in the future.

In the area of employees’ occupational health and safety, the
Company formulated relevant systems and workflows. Specifically,
it identified detailed management responsibilities, initiated pre-
employment training and targeted training, arranged periodic
occupational health checks, performed regular safety checks with
timely rectification, and performed regular emergency drills to uplift
on-site response capabilities.

In order to build a harmonious and open corporate culture in 2013,
the Human Resources Department organized a series of sessions
for the face-to-face communication between China Foods’ managing
director and the employees. Seven special sessions were held at
headquarters, Beijing, Guangzhou, Xi’an, Shijiazhuang, Shanghai.
During these sessions the managing director listened to and
addressed employee concerns, and employee ideas were raised and
collected.

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

° In April 2013, the “COFCO Relief in Action” Commando
arrived at Ya’an immediately after the earthquake under the
leadership of China Foods’ Western Management Centre. More
than 30 members delivered the first batch of disaster relief
goods to Lushan County, Ya'an and Sichuan that included
with Fortune edible oil, rice, Xangxue flour, noodles, Le conté

Disaster Relief Goods Dispatched to Ya'an
B BIERR
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chocolates and Merveille candies donated by COFCO. On
27 April, COFCO’s companies in Sichuan and China Foods
dispatched 17 trucks and 70 relief team members to transport
disaster relief goods to Baoxing, Mingshan and Tianquan,
bringing along COFCOQO’s concerns and sympathies to the
disaster-stricken people.

In 2013, through China Education Development Foundation,
China Foods offered bursary funds to underprivileged
university students at 15 universities, including Peking

Fortune Bursary Fund Activity
RERFIBNBEEES)

University, Renmin University of China, Foreign Economic
and Trade University, China Agricultural University, Fudan
University, Shandong University, Northeastern University,
Nanjing University, Nanjing Agricultural University, Wuhan
University, Huazhong Agricultural University, Zhongshan
University, Shenzhen University, Sichuan University and Xi'an
Jiaotong University.

During the 2013 Spring Festival, China Foods organized
a thematic welfare event “Fortune brand brings fortune to
your home” to send blessings to employees returning home.
Products of Fortune Brand were distributed to the frontline
subway and cleaning staff to show our gratitude to their
dedication to work.

“COFCO Cares” Activity in Southern China
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On the festive occasions such as Spring Festival and Mid-
Autumn Festival, the Company, with the coordination of our
resident street offices, donated COFCO products including
Fortune edible oil to the socially underprivileged groups such
as families receiving welfare, elderly living alone and families
with disabled members, and laid a solid foundation for the
carrying out of poverty-relief work. It was the fifth time that the
China Foods’ Southern region “COFCO Cares” program for
Shaoguan. Employees visited poor children and elderly living
alone in the poverty-stricken county Wengyuan, Northern
Guangdong with warm solicitude, and organized charitable
activities such as events that helped care for children with
thalassemia.

China Aerospace Industry Promotion Activity

KB AREXED

COFCO Fortune, the only cooperative partner of the China
aerospace industry in the country’s grain and oil industry,
distributed its star product-Golden Origin Corn Qil at the
Xichang Satellite Launch Centre on the occasion of the
Chang’e-3 launch, bringing all the best wishes on-site for
another take-off of China’s aeronautic adventure through
practical actions.

Beach Cleaning Activity

FEED
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The Beverage Business Unit launched a series of public
welfare events about the environmental. In particular, the
bottling plants actively carried out campaigns such as tree
planting, “Earth Hour”, so as to encourage the public’s
awareness of the environment and protection of nature.
By recycling used items, the Beijing bottling plant spread
the ideas of environmental protection among high schools.
Shandong bottling plant organized a number of beach cleaning
activities with employees and local residents.

Employees of the Beverage Business Unit actively participated
in “Walk for Love-One Foundation 2013 Walk”. A total of 3,146
employees participated and raised RMB71,888. The proceeds
will be used for a water purification project undertaken jointly
by Coca-Cola China and One Foundation. The main objective
of the project is to improve the health and development of
the rural youth by implementing water purification programs
and installing safe drinking facilities at rural schools. At the
same time, training classes on the hygiene of drinking water
were conducted to improve the understanding and general
knowledge of hygiene, water drinking and sanitation in order
to achieve sustainable health practices.

With a view to help the career development and advancement
of the unemployed women, the Beverage Business Unit
helped women secure entrepreneurial employment by
providing online and offline business training, support of
dynamic display and micro-financing through its core business
model. In 2013, over 10,000 store owners were helped to
participate in 520 online courses, with an aim to upgrade their
business skills.
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Honorary Recognition

In November 2013, China’s Best
Model Enterprises in Human
Resources Management, China
Foods was awarded the “Best Model

Enterprise of social Responsibilities” =B

by 51job Inc. FEAENELE
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2013 Best Model Enterprises of
Social Responsibilities
2013 HfERFEMEE TR

CONCLUSION

China Foods takes food safety as a key responsibility in creating
value for society. We operate with integrity and in accordance to law,
help promote the development and progress of the community and
actively participate in social welfare activities. During the year, China
Foods made donations to the community totalling approximately
RMB2.1 million in value and had no significant incidents of non-
compliance. Looking forward, China Foods will further promote and
manage corporate and social responsibility efforts and continually
improve our environmental, health and safety performance.
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CORDORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(5 & 2% A

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is committed to achieve
achieving high standards of corporate governance. The board of

directors of the Company (the “Board”) recognizes the importance
of maintaining a good corporate governance standard and practices
for the growth of the Company and for safeguarding the interests of
our shareholders, investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions throughout the year ended 31
December 2013.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiries by the Company, all directors of the Company
(“Director(s)”) confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based on
the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees in the
securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are required to comply
with the Employees Trading Code in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company. The terms of the Employees Trading
Code are no less exacting than the required standards set out in the
Model Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and nine
non-executive Directors of whom four are independent as defined
under the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive Directors
constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On 11 November
2013, the nomination committee of the Board has conducted an
annual review of the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors. Taking into account the independence criteria as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, the nomination committee
concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors satisfied
the Listing Rules requirement of independence.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in Directors’
Profile on pages 31 to 39 of this annual report. To the best
knowledge of the Board, none of the members of the Board is
related to one another. The Company has also maintained on its
website (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the HKExnews website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions. Composition of the Board, by category
of Directors, is explicitly identified in all the Company’s corporate
communications.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective in August
2013. When determining the composition of the Board, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, work and professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All appointment of the
members of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits of the candidates and the contribution they will
bring to the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The nomination committee has primary responsibility
for identifying and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in
carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to
the board diversity policy.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)

EEE (A
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At as the date of this report, the Board comprises 12 directors, two
of them are women. The educational background of the directors
covers accounting, business management, economics, sociology,
history and political studies. The Company considers that the current
composition of the Board has the characteristics of diversity, whether
from perspectives of gender, professional background and skills.

Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings as
and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings
are sent to Directors or Board committee members at least fourteen
days prior to such meetings and Directors or Board committee
members can include matters for discussion in the agenda for such
meetings if the need arises. For ad hoc meetings, shorter notice may
be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors
at least three days before Board meetings or Board committee
meetings.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings have
recorded in sufficient detail matters considered by the Board and
Board committees, decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes of Board meetings and/or Board committee
meetings are sent to Directors or committee members (as the case
may be) for their comment and records respectively, in both cases
within a reasonable time after the meetings. The decision of the
Board can be made by written resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors for
inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring these
professional services will be borne by the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director, such matter will be discussed through
an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will
be present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

AEERN - HBTNA\REZGSHLAIN
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During the year, a total of eight Board meetings and the annual
general meeting of 2013 (the “2013 AGM") at which the external
auditors attended were held and the attendance of such meetings
by each Director is set out below:

2013 AGM

Notes Board Meetings 2013 F
Name of Directors B 5T EEEgER BRAFAS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TE&EE 1 /(1) 0/(0)
Mr. Lu Xiaohui EEEE AL 1 1/(1) 0/(0)
Ms. Luan Xiuju BERHTT 2 6/(6) 0/(1)
Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William BERESE 2 6/(6) 1/(1)
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) FregEE (FE) 3 6/(6) 1/(1)
Mr. Ning Gaoning BRELE 4 2/(8) 0/(1)
Mr. Chi Jingtao ERUSRE 5 6/(8) 0/(1)
Ms. Liu Ding MT 2+ 5/(8) 0/(1)
Mr. Ma Jianping BT xEE 7/(8) 0/(1)
Ms. Wu Wenting R e 7/(8) 0/(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEHITES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark WM IEREE 8/(8) 1/(1)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BB E 8/(8) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TR E 7/(8) 1/(1)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANKLE 8/(8) 0/(1)
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. Jiang Guojin and Mr. Lu Xiaohui were appointed as executive
Directors with effect from 17 September 2013.

2. Ms. Luan Xiuju and Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William had resigned as
executive Directors with effect from 17 September 2013.

3. Mr. Yu Xubo was appointed as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board with effect from 26 March 2013.

4. Mr. Ning Gaoning was re-designated from an executive Director to a
non-executive Director with effect from 11 November 2013.

b. Mr. Chi Jingtao was re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive Director and ceased to be the chairman of the Board with
effect from 26 March 2013.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies, reviewing
and monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system, supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group, and approval
of matters or transactions of a material nature or those requiring
disclosure under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation of the strategies and
policies set by the Board to the management under the leadership of
the managing director.

Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in the annual report of the
Company.

During the year, the Board approved and adopted the inside
information disclosure policy and guidelines, board diversity policy,

the revised terms of reference of the executive committee.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment and Re-election/Election of Directors

EEE (A
EERER REES

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three years. Pursuant
to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), each Director
(including those appointed for specific terms) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and the retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Director who is appointed
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director to the
Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after the appointment and be subject to election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman or executive Directors’ briefings on the operations and
business of the Group and an induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding on his responsibilities under the relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. From
time to time, the company secretary disseminates information on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to the Directors to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company also organizes seminars on specific topics
of significance or interest for Directors and management staff and
sponsors Directors to attend professional development seminars or
other programmes where necessary.

During the year, a training session provided by external lawyer on
the topics of regulatory and compliance update which covering
disclosure of inside information, connected transactions, board
diversity and environmental, social and governance reporting guide
was organized for the Directors. The relevant materials were also
sent to the Directors who were unable to attend the training session
for their information.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (continued)

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the year is set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Jiang Guojin T4
Mr. Lu Xiaohui EEEE AL
Ms. Luan Xiuju BERHTT
Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William BEEEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) T (EE)
Mr. Ning Gaoning ERELE
Mr. Chi Jingtao BRELE
Ms. Liu Ding WMT &+t
Mr. Ma Jianping BT RAE
Ms. Wu Wenting RN g4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred R AE
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANEE

Directors’ Insurance

During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are segregate and
discharged by different individuals. Currently, the chairman of the
Board is Mr. Yu Xubo, while the managing director of the Company
is Mr. Jiang Guojin.

The chairman of Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring all significant and key
issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a
timely manner.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
(continued)

ITRRESHREE (B)

The managing director of the Company is delegated with the
authority and responsibility to manage the businesses of the Group
in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies, make day-
today decision and coordinate overall business operation and
regularly report to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
defined terms of reference.

Executive Committee

The executive committee currently consists of three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Guojing who is the chairman of this
committee, Mr. Lu Xiaohui and Ms. Wu Wenting who was re-
designated as an executive Director on 10 March 2014.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com). The
primary responsibility of the executive committee is to deal with
and supervise the day-to-day business operations, management
and administration of the Group. There is no minimum meeting
requirements and this committee shall meet as and when necessary
for proper discharge of its duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee currently consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark who is the
chairman of this committee, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, Mr. Li Hung
Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The duties of the audit committee are mainly to review the financial
information and reporting process, internal control procedures and
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors and arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and the REFRNBITTMRAEE  BNZEEK

ZHFEEREIAT

attendance by each committee member is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREUR HESBRE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Chairman) M BEAE (F/F) 2/(2)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred BB E 2/(2)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRALEE 2/(2)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit BERZEENAFEANTERZNT -
committee during the year:

- reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements -  EBHAEE#HZE2012412A31H1E
for the year ended 31 December 2012; FENEEZLEPERE

—  reviewed matters relating to the Group’s financial and - REAEBERBAMBEREFEER R

accounting policies and practices;

reviewed continuing connected transactions for the year 2012;
reviewed external auditor's management letter;

reviewed and approved the appointment of external auditors
for providing non-audit services to the Group;

made recommendation to the Board on a proposal to the

shareholders of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young as
the Company’s external auditors for the year 2013;

reviewed the internal audit results, the effectiveness of internal
control and risk management systems framework;

approved the internal audit plan for the year 2013;

reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and reported to the Board;

reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2013;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

reviewed an independent review report on improving
the financial closing and reporting process and made
recommendations to the Board for improvements;

EEXZETE (&)
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- reviewed the audit fee proposal for the Group for the year
2013; and

- met with the external auditors to discuss the general scope
of their audit work for the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee currently consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis who is the chairman of this committee, Mr.
Stephen Edward Clark and Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells and two non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Chi Jingtao.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the
website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The duties of the remuneration committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual non-executive Directors.

During the year, the remuneration committee held two meetings and
the attendance by each committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee Member

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Chairman) RRNEE(FF)
Mr. Chi Jingtao BRELE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI
Mr. Yu Xubo TR A
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Notes:

1. One meeting of the remuneration committee was held prior to the
appointment of Mr. Yu Xubo as a member of the remuneration
committee on 26 March 2013.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
remuneration committee during the year:

- reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management;

- reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of all Directors for year 2013 and a
plan for the grant of share options; and

- made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of two executive Directors who were appointed on
17 September 2013.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Xubo who is the
chairman of this committee and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan,
Francis.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

The duties of nomination committee are mainly to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identify suitable
candidates for appointment as directors; make recommendations
to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors; and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and review whether non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are spending enough time to fulfill their duties annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year, the nomination committee held four meetings and
the attendance by each committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee Member

ZEEREMSR

Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) FreREE(ERE)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred R AE
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANEE
Mr. Chi Jingtao BRUSRE
Notes:
1. Two meetings of the nomination committee were held prior to the

appointment of Mr. Yu Xubo as a member and the chairman of the
nomination committee on 26 March 2013.

2. Mr. Chi Jingtao ceased to be a member and the chairman of the
nomination committee with effect from 26 March 2013.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the nomination
committee during the year:

- made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of a non-executive Director, and the appointments of two new

executive Directors;

- made recommendations to the Board on the re-designation of
two executive directors to non-executive Directors;

- reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

- assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and reviewed whether non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) were spending
enough time to fulfill their duties.

ExZREE (A)
REZEE (H)

REERRITTHREH  BUZ
ZHFEERSEIAT

Attendance/

Notes Number of Meetings

Bt e HEERRE

1 2/(2)

3/(4)

4/(4)

2 2/(2)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s affairs to its
shareholders and the public in accordance with all statutory
requirements.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going-concern basis.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s
external auditors are set out below:

Services rendered

EEXZETE (&)
SR
ERRBNRRAAEORE - HADAN

FHARKRARSRINER  BWRE
BHORFA -

EXUTHEABEAEFRIBERANEAT
HEMMRHARRFELENGENELE
RERE - At EFERRIFBLLELR
SNRAMEREMHRE -

BB &

AEER - MZOKGHEIEBME XN HE
SNHERHIIAT

Fees paid/payable

P12 1 A BR 3% e/ EANER

HK$'000

T

Audit services EET RS 3,318.45

Non-audit services* FJEEAT RS * 979.20

Total At 4,297.65
* Such services included, among others, interim review and compliance * ZERBETREFHREENRIFER

review relating to continuing connected transactions.
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Company to maintain
a sound and effective internal control system to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

The Company develops its internal control system by reference to
the framework recommended by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of Treadway Commission) and conducts regular
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
Management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal controls, with the Board and the audit
committee overseeing the actions of management and monitoring
the effectiveness of the internal controls that have been put in place.
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& o
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

EEZREE (H)

The audit and supervision department of the Company conducts
regular and independent reviews of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group and risk-based audits on the business
operations of the Group in accordance with the annual audit plan
approved by the audit committee. The audit committee reviews the
findings and opinion of the audit and supervision department on
the review of effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
semiannually and report to the Board on such review.

The audit committee, as delegated by the Board, reviews the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget on an annual basis.

In respect of 2013, the Board has reviewed, through the audit
committee, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
and noted that there are certain areas in which the internal controls
needs to be improved.

The audit committee noted that due to staff changes, the Group’s
finance department was under-staffed and over-stretched, and
that there had been insufficient training over the year. The audit
committee also noted the lack of an effective internal audit function
due to staff departures and internal staff transfers. This had resulted
in concerns from the audit committee in relation to reporting. The
Board intends to address these concerns by recruiting further
qualified individuals in the finance and internal audit departments
and providing in-house training tailored to the needs of the staff in
these departments.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Shareholders shall have a right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company (“SGM”). Shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company may send a written requisition to the Board
of the Company to request for convene a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company. The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a

general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the total voting rights of all the members of the Company; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders (continued)

B RER ()
BRERBERASRZBENEF (H)

The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than six
weeks before the general meeting (in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution) or not less than one week before the general
meeting (in case of any other requisition). The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangement once a valid
requisition is received.

Procedures for Director’s Nomination and Election by
Shareholders

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at 33/F,,
Top Glory Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,
(a) a written notice signed by such shareholder (other than the
proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
of his/her intention to propose such person for election and (b) a
written notice by the proposed person indicating his/her willingness
to be elected together with the personal information of the proposed
person as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
consent of publication of his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given shall be
seven days (or such other period as determined and announced
by the Board). Such period will commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
once valid notice is received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Communication with Shareholders

RERER ()

ERREE

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and the Shareholders
Communication Policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with the Company’s information in a timely and effective manner.

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the following:

i corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form
and are available on the HKExnews website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(www.chinafoodsltd.com);

ii. corporate announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the HKExnews website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website;

iii.  corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

iv.  annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and management executives; and

V. Tricor Progressive Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together with
his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address or
fax number, via the company secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., Top Glory Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Constitutional Documents

RERER ()

BEXHF

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-Laws during the financial year 2013. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-
Laws is available on the website of the Company and the HKExnews
website of the Stock Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The mission and strategic objectives of investor relations function
have been clearly defined as follows:

Mission:

Through transparent and fair disclosure to facilitate mutual
understanding between investors and the Company with a view to
realize the full value of the Company.

Strategic objectives:

1)  to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant
in the branded consumer foods industry in China in line with
our strategic direction and our strategic positioning within the
group of COFCO;

2) 1o build a long-term and trusting shareholder base that is
willing to grow with us; and

3)  to understand the key concerns of the investment community
and provide timely feedback to management.

In 2013, we have effectively bridging the Company and the
investment community through regular communications such as
results announcements, post-results roadshows, conference calls,
one-on-one meetings and e-mails to enhance their knowledge
and understanding of the Company. Look forward to continuous
improvement and more efficient communication with the investment
community to ensure the Company’s sustainable development and
to enhance shareholder values.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
S R & A

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) present their

report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013, which were approved by the Board on
25 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries and associated
companies operates four principal businesses involving beverage,
wine, kitchen food and confectionery.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 236.

The Board did not declare interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: HK6.11 cents) and did not
recommend the payment of final dividend (31 December 2012: Nil)
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 3 June
2014, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 30 May 2014 to Tuesday, 3 June 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the above
meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar, at
26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will
be relocated to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong with effect from 31 March 2014) for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 29 May 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&#H &

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BHERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 237. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 November
2006 (the “Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the resolution passed
on 28 March 2011 at the Board meeting, the vesting and exercise
periods for the options granted under the Option Scheme have
been modified. The following are the principal terms of the Option
Scheme:

1. Purpose of the Option Scheme

To attract, retain and motivate senior management personnel
and key employees of the Company, and to provide eligible
participants with an opportunity to acquire interests in the
Company so as to encourage eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

2. Participants of the Option Scheme

Participants of the Option Scheme include (i) any executive or
non-executive directors (excluding independent non-executive
directors) of any members of the Group; (ii) any senior
executives, key technical staff, professional staff, managers
and employees of any members of the Group; or (iii) any other
individuals as may be proposed by the Board.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEg#H &

BrrEsta (|
AR BIE T ARBITZREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the 3.

Option Scheme

#

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) are in aggregate
equal to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Option Scheme, i.e. 178,508,197
shares.

As at 31 December 2013, a total of 35,929,400 shares may
be issued by the Company if all share options which were
granted under the Option Scheme have been exercised,
representing approximately 1.28% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.

FIT AR IR BB AT 8138 TR a0 P
BB Bt R AN R R B o B A A T
g (mA) BT TRONMABRE
MmAlgE B ITHIAR M AR - &% & i
ERRABRESE A S BITRD
#@EH10% - B1178,508,197 x5 °

M20134 12 A31 8 - (MR BB
EIE BRI ET TE - ARF]
A F 1T 2 PP 42 5 35,929,400 A%
% AR RS AR TR
#9,21.28% °

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 4. BREZETSE2HEZRS
Option Scheme PREE

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon MR A ARRARD 2 BRE (B2F2
exercise of the options granted to any grantee (including both TERRITE 2 BRE) E1THEEM
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period BOIRKBEETIRNDBEEEM
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue FTZEABEATSBRARFR
(the “Individual Limit”) at the relevant time. Any further grant HERAR 1T A9 1% ([ & R BR
of options in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject to F]) o i — R E (T RR 2 E B PR 28
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates 2B RS IR AL E - A AR
abstaining from voting. AR HEE AAREIRSE o

Period within which an option must be exercised 5. BREATITEZHR

The directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which an option may be exercised, save that
in any event such period of time shall not exceed a period of
seven years commencing on the date of acceptance of the
option and expiring on the last date of such seven-year period,
subject to early termination thereof as provided in the Option
Scheme.

EEAERRNBEETERRE LS
B HEEABERT - ZBMRASE
BEEABEEES BEEF AR
TFEMRKE—ARER - ETEER
RERT I P ENA BREE 48 Lk 2 1R SE R
BRI
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) fBIR T & (3R)

6. Minimum period for which an option must be held 6. BRETFEALAREZRENR
before it can be exercised

An option must be held for a minimum period of two years BRENTFEIEBR L AERERE
from the date of grant before it can be exercised. B R8RSR o

The options granted on 27 September 2007 are subject to the
following vesting schedule: TN HERERRS

Maximum percentage

of options which

may be exercised

Periods RZATHE
HiR BREZESL

— Upon and after the second anniversary of the grant - B BHIEstE —AF R EE

until the third anniversary of the grant EE-FF 33%
— Upon and after the third anniversary of the grant - BRI AR E=RFRER
until the fourth anniversary of the grant EEMAF 67%
— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the grant - BRI BB ENATREE 100%
The options granted after 28 March 2011 are subject to the 720114 3 A 28 H LAE 3% T HOBE AR 1
following new vesting schedule: RIZBESZ AT B R RRRH

Maximum percentage
of options which
may be exercised

Periods BZ AL
Him BREZHIL

— Upon and after the second anniversary of the grant - ARHBHRAE - AFLEE
until the third anniversary of the grant EE-AF

— Upon and after the third anniversary of the grant - BREBHEHE=AFRAR
until the fourth anniversary of the grant EENAF

— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the grant - BRI BRI ENEF R EE
until the fifth anniversary of the grant EERRF

— Upon and after the fifth anniversary of the grant - BREBHBHERAFRAR
until the sixth anniversary of the grant EERAF

— Upon and after the sixth anniversary of the grant - BREBHBHEAAFRER
until the seventh anniversary of the grant EELRAF
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7.

10.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

The offer of an option made pursuant to the Option Scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer and
the amount payable on acceptance of the option is HK$1.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer; (b) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; or (c) the nominal value of a share.

Duration of the Option Scheme

The Option Scheme is valid until 20 November 2016.

Movement of share options

Details of the movements in the share options during the year
ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Number of share options
FERENZA
At Granted Exercised
Name or category
of participants

SRERAREN

R2013%
1518

the year

FhRA

the year

Fhfre

Current Directors
RfES
Mr. Ning Gaoning

saERE

Lapsed
01.01.2013 during during during
the year

FhxM

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EES 4%

BRETE (&)

7.

10.

31.12.2013
R2013E
12A318

BANRE IR 2 PR I FE Y RO

REBREFESRDBEREZZOY
AREBHBHES —+N\RAEE
o Ml ABEERNIAR LA

JC °
BETEEZEE

THEEREFEETE  WEARNUT=
Hz&=E  @QRBHNERTBME
RHARAT ([B2)) 8ERE
KRB ETE : (OREZERZLNA
R AEEXABIMERRERMN
A 2 FHWTHE - (o) R ZE
B-

BRESTE BN

B HERTE 2 AN 20164F 11 A
20H & °

BREZZE

BZE2013F12A31AILFE - Bk
Bz RBEENT

At Date of
grant of
share options

RARRERS

Exercise
price of
share options
FERETERE
HK$

B

Exercise
period of
share options

RRERES

27.09.2007 27.09.2009-

2609.2014
29032011 29.03.2013-
2803.2018

Mr. Chi Jingtao

29.03.2011 29.03.2013-

28.03.2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE &4

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRAESTE (&)
10. Movement of share options (continued) 10. [BERE22H (])
Number of share options
BRENZA
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category 01.01.2013 during during during 31.12.2013 grant of period of price of
of participants R2013E the year the year the year R2013E share options share options share options
SRR AR 1518 FREL FRf EREH 1231 REERERS  BREGES  EREGRE
HK$
B
Ms. Liu Ding 29.03.2011 29.03.2013-
Tzt 28032018
Mr. Ma Jianping 320,000 - - - 320,000 27.09.2007 27.09.2009- 4952
SRTEE 2609.2014
600,000 - - - 600,000 29032011 29.03.2013- 4910
28032018
Ms. Wu Wenting 280,000 - - - 280,000 2709.2007 27.09.2009- 4952
KXERT 2609.2014
600,000 - - - 600,000 29032011 29.03.2013-
28032018 4910
Former Directors
AiftEs
Ms. Luan Xiuju (Note 1) 560,000 - - - 560,000 27.09.2007 21.09.2009- 4952
SERETL () 2609.2014
740,000 - - - 740,000 29032011 29.03.2013- 4910
28032018
Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William (Note 1) 800,000 - - - 800,000 2709.2007 27.09.2009- 4952
BEREE () 2609.2014

600,000 600,000 2032011 203.2013-
2803.2018

Other employees 6,955,480 (32,000) (734,080) 6,189,400 27.09.2007 27.09.2009-
EfhEE (Note 2) (Note 3) 26002014
(H3£2) (F3E3)

23,960,000 (1,680,000 22,280,000 2032011 203.2013-
(Note 4) 2803.2018
(4

38,375,480 (32,000 (2414,080) 35,929,400
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

10. Movement of share options (continued)
Notes:

1. Ms. Luan Xiuju and Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William resigned as executive
directors with effect from 17 September 2013.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was
HK$7.44.

3. The vested options lapsed during the year upon the expiry of stipulated
period in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme.

4. The unvested options lapsed during the year upon the resignations of
certain employees of the Company in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to approximately HK$5,034,623,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 6% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately
67.5% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting
for approximately 48.8%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation, which is one of the Group’s five largest suppliers,
none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the other four largest suppliers or the
five largest customers of the Group.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEg#H &

BRETE (&)
10. BREZz2E (&)
BiE -

1. BEJHLUIREZRELEEBENTE
£ R2013F9 A 17 HEBER -

2. MERTEEBRERH - ARRKROW
IEFIWRTER 7448 7T

3. AFER ZECHEENBREREREK
T B R BAT AR E MBS HARE M T 22K -

4. AFEERN REBBIEBINER - ZER
BB B ER S TR BB R AR o

BEEEHE

ARAA BRI A READIIL EEANERK
AR BARBRA RRIR LI EEH SN
ZBITEBEEMRT °

(G4

AERR AR T RAEE EEREHE
B RIS A BB B 55 32 Rk & IR A
BEHE -

CIR 35 1i

A20134F 12831 AARIRIEERE =
181 FREAMEZAIHSIRFEEN A
5,034,623,000 & 7T ©

FTEFFREER

REERN  AERHRAERATPHOHEER
HAKEBEERNLIHER6% - AKH
hEEAREANRBEAGASERRE
#AHY67.5% » SAHIERAIE48.8% °

BARBZREEBEBRRTEBEEERAR
RARBERAZAREE 2 4 KAAF
B ((EF)) EEMBEARETABKER
(BEEMAERRS% ARAZBEBEITRA
#) ERNASEEBROAZFAEERRD
FRAEPHHES EI B mika o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&#H &

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Note 1)

Ms. Wu Wenting (ote2)

Mr. Lu Xiaohui (MNete D

Ms. Luan Xiuju Mete

Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William (Mete3)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Xubo (Nete 4

Mr. Ning Gaoning (Nete®

Mr. Chi Jingtag (Nete®

Ms. Liu Ding

Mr. Ma Jianping

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

Notes:

1. Mr. Jiang Guojin and Mr. Lu Xiaohui were appointed as executive
Directors with effect from 17 September 2013.

2. Ms. Wu Wengting was re-designated as an executive Director with
effect from 10 March 2014.

3. Ms. Luan Xiuju and Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William have resigned as
executive Directors with effect from 17 September 2013.

4. Mr. Yu Xubo was appointed as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board with effect from 26 March 2013.

5. Mr. Ning Gaoning was re-designated as a non-executive Director with
effect from 11 November 2013.

6. Mr. Chi Jingtao has ceased to be the chairman of the Board and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director with effect from 26 March
2013.

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed with specific terms.

S

RAEENREEARE BN  AATES
T

HITEE

ST 4 s 4 D
B4 Wi
AR A A (D)
BER A (WD)

%;5%5%/_:‘5 (BIFE3)

FHITES :
F B o A (e
TR AR 4 A (WiES)
SR ETE AL A (6
WT &+t
BTt

BYFHITES :

WAz % A (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark)
BRI A (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells)
RANGE

Wi

1. TESEENMEEBLEEZTARNTE
£ R2013F9 817 B4R -

2. RXEZTERTRHAITES N2014%F
3A10RRAER -

3. BEFLIRETELECRTHNTE
£ R2013F9 817 B4R -

4. THRELEERERINTEERERE
FF o R2013F3 A26 HRRAR ©

5. ESEALEIHTRNERNITEE N2013
F11 A1 BRER -

6. EBREELTHECEFGEIE LR
EAIEHTES - 1 2013%3 A26 A R4
o

FATEZMEFMTETAREREF
H o

78 | CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
TERRARAR —E-=FH



DIRECTORS (continued)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&8#H &

EE (&)

Each Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the Company’s
bye-laws. Accordingly, Mr. Chi Jingtao, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark,
Ms. Liu Ding, Mr. Ning Gaoning and Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to bye-law 94 of the Company’s bye-laws, any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director to the Board shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to election at such meeting. In this regard, Mr. Jiang Guojin
and Mr. Lu Xiaohui will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considered all of them to be independent.
The nomination committee of the Board also reviewed their
independence at a meeting held in November 2012.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors are set out on pages
31 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election or election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

B E
BRI -FHERT X B BR
ST ATALfE % A (Mr. Stephen Edward
Clark) * ¥l T+ - ERELEERFHENHE
AEFRENEERITZRERAF RS LRE - I
HEEWRRFEEERET -

RBEA QR R RARRAIZE 111(A) &

REBARRRRARIF A F - EMERE
NEHESERNTRASHMBESTNE
EEH-EEEZAERARREEABRRAS
WARZE LEE - Fit - TESRERE
B SE KRR BT 2 REFAE LR
T ANEERKBEEEE -

ARFR R EIBTFRITESRE LT
I8 3.13 I T 60 7 BB 7 14 0 9 21 0 25
ERRE  MARTUHEE BIIMETR
- $F®2REEAGINE R 20124 11
AR BRI o PEB T -

EEEHN

ARBEE[NER  HRAFHREILR
£H398 -

EERBEYN

REGET 2 EREFAS LEEETRE
B2 ERRNRFHEEFNE QR ZEH
BRI AEMARRI S EEMNBARIAR T
BB OEERERIN AR —FRELEZ
IRIEE L)

EECEHER

AEEN EFHEEHAKREXRBEE
REEZEMEH (KARR] - REFZERA
RN - NCIEACEN G- PNCIDER= N ORI KD
7)) hEEREEREAEAES
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&#H &

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

EEME

The Board is authorized by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
OPTIONS

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
issued any convertible securities, warrants or options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”) as recorded in the register of interests of the Company
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) (collectively the “Discloseable Interests”) were
as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)

(@) Discloseable Interests in the shares and underlying

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EES 4%

-
B

(&

)

R R AEB IR D 2 S &

(@) RARRZKRHRAEBERED AR

shares of the Company EEs
Total
number of

shares and Approximate

Number of underlying percentage of

Number of underlying  shares held issued shares

Capacity/ shares held  shares held Frishg 1o BT

Name of Director Nature of Interest P FrsiaE 18R B 17 B9 R4S

EENSE 51/ g B3 E B3 E B D 4a 8 Bok

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

(L) (MizE2) (FEE3)

Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 176,000 - 176,000 0.01%
TES EmEEA

Mr. Ning Gaoning Beneficial Owner - 1,620,000 1,620,000 0.06%
BEoESLE BEmEFA

Mr. Chi Jingtao Beneficial Owner - 740,000 740,000 0.03%
EBRUESLE EmEEA

Ms. Liu Ding Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
WMT &+ EnEEA

Mr. Ma Jianping Beneficial Owner - 920,000 920,000 0.03%
BEYLEE EnBEAA

Ms. Wu Wenting Beneficial Owner - 880,000 880,000 0.03%
RIETL EnlEFA

Mr. Paul Kenneth Beneficial Owner 200,000 - 290,000 0.01%
Etchells EnBEEA

BB E
Interest of Spouse 90,000 -

A

1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity 1. A2rkmzgs (BATTAETIAN
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible FERRE - RIREB AT RRES KR
bonds. HN) ©

2. Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company under 2. BEEREFEZHNEEEDOER
share options granted to Directors pursuant to the Option BIETAAREERGO TR ©
Scheme.

B TR AR R F R2013F
12A31H 2 B #17 Mk 4 8 (B
2,797,223,396 [&fkn) 5t E -

3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of 3.
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2013, i.e.
2,797,223,396 shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT %E@iﬁﬁ&*ﬁﬁgﬂﬁﬁ»?@?é&

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING 2 (&)

SHARES (continued)

(b) Discloseable Interests in the shares and underlying (b) R—FREBEE (FERHEZERE
shares of an associated corporation, China Agri- RARE ([HEEH])) 2RHKE
Industries Holdings Limited (“China Agri”) BROZAREER

Total
number of
shares and Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
Number of underlying  shares held issued shares
Capacity/ shares held  shares held Frishg 1o HE 1T
Name of Director Nature of Interest Fris FristEE R EES R 17 AL A
EENE B/ REmtE BB BB IR #8 8, Bok
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(P¥zE1) (FiEE 2) (Fff&E3)
Mr. Yu Xubo Beneficial Owner - 1,378,000 1,613,364 0.03%
TR 54 BEmEEA
Interest of Spouse 235,364
BefE
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 100 583,000 583,100 0.01%
IE® %% EREEA
Mr. Ning Gaoning Beneficial Owner - 1,378,000 1,378,000 0.03%
EREiE EmEA A
Mr. Chi Jingtao Beneficial Owner - 509,000 509,000 0.01%
BRERE BEmEA A
Notes: B 3T

1. Long positions in the shares of China Agri, other than equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible
bonds.

Long positions in the underlying shares of China Agri under
share options granted to Directors pursuant to a share option
scheme of China Agri.

The percentages were calculated based on the total number
of shares of China Agri in issue as at 31 December 2013, i.e.,
5,249,880,788 shares.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors nor their associates had any other Discloseable Interests.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EES 4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TERRREMATRREG R
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS BIR#HB 2 EXR XA

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of ~ #2013 12 A31 H  RIEFF L EEEN
substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the EXVERE 2 REINEBMAMEARF] IR
Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of 15 & % & HIE G015 336 528N AR A B AT
Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests of the FEZEZELMA  EBRERAQFG
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, were as 9 RABERG 2 R RABIT

follows:

Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying REAQATRGREBEKRGD ZFAEH
shares of the Company

Number of shares held (Note 1)
FiERAEE (1)

Approximate

Through percentage of
Directly controlled issued shares
Name of beneficially corporations BT
substantial shareholder owned =B Total B 13 K9 BEAS
FERRER BEEBRES ZiEEE g Bk
(Note 2)
(FfiEE2)
Wide Smart Holdings Limited 1,922,550,331 - 1,922,550,331 68.73%
COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited 140,000,000 - 140,000,000 5.00%
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited 10,138,000 2,062,550,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FieElE (F5) ARAR (Note 3)
(FFZE3)
COFCO Corporation - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FREEEARRAR (Note 4)
(FFzE4)
Notes: BfsE -

Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity L ARFARGZ24E (RAITETAMER
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. 1 - RBIEF S AR EH RN o

The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares . BALDREARFN2013F12 /318
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2013, i.e. 2,797,223,396 %)E%é?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%l (BN2,797,223,396 A% A%
shares. D) 58 -

COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)”) was deemed to be . O HPREREER(BF) ARAR ([HREEE]

interested in 2,062,550,331 shares in aggregate held by Wide Smart W18 ARWide Smart Holdings Limited

Holdings Limited (“Wide Smart”) and COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited (T'Wide Smart]) K COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited

(“COFCO (BVI) 108”") which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of COFCO ([COFCO (BVI) 108]) (W AT EEENE

(HK). EH B A Fris4 #£2,062,550,331 B A%
DR ER -

COFCO Corporation was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 . B EEAER AWK AR Wide Smart ©
shares in aggregate held by Wide Smart, COFCO (BVI) 108 and COFCO (BVI) 108)3&\‘212l BES(HADTE
COFCO (HK) which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of COFCO SEERATNEZEWNB AR IFEH
Corporation. 2,072,688,331 MEfAn R B 1S ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of substantial shareholders and
other persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES - BANKING
FACILITY WITH COVENANT RELATING

TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Directors of the Company report the following loan
facilities which entered during the year and up to the date of this
report and included a condition relating to specific performance of
the controlling shareholder of the Company.

1. On 11 September 2013, the Company, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement (the “A Facility Agreement”) with two
financial institutions as mandated lead arrangers and lenders
(the “Lenders”) and one of the financial institutions as agent
(the “Agent”). Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, a term loan
facility in an aggregate sum of HK$1,100,000,000 (the “A
Facility”) is made available by the Lenders to the Company on
the terms and conditions contained therein. The final maturity
date of the A Facility shall be thirty-six months after the date of
the A Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the A Facility Agreement, it will be an event
of default, inter alia, if (a) the Company is not or ceases to
be a direct or indirect subsidiary of COFCO Corporation; or
COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to be the single largest
and controlling shareholder of the Company or does not or
ceases to hold the majority voting rights in the Company; or (b)
COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to be wholly-owned (direct
or indirect) by or controlled (directly or indirectly) by the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China.
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES - BANKING
FACILITY WITH COVENANT RELATING

TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (continued)

1.

(continued)

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred and
is continuing the Agent may, and shall if so directed by the
Lenders whose aggregate participations in the A Facility then
outstanding are 66-2/3% or more of such A Facility, by notice
to the Company: (a) cancel the total commitments or any part
of any commitment; (b) declare that the all or part of the loans
made under the A Facility together with accrued interest,
and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the A
Facility Agreement be immediately due and payable; and/or (c)
declare that all or part of the loans made under the A Facility
be payable on demand.

On 17 March 2014, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “B Facility Agreement”) relating to a term
loan facility in an aggregate sum of HK$700,000,000 (or its
US$ equivalent) (the “B Facility”) to be made available to the
Company, as borrower. The maturity date of the B Facility shall
be thirty-six months after the date of the B Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the B Facility Agreement, it will be an event of
default, inter alia, if (a) COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to
be the single largest and ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company or does not or ceases to own directly or indirectly
at least 51% of the issued share capital of the Company; or
(b) COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to be a company
under the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China.

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred
and is continuing Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as the
agent may, and shall if so directed by a lender or lenders
whose aggregate participations in the loans made under the
B Facility (the “Loans”) then outstanding aggregate are more
than 66-2/3% of such Loans, by notice to the Company:
(a) cancel all or any part of the commitments under the B
Facility Agreement; (b) declare that the all or part of the Loans
together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued
or outstanding under the B Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable; and/or (c) declare that all or part of the
Loans be payable on demand.
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DIVIDEND RESTRICTION IN BANKING FACILITY

The B Facility Agreement contains a financial covenant that no more
than 20% of the Company’s distributable profits in each financial
year are paid by way of dividend during the term of the B Facility.

RITRE P AR SR

EBREMHEEE —BARANBREMND
BR P& (8 B B B S AT S O B BT AT R A P
7 IRHE 20 % B & BRI AV ERAR ©

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group, in the ordinary and usual course of
business, conducted various transactions with certain connected
persons of the Company including COFCO Corporation (“COFCO”),
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (for the purpose of this section, excluding the Group,
collectively the “COFCO Group”) and associates of COFCO.

1. Beverage Base Purchase Agreement

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Tianjin Jin Mei
Beverage Company Limited (“Tianjin Jin Mei”), a connected
person of the Company, entered into a beverage base
purchase agreement for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2012 and expiring on 31 December 2014
(the “Beverage Base Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Beverage Base Purchase Agreement, members of the Group
with prior written approval from Tianjin Jin Mei shall purchase
beverage bases from Tianjin Jin Mei at prices determined
by Coca-Cola Beverages (Shanghai) Company Limited
(“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”). Details of the Beverage Base
Purchase Agreement were disclosed in an announcement
of the Company dated 21 November 2011 (the “2011
Announcement”).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount paid/
payable by the Group to Tianjin Jin Mei for the purchase of
beverage bases was approximately RMB21 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

2.

Concentrate Purchase Agreement

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a concentrate purchase agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2012 and expiring on 31
December 2014 (the “Concentrate Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-Cola (Shanghai).
Details of the Concentrate Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the 2011 Announcement and a circular of the Company
dated 12 December 2011 (the “2011 Circular”).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola (Shanghai) for the
purchase of concentrates was approximately RMB1,143
million.

Still Beverages Purchase Agreement

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Manufacturing (Dongguan) Co. Ltd. (“Coca-Cola
(Dongguan)”), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a still beverages purchase agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2012 and expiring on 31
December 2014 (the “Still Beverages Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Still Beverages Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from The Coca-Cola
Company shall purchase still beverages from the Coca-Cola
(Dongguan) and its associates (the “Coca-Cola (Dongguan)
Group”) for distribution and resale within designated areas in
the PRC. Details of the Still Beverages Purchase Agreement
were disclosed in the 2011 Announcement and the 2011
Circular.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount paid/
payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola (Dongguan) Group for
the purchase of still beverages was approximately RMB1,829
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

4.

Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and Services
Agreement

On 21 November 2011, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages Co., Ltd.
(the “Tianjin Bottler”), a deemed subsidiary of the Company,
and Tianjin Shifa Zijiang Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Zijiang”), a
connected person of the Company, entered into a provision of
packaging materials and services agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2012 and expiring on 31
December 2014 (the “Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials
and Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the Zijiang Provision of
Packaging Materials and Services Agreement, Zijiang shall supply
packaging materials and provide conversion services to Tianjin
Bottler. Details of the Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and
Services Agreement were disclosed in the 2011 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount
paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang for the purchase
of packaging materials and conversion services was
approximately RMB43 million.

COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and Services
Agreement

On 21 November 2011, the Company and COFCO entered
into a mutual provision of products and services agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2012
and expiring on 31 December 2014 (the “COFCO Mutual
Provision of Products and Services Agreement”). Pursuant
to the COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and Services
Agreement, the COFCO Group and associates of COFCO shall
supply certain oil products and other raw materials, consumer
products, packaging materials and other products owned,
manufactured, or resold by the COFCO Group and associates
of COFCO and provide property leasing and other services to
the Group while the Group shall supply certain bulk edible oils
and other raw materials and consumer products and other
products owned, manufactured, or resold by the Group and
provide information technology services and other services
to the COFCO Group and associates of COFCO. In addition,
the COFCO Group and associates of COFCO shall reimburse
the Group for the expenses (the “Promotion and Sales and
Distribution Expenses”) in connection with the promotion
or sale and distribution of certain products supplied by the
COFCO Group and associates of COFCO. The Promotion
and Sales and Distribution Expenses shall first be paid by
the Group and then reimbursed by the COFCO Group and
associates of COFCO. Details of the COFCO Mutual Provision
of Products and Services Agreement were disclosed in the
2011 Announcement and the 2011 Circular.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&8#H &

RHERERS (&)

5. COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and Services
Agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to COFCO Group and associates of
COFCO for the purchase of raw materials, products, services
and others was approximately RMB8,464 million; the total
amount paid/payable by COFCO Group and associates of
COFCO to the Group for the purchase of raw materials,
products, services and others was approximately RMB198
million; No promotion and Sales and Distribution Expenses
were incurred.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 5 disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 5 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the report of the Company’s auditors,
and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were:

1.  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in any business which is likely to compete directly or
indirectly with that of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 53 to 70 of this
annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB2.1 million.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditors of the Company
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young shall retire and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-appointment at the forth coming annual general meeting, a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will
be proposed at the meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

YU Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

19215 3650 %

EY =

To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 236, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

BBEMNET (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

25 March 2014

92 | CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
TERRARAR —E-=FH

FP MITIE P A EE BAR & B S R
PrEl S B M INBEENNBIZRE - FUEER
RFBURNZEEIH 2l - eE el
TR M am B BRAF 288 iR T B BUF E E A 88
AR R - FEERZFERFER » %
BRI EEEZARARUREEEARTER
HAR A M IS IRRARRE R R BRESHE - ARRGHE
ERARBELERNEZRET  BYIELY
NAMARBEEMEEERER - BRITEHE
HERTRAMERREEAE - RESHF
HHEEHET AR AR - UL EREME
HROEER2ITA -

AEHBEBEESERNERRERTRER
HE - RAZEBMOERE RIRMER

=R

AR BTV BRREE QA VIR
™ BRAK BEEERNR2013F12H31H
2N BEREEREZALFEZE
BLERASRE  WERREBVBREER
REBRBRANGH 2 WFRHE M RmE

RAKEFREBAT
HE ST

e

PR
SRR
PIERE221E

201443 H25H



CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS
S K% 7S

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

2013 2012
2013 % 2012 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
REVENUE A 26,218,351 30,878,390
Cost of sales SHERAR (20,934,425) (24,388,576)
Gross profit EF 5,283,926 6,489,814
Other income and gains E YA Rz 5 329,970 338,387
Selling and distribution expenses ~ $H%& &5 #532 H (5,078,837) (5,148,884)
Administrative expenses THX (884,645) (874,443)
Other expenses and losses Ei\@i & EE (55,926) (17,930)
Finance costs BB R AR 7 (103,103) (70,241)
Share of profits of associates FE(EEEE N A% T 113,916 67,319
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ADER (ER) 6 (394,699) 784,022
Income tax expense PSR i 10 (311,798) (191,864)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FE&H, (&) (706,497) 592,158
Attributable to: FE(ET
Owners of the parent SARERA 11 (889,634) 381,931
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M 2 183,137 210,227
(706,497) 592,158

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE S®AREBERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HHEAEBMLEESR
EQUITY HOLDERS BRI, (F#8) 13
OF THE PARENT

Basic 2K (HK31.80 cents#&fll) HK13.67 cents 1l

Diluted e (HK31.80 cents#&1ll) HK13.61 cents 1Ll

Details of the dividend are disclosed in note 12 to the financial R B FIEHERIABHREMEL2 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YLK

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

2013 2012
2013 5 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRt T

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEBRF, (FR) (706,497) 592,158

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hi2mEBA

Other comprehensive income LAT& BRI B B H 48

to be reclassified to profit or loss Z B2 ¢

in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BEBINEBR 2

of foreign operations PE 5 =%8 278,033 9,569
Share of other comprehensive loss FELEE = AR

of associates Hiv =M EE (477) -
Net other comprehensive income LAt BERSI RN B S

to be reclassified to profit or loss ik d

in subsequent periods Ef2mk A F5E 277,556 9,569
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHME2EEA

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B MBRHIR) 277,556 9,569
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEZEKA (FE)

INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR wE (428,941) 601,727
Attributable to: eI -

Owners of the parent ISYNEIETZ-PN (666,640) 391,615

Non-controlling interests el T 237,699 210,112

(428,941) 601,727
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CONQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EINANCIAL POSITION
#3873 %

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2013
2013 F
HK$’000
FExT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W MR 14 4,881,318 4,574,405
Investment properties WEME 15 90,597 86,637
Prepaid land premiums FER LS 16 396,276 348,629
Deposits for purchase of items of property, BE¥% - WF
plant and equipment REHBIEE 2ike 23,887 34,881
Goodwill 5k 17 1,746,432 1,727,752
Other intangible assets HinEmEEE 18 40,138 50,382
Investments in associates i /N s 20 704,834 637,013
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 214,129 203,103
Deferred tax assets REFIBE = 29 134,770 229,853
Biological assets EYEE 22 190,798 184,427
Total non-current assets JEMBEELE 8,423,179 8,077,082
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 23 5,866,205 5,075,015
Accounts and bills receivables FEUBR T N =ik 24 1,694,757 2,516,325
Prepayments, deposits TERFIE - e
and other receivables N E A pE Y ERIE 1,547,299 1,700,894
Due from fellow subsidiaries BN EINCIVE 36 704,968 588,635
Due from the ultimate holding company — BASFERR A B 36 38,363 78,961
Due from the immediate holding company B ZRZER 2 AR 36 169 165
Due from non-controlling shareholders ~ MiE A 72 JE1ERR
of subsidiaries A& B R R 36 26,820 19,687
Due from associates NG 20 21,753 4,411
Prepaid tax TR IR 44,301 71,846
Equity investments at fair value through 1R AFEIIAEZE
profit or loss 2SI E 25 13,872 18,746
Restricted bank balances SRRFIERTTAE SR 26 165 22,199
Pledged deposits HEIRF 26 133,655 136,921
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEE 26 2,458,011 1,901,294
Total current assets MENEELE 12,550,338 12,135,099
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts and bills payables EN IR R EE 27 1,191,702 1,791,806
Other payables and accruals HpERsIE R ERTAE 3,626,343 3,149,028
Due to fellow subsidiaries NEESENGIE e 36 2,343,573 2,093,245
Due to the ultimate holding company REBEAEIR A RIFRIE 36 67,027 58,211
Due to related companies Uzl EVNGIE R 36 799,229 769,944
Due to non-controlling shareholders RITB A B2 FEFERR
of subsidiaries &R FIA 36 56,292 37,728
Due to associates REgE R RIFIA 20 248,369 256,618
Interest-bearing bank FTEIRITERK
and other borrowings HEMER 28 2,537,555 2,000,720
Tax payable FERIHRIE 79,496 61,736
Total current liabilities mEBERE 10,949,586 10,219,036

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,600,752 1,916,063

TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEEAER

CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE 10,023,931 9,993,145
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMgNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
83289553 % (%)

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2013 2012

2013 % 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEAER

LIABILITIES REEE 10,023,931 9,993,145
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank FEERTTR

and other borrowings HEMER 28 1,600,000 1,100,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders KB A Bz JEIER

of subsidiaries &R FIE 36 28,541 27,675
Deferred income U A 138,134 71,378
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 29 59,031 96,106
Total non-current liabilities EREaELE 1,825,706 1,295,159
Net assets BEFE 8,198,225 8,697,986
EQUITY &N
Equity attributable to owners BARHEE AELRAE

of the parent
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 279,722 279,719
Reserves i 32(a) 5,866,253 6,525,416

6,145,975 6,805,135
Non-controlling interests IR 2,052,250 1,892,851
Total equity f& A 42 (g 8,198,225 8,697,986
Jiang Guojin SIE® Lu Xiaohui  3ZEEME
Director BEE Director =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
N ST kT S

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

Attrbutable to owners of the parent
BRAREARE

Employee
share-based
Share: compensatio Proposed
premium Exchange e final controlling
S 8 inferests

HKE 000

T

At 1 January 2012 RAOREIALR 9,650 BESH 3246709 219573 1813248 118698 6669623 1844174 8513797
Proftfor the year ERE - - - - 8% - BB 2027 08
Other compreensie ncome fortheyear: ~ FEEBZEUA:
Exchange differences on ranslaion of AEENERR
forelgn operafons LEREE 9684 (115 9569

Total comprehensive income for the year FEREMALE - - - - - 968 - R®l - 6 20112 60177
Evercise ofshare optons fifEmE Ki} I L] (6,719) - - - - - - A® YY)
Equiysetted share opfon arangements ~ RASEERERE 31 - - - - - - - -l - b
Transter of employee share-based TR R a3 s

compensation resenve upon the REERTEE

forfeiture o expiry of share options EHER - - e - - - - 2437 - - - -
Final 2011 dividend paid BRNERSERE . - - - - - - (79 (118698 (118777 - (s
Interim 2012 dividend paid BEODERERE 12 - - - - - - - (170,769 - (170,769) - (170,769)
Transfer from retained profits aREEH=R - - - - 13148 - - (1314 - - - -
Contribution from non-cortroling HEATEAR

shareholders of a subsidiary RRTE - - - - - - - - - -5 51191
Divdends peid to non-contrling WAERRER

fereholders & - - - - - - - - - - (088 (2126%)
31 December 2012 HE A3 E WIS WM KR M R BIEE 6O 20360 CORRBIH  LEDE] BRI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESINEQUITY (CONTIVUED)
BBt ARt (¢F)

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREARG

Employee
share-based
Share compensation Exchange Asset Non-
premium Teserve fluctuation  revaluation controlling
Issued ~account B2 ol Resene  resene  resee’  Retained interests Total
capital Bt BAEE  resene fnds  EXKE  EEEE  pofts Tl KRR equiy
BEfRE  EER EMRE A4HE RRE i i REE 5t BE RasE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Tin Thn THR TAn T Thr TR T ThR THR
(note 32)  (note 32)
(W) (WiE32)

At 1 January 2013 RABFIALR 9719 37,17 36,680 3246709 232,721 951,605 6910 2013620 6805135 1892851 8,697,986
Proftloss) fo the year SRR/ (BR) = = = = = - - (889634) (889,634) 183137  (706,497)
Other compretensie ncome forteyear: ~~ SEEBEEMA :
Exchange differences on ranslaion of REREHR

foreign operations LEREE = = = = .34 = - 23471 54562 278,033
Share ofoher comprehensive loss of associaes R EREEBEAER = = - () = - = = m . )
Totel comprehensiv incomelloss) ortheyear R 2B/ (B8) 88 o = - 47 - - (889634) (666,640) 237,699  (428,941)
Evercise ofshare optons i 3 3 19 (50) = = = = = 149 - 149
Equiysetted share option arengements B EERER 3l = -3l = = = = -3l -3l
Transfer of employee share-based RERER YR
compensafon fesenve upon the EREERIEE
forfeiture orexpiry ofshare options FiEE = -2 = = = - 2T = = -
Transfer from retained profs BREEMER - = - - 16586 - - (16,586) - - -
Dividends paid to non-cortroling RIEARBESH
sterefolders e - - - - - - - - - (78300 (78300)
At 31 December 2013 RAOBBE12A31R 219,722 373671 41,185* 3246232 249,307 1,175,076 6910* 1,110,176* 6,145975 2,052,250 8,198,225
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBREBREEMBRAREFD
HK$5,866,253,000 (2012: HK$6,525,416,000) in the consolidated 4R A & 1 5,866,253,0007% 7T (20124 :
statement of financial position. 6,525,416,00078 7T ) °
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner- ¥ REZE2010F12A31BILFEERN - BA
occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value VMEEERIREMEEENEESHFH
during the year ended 31 December 2010. BAFETER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

E3LH5%E%

Year ended 31 December 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates
Interest income
Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments
Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains)
on equity investments at fair
value through
profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains)
on biological assets
Impairment of receivables
Equity-settled share option expense

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Depreciation

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Loss on disposal/write-off of items
of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of biological assets

Impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of goodwill

Recognition of prepaid land premiums

Provision against inventories
Government grants

BZE2013F 12 A31 HIEFE

REXBCRERE

BBATEM, (E518)

FL TSR B (AR

BERKA
FEIGEEE R RDE A
A BUA
AL ERE
ZBBUA
BAESI AR
ZHESRE
ZBBUA
BAESI AR
ZHESRE
ZRTEER
(Mozk)
EWEEZ A E
e, (ea)
JE YR IRRE

PN B RE AR ST

H A B 5

e

BEMEZ AFE
Yezs

HE M
55 Ko 2% TR B
Z B8

EYEERERR

AT ERE
2B

E =

RBEE ZRIE

EERIE
EREN LIS
TFE#E
BB

56

(&) [)NNe)INe) I INe)]

(G2l o) INe) INe) Ie))

2013

2013 &
HK$’000

FERT

(394,699)

103,103
(113,916)
(25,806)

(35,823)

(228)

4,874

5,899
14,143
7,331
10,604
486,088

(1,227)

4,724
6,248

1,866

18,709
11,610
10,139
122,655
(123,440)

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAT

784,022

70,241
(67,319)
(30,861)

(48,807)

(234)

(3,730)

(5,741)
7,029
12,211
11,777
457,031

(4,292)

10,901
265

7,893
11,039
(106,318)

112,854

1,105,107
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CONSOLIDATED STAEEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (CONTINUED)
.45 %%% (6%)

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

2013 2012
2013 % 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET

Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL, (3Em) (913,845) 615,690
Decrease/(increase) in accounts JEWER R R B

and bills receivables WL, () 809,768 (579,928)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFIA - B

deposits and other receivables N H el IEm A, ($840) 152,579 (252,179)
Increase in amounts due from fellow EESIENEIVE A

subsidiaries 0 (116,333) (519,245)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount BRI A BIRFR

due from the ultimate holding company &2/ (3&10) 40,598 (56,905)
Decrease in amounts due from related Bl A RIRGK

companies Ve = 4,076
Increase in amounts due from N=PNGIE S

non-controlling shareholders (L&A

of subsidiaries N (7,133) (10,177)
Increase in amounts due from associates 5 & 2 &R 5K i (17,342) (2,860)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FERBRR R EE

and bills payables #hn, Cad) (600,104) 233,098
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Efb eI IE R EFTAE

and accruals i, CORd) 578,613 (645,266)
Increase in amounts due to YSEEIGI=NG

fellow subsidiaries FRIEHE N 250,328 1,035,901
Increase in an amount due to the R EIIE IR A A

ultimate holding company FRIAE N 8,816 17,180
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due R EBE R RIFRIE

to related companies i, ORd) 29,285 (114,186)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling R FT/E 2 B 3EHEAR

shareholders of subsidiaries & B SR IEE N 19,430 6,905
Decrease in amounts due to associates  REf& R aRIER L (8,249) (35,532)
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREH)TE

changes, net et 40,513 8
Cash generated from operations KEEBS RS 379,778 801,687
Interest received BUF B 25,806 30,861
Interest paid BFE (103,103) (70,241)
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) RE (BER) BEFEH (1,900) 866
Mainland China income tax paid BT B R REATSEL (203,167) (391,771)

Net cash flows from operating activities ~ A& EES 2 RN FHE 97,414 371,402
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CONSOLIDATED STAEEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (CONTINUED)
.45 %%% (6%)

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in restricted

REZBZHRERE

RIRHIRITEEERR D

2013

2013 &
HK$’000

FERT

2012

2012 4
HK$'000
T

bank balances (3 ) 22,034 (22,199)
Decrease in pledged deposits ERFFOR LD 3,266 2,084
Dividends received from associates [mALE =Nl ) 45,618 54,873
Dividends received from AT HEERE

available-for-sale investments ZIRE 35,823 48,807
Dividends received from equity B AT A ABE

investments at fair value RIS E

through profit or loss 2B 228 234
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BE

of property, plant and equipment MR EIEE TSR0 25,508 24,502
Redemption of held-to-maturity BHZEIERE

investments e = 58,044
Additional investment in R—EE A F

an associate ZREIMEE - (56,633)
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BFE

plant and equipment PEGEIELE 14 (710,582) (1,168,077)
Additions to other intangible assets REAEMEBTEE 18 (93) (1,032)
Additions to prepaid land premiums TERS T &3 AN 16 (47,365) (49,258)
Decrease in deposits for purchase of items BEWE - BFE &

of property, plant and equipment FAEIEE 2R 10,994 17,921
Additions to biological assets HYEEEIE NN 22 (17,122) (12,992)
Receipt of government grants WEI B T 4 B 175,694 132,916
Purchase of available-for-sale investments & & AJ (L EIRE (12,680) -
Net cash flows used in WEREFTA

investing activities LB mEE (468,677) (970,810)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETEZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D TS 508 30 149 21,232
New bank borrowings FIEIRITER 4,673,288 2,017,307
New other borrowings I EAME R 1,046,334 1,726,743
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITER (3,444,465) (925,593)
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER (1,252,285) (1,535,568)
Contribution from non-controlling NEPNSIE =25

shareholders of a subsidiary fRHFEE = 51,191
Dividends paid ERRE = (260,620)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BB 2

shareholders of subsidiaries RS ASAR B (78,300) (212,626)
Decrease in other payables E At RIBR A (86,796) (171,879)

Net cash flows from financing
activities

BMERBEL
2B R

857,925

710,187
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CONSOLIDATED STAEEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (CONTINUED)
.45 %%% (6%)

Year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE 2013412 A31 BILFE

2013 2012
2013 & 20124
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5T FHET BT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBEESEEER
EQUIVALENTS B nFEE 486,662 110,779
Cash and cash equivalents at FeBRe kB
beginning of year £EIAEE 1,901,294 1,789,797
Effect of foreign exchange rate RSB E
changes, net HEE 70,055 718
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEERES
AT END OF YEAR Z{EEE 2,458,011 1,901,294

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReERBRESEEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BT
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E % 26 2,457,571 1,900,961
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ FARRIX =1EH A

maturity of less than three months EIHR 2 fE AR

when acquired TE BT K 26 440 333
Cash and cash equivalents as stated MBARRRRRE

in the statement of financial position MEXRMH RS

and the statement of cash flows MIREEMEER 2,458,011 1,901,294
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QTATEMENT OF EINANCIAL POSITION
871353890 %,

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FiBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ;Fﬁiﬂ_\éé
Plant and equipment R M & 14 83 330
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIE 19 2,106,711 2,106,711
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 2,106,794 2,107,041
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits AR - BS
and other receivables K E A U GRIE 23,518 6,308
Due from subsidiaries I ENEIVE 19 5,992,454 4,639,273
Due from the immediate B RIER AT
holding company RER 36 165 165
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEIIAER
through profit or loss RIS E 25 8,932 13,696
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeE@EAR 26 42,654 25,665
Total current assets BNV EEMRE 6,067,723 4,685,107
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HEERIERERTAE 9,930 92,284
Due to subsidiaries PN =NEIECE 19 389,690 369,511
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STESRITER 28 982,000 519,000
Total current liabilities mEBERE 1,381,620 980,795
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,686,103 3,704,312
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRE
LIABILITIES =L 6,792,897 5,811,353
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETERITENK 28 1,400,000 700,000
Total non-current liabilities JEmEBEEE 1,400,000 700,000
Net assets BEEFE 5,392,897 5,111,353
EQUITY &N -
Issued capital BEITIAR 30 279,722 279,719
Reserves 1 32(b) 5,113,175 4 831,634

Total equity A 4a{E 5,392,897 5,111,353

Jiang Guojin SIE& Lu Xiaohui  3ZEEME
Director S Director EF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA5%% %%

31 December 2013

2.1

2013412 A31H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities:

° processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling
beverage and distribution of still beverage;

o production, sale and trading of grape wine and other
wine products;

° distribution of retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning
products;

° production and distribution of chocolate and other
related products; and

o distribution of other consumer food and beverage
products that are not categorised under the
aforementioned activities.

The immediate holding company of the Company is COFCO
(Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ"), which is a state-owned enterprise
registered in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, biological assets and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0055 %:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.1 fRAEE (%)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

REEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group asset and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0055 %:%00%

2013412 A31H

31 December 2013

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCO
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

UNTING POLICIES AND

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

106 |

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 -
Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA5%% %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, HKAS 1 and certain amendments
included in Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the
adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of the
disclosures for subsidiaries and associates are included
in notes 19 and 20 to the financial statements.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption
has had no material impact on the Group’s fair value
measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS
13, the policies for measuring fair value have been
amended. Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13
for the fair value measurements of investment properties,
biological assets and financial instruments are included
in notes 15, 22 and 40 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA5%% %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(d)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”).
Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit
or loss at a future point in time (for example, exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) are presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments have affected the presentation only
and have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income has been restated to reflect
the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen to use
the new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced
by the amendments in these financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
standards. There are separate transitional provisions
for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments have had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the
previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete
set of financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) (continued)

2.2 EtBRRIEE2EE (&)

@ (&)

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

o HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities
to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and  Hedge Accounting and

HKAS 39 Amendments amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 ERMEMKRERZE B
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B EER ()
(continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, BEMESRE  BEMIEERE LR
and HKAS 27 (2011) HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) ERIZE 105« F105% - BEPK
Amendments — Investment Entities! BB wMEERFE 1297 %

2R BAEGEER

B2 R F 275 (2011 4)
Exest ZIER] - REER!
AERIEE 27 5]

(20114)
CHEN)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BAEMNBHRE EETELEERE?
AR 1458
HKAS 19 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 19 ERGTER BAELFEAFE 199
Employee Benefits — E 1958 BRI IES & -
Defined Benefit Plans: (BETAR) REEFIFTE -
Employee Contributions? 1E B #HtK?
HKAS 32 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 32 ERGTHER BELIELFE 32
Financial Instruments: F 325 &R 2@ T A :
Presentation — Offsetting (BT A) =%k
Financial Assets and BERGHEE
Financial Liabilities*
HKAS 36 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 36 BAEGEER BB GFERIFE 365
Impairment of Assets — #3657 ZAER] BEHE -
Recoverable Amount CCHEN) He@MEET
Disclosures of Non-Financial AT o] BE 1R 25
Assets!
HKAS 39 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 39 BEFGTHER BAELEERE IR
Financial Instruments: %395 2RI T A -
Recognition and CCHEN) ER R GE - T
Measurement — Novation of TAMEEREM
Derivatives and Continuation BETHIIELE!
of Hedge Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies! BE (RBReig =&
WMEREZR
8g)-2E
F 215
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of 2010 & 20144 1 Rz
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs issued in January 2014 20128  ATEAEWBHRE
FEHE AR 2 {EET
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of 2011 F % 2014F 1 A%EMHm 2
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs issued in January 2014 2013FAE  ETERMB®RSE
FEHE AR ZAEET
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January L R2014F 11BN BRI F
2014 EHAIR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 2 R2014E7 81BN AR E
EHAR AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g R2016F 11BN EBHRKRZF
2016 JE HAR AR
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for g mAREERBIARAE - BA FH
adoption A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0055 %:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.3 BHEMEEARERZEBY

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

BHa|EEA (&)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
This phase focuses on the classification and measurement
of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets
into four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement
of financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS
39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles
of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions
were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount
of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CEMEEARERZEEY
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B EER (&)

(continued)

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made some
related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the
corresponding disclosures about risk management activity
for applying hedge accounting. The amendments to HKFRS
9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which result in more risk management strategies being eligible
for hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on using
purchased options and non-derivative financial instruments as
hedging instruments. In addition, the amendments to HKFRS
9 allow an entity to apply only the improved accounting for
own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising on
FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other
HKFRS 9 requirements at the same time.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The previous
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the
HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date
will be determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is
completed. However, the standard is available for application
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with
other phases, when the final standard including all phases is
issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of
an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition
of an investment entity. Investment entities are required to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out
the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group
expects that these amendments will not have any impact
on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG e AR A 22 BB B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

2.3 EfEM
&

8
2R (&)

L

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBRBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

AFEHE

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

ATEIE ()

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, biological assets, financial
assets, investment properties, and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

FEMEERME (&)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

120 |

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings 2% to 18%
Plant, machinery and equipment 6% t0 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction or machinery not yet put into operation is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and machinery
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

REME

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

BEE (TREBE)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of five or eight years.

Water rights are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of forty years.

Biological assets

The fair value of the grape vines is estimated by reference
to independent professional valuations using the discounted
cash flows of the underlying biological assets. The expected
cash flows from the whole life cycle of the grape vines are
determined using the market price of the estimated yield of
the agricultural produce, being grapes, net of maintenance
and harvesting costs and any costs required to bring grape
vines to maturity. The estimated yield of the grape vines is
affected by the age of the grape vines, the location, soil type
and infrastructure. The market price of the grapes is largely
dependent on the prevailing market price of the processed
products after harvest, being crude grape wine.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases, net of
any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as other
expenses and losses in the statement of profit or loss. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in other expenses and losses in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 FESTHBRBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in other
expenses and losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the statement of profit or loss in other expenses and losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively, and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

RERHEMENEE (&)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

BUHRREREE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

TREERE (&)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses and
losses in the statement of profit or loss.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

TREE (&)

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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24 TESTHBREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories, other than the agricultural products which are
measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
“Biological assets” above, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0055 %:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBRBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provisions above;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

2.4 FESTHBRBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, in the period in which the
services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
model or a binomial option pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

ROB/EZN (&)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or loss
per share.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefits are provided to certain staff employed by
the Group. In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, the Group’s Hong Kong employees enjoy
retirement benefits under either the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORS0Q”) Scheme, or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under which employer contributions have to be made. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to both schemes are at a maximum of 10% of the
monthly salaries of the employees. When an employee leaves
employment prior to his or her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing ORSO Scheme
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme. However, in respect of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, only the employer voluntary
contribution amounts are refundable to the Group when the
members leave employment prior to their contributions vesting
fully. The Group’s mandatory contributions vest fully with the
employees when the employees leave employment.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the relevant authorities of the provinces or
the local municipal governments in Mainland China in which
the Group’s subsidiaries are located. The Group contributes
to this scheme in respect of its employees in Mainland China
and such costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

HESER (&)

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of termination of their employment.
The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision has not been recognised in respect of such
possible payments, as it is not considered probable that the
situation will result in a material future outflow of resources
from the Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 FESTHBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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24 TESTHBEREE (&)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

SN ()

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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3. FEEFHERME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends by
certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax rules enacted
in the jurisdictions, is subject to judgement on the plan of the
distribution of dividends.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2013 was
HK$1,746,432,000 (2012: HK$1,727,752,000). More details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

FESEHE R AT (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, investment
properties are revalued at the end of the reporting period on an
income capitalisation approach by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgement, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
are used. The carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2013 was HK$90,597,000 (2012:
HK$86,637,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2013 was HK$23,870,000 (2012: HK$109,582,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2013 was
HK$1,813,799,000 (2012: HK$257,007,000). Further details
are contained in note 29 to the financial statements.

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is
an impairment that should be recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The carrying amount of available-for-sale
investments was HK$214,129,000 (2012: HK$203,103,000).

fEst 2 THABMEER (&)

HIMPF MR ELISHIE  RE
WETIA IR E PR 8 B R A (ER
BBABROEETER - ZFMHE
TERETRER - M&FRZ SR
REIRSR AR BEREREEAE
Al o AR HIERRY - REEZ RIER
MIZRNBLUYERZRITER - LER
TEERBRERRFEZTR 2R
& PR2013F12H31H - AKEZ
REW S 2 FRE{E 490,597,000 7T
(20124 : 86,637,000%7T) °

sl FE SR ot i B AT (R 0 RLES 1B - B2 Bt
REAHEEHERRELERBEE -
EEN THRELEHIEEESEE -
AEEERE AL IR R R ERF &
I B P R R B R R SR AR S 5T 2158
BEEH ERHE - BEERRHRIEE
BEBMNELEHEEER2013412
H318 & & HE & (& /& 23,870,000 %
7T (20124 : 109,582,000 7T) ° 7
2013 12 A31 HM R R R IEE 1B
BRMEB(E A 1,813,799,0003 7T (2012
1 257,007,000 7T) ° #—H 1B
BB R RE 29 -

AEBBETEEDBERAHELE -
RAFETEE  BEEEERAFE
TERELERER  UNETEEANER
BRNERZRE  AIREEREZ
BRTEIE 4 214,129,000 % 7T (2012 4F -
203,103,000 #7T) °
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

TEETHHE R AR (&)

fEst 2 THABMEER (&)

Impairment of receivables is made based on an assessment
of the recoverability of accounts and other receivables and the
timing of their recovery. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires management judgement and estimation.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact on the
carrying value of the accounts and other receivables and the
amount of impairment/write-back of impairment in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed. Net impairment
of receivables of HK$14,143,000 (2012: HK$7,029,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year. The aggregate carrying amount of the accounts
and bills receivables, and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 was HK$3,242,056,000
(2012: HK$4,217,219,000).

The Group’s biological assets are stated at fair values less
point-of-sale costs. This requires an independent valuer’s
assessment of the fair value of the biological assets. Changes
in conditions of the biological assets could impact the fair
value of the assets. The carrying amount of the Group’s
biological assets at 31 December 2013 was HK$190,798,000
(2012: HK$184,427,000). More details are given in note 22 to
the financial statements.
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BT CEFREBRERRPER - R
20134 12 A31 A - ERERFR K EK
Rig - BAA - ke MEMBEKRK
B RRE{EAFE S 3,242,056,00078 7T
(20124 : 4,217,219,000%87T) °

AEBzEYMEER RN FERHEER
AR stEBIEAZBYMAE
MSAEMEELE - EVEEMRR
MESREFEEQNTE  A5&H
M2013F 12A3IAMAEMEER
H 18 &190,798,000% 7T (20124 :
184,427,000/ 7T) - EZ FHIFH XM
BmAR 22 -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on the nature of their products and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the beverage segment is engaged in the processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products
and the distribution of still beverage products;

(b) the wine segment is engaged in the production, sale and
trading of grape wine and other wine products;

(c) the kitchen food segment is engaged in the distribution
of retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning products;

(d) the confectionery segment is engaged in the production
and distribution of chocolate and other related products;
and

(e) the “others” segment is engaged in the distribution of
other consumer food and beverage products that are not
categorised under the aforementioned segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit/(loss) before tax except that interest income,
dividend income, finance costs, share of profits of associates,
as well as unallocated head office and corporate results are all
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid tax,
restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale investments, equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, investments in associates
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

(@) BB ER - WEFITKER I
L %ﬁ& DI M E R E

(b) BREIH RBLEE HER
EEREBNEMAREER

() BHERMPI  RESHETER
BEZF B LFARKRSR

d) HKEEGRIE  ELEERDH
RAOREMERER : &

(e) [Hit]l D& HEHHARL L
ﬂ“*ﬁﬁﬁiu A2 HiHEB R m
'§A7HI_ZDD°

EEBERAEEFARNCLE S HHE
B ENIEEEBEERSEARE R
R - DERIVIDIBE A T 2R
DEEF, (BB (HhEAERH
HIJ/m"/ (B518) z&t&) EITakE -
RARKRBALRES (F18) BAEE
ZBEADER, (1) 2 ERE—
B} WZFTERTNEERNBWA - &
BIRA - BB - EHBE AF) R
MEADBLABE R AR HELE -

»WAET OIELBRAE - B
BOE - ZIRSIBTEY TR
REeRASSEER  THEER
& - mATEFIABR ERRE -
#%%@TZ&E&E@%%M%%

AAEE RARZAEREEL
ﬁ%ﬁo

DWEBTEIETERITEREEM
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZ2013F12R31HLLEE gl

148 |

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
QOther revenue

2k
HETHREP
Hinlhas

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Interest income

Dividend income

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Loss before tax

Segment assets
Reconciliation:
Investments in associates
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

TRRE

#E:

MEHA

REMA

BERK

NGl

e
ANESH

BAE#R

HuEE
5
BT RS
NERAEM
*ARAE
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Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Confectionery Others Total
BRE BERA KERA Efts CH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TARL THT THT

11,388,623 1,847,490 12,276,426 434,933 270,879 26,218,351
148,405 29,064 35,776 8,001 46,785 268,031
11,537,028 1,876,554 12,312,202 442,934 317,664 26,486,382
496,133 (454,728)  (152,118)  (222,674) 30,520 (302,867)
25,806

35,823

(103,103)

113,916

(164,274)

(394,699)

6,490,675  5522,341 4,435,623 439,698 308,131 17,196,468
704,834

3,072,215

20,973,517



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZ2013F12A31 0LLEE

Kitchen food
BERR

Wine

it

Beverage

R

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information:

Net impairment losses
recognised in the statement
of profit or loss

Loss on disposal/write-off of
items of property, plant and
equipment

Provision against inventories

Loss on disposal of biological
assets

Fair value losses on biological
assets, net

Depreciation and amortisation

Unallocated amounts

Fair value losses on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure
Unallocated amounts

HK$'000
TiEn

P15

i

DEREM
ANEEE

2,979,624

afEAE

Rt wEs
RERHRER
LB
3
VE T
JEGAEE
ZIHEBR /M
FehE
HEEMAE
ZER -
EmEECLYE
R 38
TEREH
AOEBE

20,092

4,543
11,749

321,058

BAFESIARS
LERRE
ZAFEER

ANEHE

EUCEY
AORHE

411,720

HK$'000
FiEn

602,601

9,145
66
10,150
6,248

5,899
135,218

311,184

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land premiums.

HK$'000
TiEn

4,825,242

4,039

80
94,367

12,454

17,901

Confectionery Others Total
KERA Efts CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT
66,454 2,204 8,476,125
4,299,167

12,775,292

13,052 - 46,328
35 - 4,724
6,389 - 122,655
- - 6,248

- - 5,899
23,242 - 491,972
14,859

506,831

4874

17,219 - 758,024

758,040*

16

AEAFRXBREAEME  BERR
% EtEVEEREN LIS -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

150 |

Year ended 31 December 2012 Beverage Wine Kitchen food  Confectionery QOthers Total
BEN12512A31BILERE it il FERM NGE At a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr TEx TEx TEx B T
Segment revenue: ikl
Sales to external customers ~ SHEFHREF 11,100622 3836116 14974813 725,660 182179 30,878,390
Other revenue Eft s 112492 77638 15773 9,614 38235 253752
11,222 114 3963754 14,990,586 735274 220414 31,132,142
Segment results PHEE 579,364 h35,678 (229,724) (56,612) 3,783 832,489
Reconciliation: #%
Interest income FIEMA 30,861
Dividend income BEMA 49,041
Finance costs BERK (70,241)
Share of profits of associates  FEfREEE DA 67,319
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated expenses AR (125,447)
Profit before tax G0Nyl 784,022
Segment assets PHEE 6,236,463 5,027,310 5,078,243 501,327 78967 16922310
Reconciliation: £
Investments in associates NN g 637,013
Corporate and other DA REAM
unallocated assets FOREE 2,652,858
Total assets EEBE 20,212,181
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012 Beverage Wine  Kitchenfood  Confectionery QOthers Total
BENE12A31BILERE St il HERM KERR Ao Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TiHr THr THr ThHr THr
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,621,639 866,786 4,516,513 141,335 8,146,273
Reconciliation: #E:
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated liabilties FORaE 3,367,922
Total liabilities BERE 11,514,195
Other segment information: ~ EfEAHER :
Net impairment losses MERBRHER
recognised in the statement  ZAEE
of profit o loss E# 1,004 2,643 1,351 2,011 - 7,029
Loss on disposalfwrite-off nE - BE
of items of properly, HEEEL
plant and equipment HERE/ M 9,782 420 62 637 - 10901
Provision/(write-back FERE/
of provision) against inventories (&) 9,543 (5,378) 4,355 2,519 - 11,039
Loss on disposal of biological ~ HEAMEEZ
assets B - 265 - - - 265
Fair value gains on biological ~ £WEEZATE
assets Yz - 5,741 - - - 5,741
Depreciation and amortisation 78 S8 311,388 117,29 7,189 23,666 - 459,539
Unallocated amounts RORHE 17,162
476,701
Capital expenditure BAEY 698,631 440,326 49253 30,148 - 1,218,358
Unallocated amounts RAEHB 9
1,218,367*
2 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARIBEAEVE BERK
equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land premiums. B BB EEREN TS o

Geographical information i E R

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers BB 90% 2 7N 5 EUL AR R AR B K FE
operating in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group’s non- KEMRER - Uk em T ARELE
current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred HMIBEEI  NEBEHEEBEI0% WIER
tax assets, are situated in Mainland China. )& AN A B ARE -

Information about a major customer FEEXEFER

During the year, there was no customer which individually EARFE  WERBRE-—RTFP2I
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2012: ANESE 2 2FHBHAR10% (2012
Nil). F )
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS . WA - Bl AR WS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA (REE 2 EERE) DIERAEE
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns MBREERESITHNENEEHER
and trade discounts, during the year. BEHE -
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: HEMRARIKESED AT
Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix F&T
Other income Hipg A
Gross rental income WALz 9,621 9,475
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 25,806 22,587
Interest income from BHEFIEBREZ
held-to-maturity investments FEHA = 2,269
Interest income from financial SREm 2 E
products WA = 6,005
Dividend income from AHfHERE .
available-for-sale investments BB WA 35,823 48,807
Dividend income from equity BAFEIIAERZ
investments at fair value through ~ #E=RKREZ
profit or loss SN ON 228 234
Government grants * BRAT 4 B * 123,440 106,318
Compensation income AERA 12,437 23,733
Sale of by-products and scrap items i BIIZE m & EEKHE B 22,186 20,697
Commission income HEWA 98,079 82,304
Others HAtb 1,123 3,459
328,743 325,888
Gains Wz
Foreign exchange differences, net  HEX ZERE - 58 - 4.477
Fair value gains on equity BAFEIIAEBRZ
investments at fair value through ~ #EmiZE 2
profit or loss NEEWZE = 3,730
Fair value gains on investment EMEZ N FE
properties (note 15) Uzt (BE15) 1,227 4,292

1,227 12,499

329,970 338,387

= Various government grants have been received for investments * ALEERS S ABRE) - AE
in certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company’s &ﬁzﬁ’/}ﬁjw%ﬁﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁzqﬂ
subsidiaries operate. There are no unfulfilled conditions or BAHE T &0 - BRI EE

contingencies relating to these grants. MRS 2 sk e B FIE -
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAIEFR (EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZHRBAGERN (BB
(crediting): Her, (GEA) TFI&IE :
2013 2012
2013 20124
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FtaE FHx FHT
Cost of inventories sold ERFERA 20,799,623 24,383,013
Provision against inventories FEEE 122,655 11,039
Loss on disposal of biological assets “£¥)& ER & BX 6,248 265
Fair value losses/(gains) EEEANTE
on biological assets, net BB () - FEE 5,899 (5,741)
Cost of sales $HE R A 20,934,425 24,388,576
Auditors’ remuneration 12 BB B 3,319 2,652
Depreciation e 14 486,088 457,031
Amortisation of other intangible HE & E
assets i3] 18 10,604 11,777
Recognition of prepaid land L
premiums TiHhE 16 10,139 7,893
Minimum lease payments under AR RETF
operating leases in respect e E
of land and buildings i) SRR 2 5008 216,350 251,369
Employee benefit expense EERBAFAX
(including directors’ and chief (BIEESERITH
executive’s remuneration (note 8)): A& F B (KIEE8)) -
Wages and salaries TERES 1,441,230 1,453,483
Equity-settled share option AR A
expense HIRE AR HE A 2 7,331 12,211
Pension schemes RINEHE
contributions * R * 158,431 152,985
1,606,992 1,618,679
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ BEX ZERE - 558 26,083 (4,477)
Other expenses and losses include  EfthF s R EE B
the followings: AT &IE :
Loss on disposal/write-off of W - WE REEIEE
items of property, plant ZHEEsE
and equipment T sH 4,724 10,901
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEREZ
investments JE 1,866 -
Impairment of items of property, U ER S
plant and equipment B 18,709 -
Fair value losses on equity mAFEYARS
investments at fair value ZERNE
through profit or loss Z N TEERE 4,874 -
Impairment of accounts FEUER TR
receivable B 24 11,800 8,210
Impairment/(reversal of H U GRIE
impairment) of other receivables BE/ CRERR) 2,343 (1,181)
Impairment of goodwill EEEAE 17 11,610 -

At 31 December 2013, the Group had no forfeited contributions MR2013F12A318 A&EEHE
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in ER MBI EE RN KRR FEH

future years (2012: Nil). RIRETEIRI R (20124 : &) -

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 1 53
TERRARAR —E-=FK



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS . EERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RERADHITAT -
Group
KEE
2013
2013
HK$’000
FExT
Interest on: FE
Bank loans wholly repayable hERNZHEEEL
within five years RITERK 79,921 42,180
Loans from a fellow subsidiary —HRREMNBARIR—%
and a non-controlling WE%’AE?HEH&H&%
shareholder of subsidiaries ZE®
(note 36) (KizE36) 22,964 23,514
Others HA 218 4,547
103,103 70,241
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. BEERTHHAKTME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to KEER BREFEBHEIIFER
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock AARIFESEmRA ([ EWHRD BE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and BRARKHIEICIKETERECES
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as e :
follows:

Fees: e
Executive directors HITES - -
Non-executive directors EHMITES - _
Independent non-executive BN IFAT
directors )

Other emoluments: HApf e -
Salaries, allowances e EMK
and benefits in kind EWM = 4,388 5,889
Discretionary bonuses BYIBIEAL - 3,133
Equity-settled share option AR A 45 E P AR
expense FX 1,510 2,209
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEI AR 107 165
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options of
the Company, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included
in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

8.

EERTHRAZRME (&)

RUABFE - RIEARQ R BERER
g FTESHRSTAASEEHR
R MER TARRERE - £F15
FRMBERRMFESL - ZFERBELZ
ANHE (EREBRERRRRAE
R) DREHABEE  E2&EFA
AREFMBHRE - XN EBREERIT
BABEN S R E -

(@) BAFHITES

FARBULIFATES N 218
e UlNE

Group

REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBTT
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark WIfESAE 330 300
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI 330 119
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred BB E 330 300
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRAEE 330 300
1,320 1,019

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2012: Nil).

FR - UEABIIFATEEX
EMME (20124 - £&) -
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHARME (#)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BITEE FHTEERTT
the chief executive BEE

Salaries,

allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration

il 1 eyl EfctE
#e REWAE MERA  BRERX 1H3% e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

2013 2013%

Executive directors: ~ HITEZE :

Mr. Jiang Guojin ! TESEE! = 425 = = 39 464
Mr. Lu Xiaohui 2 BB - 205 = = = 205
Mr.Ning Gaoning®  ERELAS - - - 212 - 212
Mr. Chi Jingtao ¢ ERRTE - 800 = 76 = 876
Ms. Luan Xiuju ® BERALS = 2,414 = 242 68 2,724

Mr. Mak Chi Wing,
William © BERRES - 544 = 196 = 740
- 4,388 - 726 107 5,221

Non-executive directors: FEH/TEE :

Mr. Yu Xubo 7 FRRLE? - - - - - -
Mr. Ning Gaoning ® TE‘ B - - - 30 - 30
Mr. Chi Jingtao * EBRELE! - - - 166 - 166
Ms. Liu Ding T &t - - - 196 - 196
Mr. Ma Jianping BETRE = = = 196 = 196
Ms. Wu Wenting ® RXELLe = = = 196 = 196
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

8. EERTHARME (&)

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

HITES  FUTESERT
B (%)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b)
the chief executive (continued)

Mr. Jiang Guojin was appointed as an executive director
and the chief executive of the Company with effect from
17 September 2013.

Mr. Lu Xiaohui was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 17 September 2013.

Mr. Ning Gaoning was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director with effect from
11 November 2013.

Mr. Chi Jingtao was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director with effect from
26 March 2013.

Ms. Luan Xiuju resigned as an executive director and
the chief executive of the Company with effect from
17 September 2013 (The remuneration in her tenure
as executive director and the chief executive of the
Company is HK$2,048,000).

Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William resigned as an executive
director with effect from 17 September 2013 (The
remuneration in his tenure as executive director is
HK$690,000).

Mr. Yu Xubo was appointed as a non-executive director
with effect from 26 March 2013.

Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director with effect from
10 March 2014.

! TE & % ER2013F9 A 17
REZERRARMITESR
TTBRABEL -

2 BREEIB L AR 2013F9A 17
BEZERAARRMITES -

g EEELAN2013F11 A 11
BHITESEATAIERNT
BEo

f BRUBRAER201343[26
AR TE FERTRIFNTT
E=-

2 BEL TN 2013F9 17
ABEARRRRITESRITH
BE (ERITEERITREER
HARS B & A 2,048,000/ 7)) ©

e RS AR 2013F9 A 17
HETHAITES (FRTES
HARIEN 4 /5 690,00087T) ©

/ F 8% £ £ R 201363 A 26
REZERIFENTES -

8 RN L +H201443 A 10
HEFTESERB IR
Bxo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHATME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BITEE: - kHITESERT
the chief executive (continued) BHER (&)
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees inki bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
5 2f RAEE BARGHE]
e & WL BRERX 3% ae
HK$" 000 HK$ 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
TET Tidn Tin TiHn THr
2012 012F
Executive directors: iﬂﬁﬁ%
Mr. Ning Gaoning ERELE - - - 328 - 328
Mr. Chi Jingtao ERERE - 2,600 - 328 - 2,928
Ms. Luan Xiuju ® #ARGILe - 2,190 2,430 328 165 5,113
Mr. Mak Chi Wing,
William B8R - 775 260 266 - 1,301
Mr. Zhang Zhentao®  REFLA - 324 443 161 - 928
- 5,839 3,133 1,411 165 10,598
Non-executive directors: 3FE1{TE % :
Ms. Liu Ding 0T &t - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Ma Jianping SRTEE - - - 266 - 266
Ms. Wu Wenting RYERT - - - 266 - 266
- - - 798 - 798
- 5,889 3,133 2,209 165 11,39
e Ms. Luan Xiuju was also the chief executive of the ® BEHZLTR2012F AR
Company in 2012 and resigned as the chief executive NETEEE, - W 2013 F
and an executive director with effect from 17 September 9 A 17 BB EITHARE KRBT
2013. =

Mr. Zhang Zhentao resigned as an executive director @Eﬁ%?ﬁiﬁé2012¢8ﬂ 9H
with effect from 9 August 2012, BHENITES -

Three (2012: three) non-executive directors and an REAN - =(IIERITES (2012
executive director (2012: one) agreed to waive their Fr =) M—UHITESE
entitlements to directors’ fees totalling approximately (20124 : —fu) AE D BIHE
HK$222,000 (2012: HK$300,000) and approximately 1P & 5+ #7222,000% 7T (2012

HK$172,000 (2012: HK$200,000), respectively, for £ : 300,000/ 7T) F149172,000

the year. Other than the aforementioned, there was % 7T (20124 : 200,000 JT)

no arrangement under which a director or the chief MEEME - B EMEEIN - F

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration NEH At E S /TR L T

during the year (2012: Nil). WEXRERETMMNE 2L
(2012 : £&) o
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
former director who is also the former chief executive (2012:
two directors which included the chief executive), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2012: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company for the year are as follows:

hEEREFHZES

FALEARRFHIEE B —
HAES (AT RATHBAR) (2012
FMEBES (BRTRAER)) &
e EXHEE8 - FA - Kk
% (20124 : =%) K HMZE
ARRBEZHTHAEREE 2 F/E
TEHAE -

Group

REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT

Salaries, allowances e MK

and benefits in kind BEYF&= 6,722 5,230
Discretionary bonuses BITETEAL = 3,319
Equity-settled share option expense &7 45 5 B ASHE B =2 687 933
Pension scheme contributions IRIRETEIER 194 262
7,603 9,744

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

Re#ER GFEERITRMER) 2#
TR T IR 2 ABINT ¢

Number of employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2,000,000 % 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /& 7T = 2,500,000 % 7T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /& 7T = 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& 7T = 3,500,000 & 7T

BEAH
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
2 _
2 _
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2013412 A31H

31 December 2013

9.

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(continued)

In prior years, the non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees were granted share options of the Company
in respect of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration of
Taxation of the PRC during the reporting period, the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese
Resident Enterprises (collectively the “CREs”) and relevant
enterprise income tax policies of the PRC are applicable to the
CREs commencing from 1 January 2013.

Group: KEHE
Current — Hong Kong BNER - B
Charge for the year RAEE R
Current — Mainland China BIHR — B RBE
Charge for the year RAEE R
Underprovision in prior years BEFEDERE
Current — Elsewhere BNER - H iR
Charge for the year RAEE R
Deferred (note 29) JEIE (BI7E29)

10.

hEBREFHZEE (&)

RBEFE  FEFRITRBERS
HoiE B 5L T H AR B LA RS
IR TARRINBLE  BRAFEH
KRB HRERME3L - ZEBREN
NHED R RE R A s R A
R R B E A RN FE IR
RTBEENSRCBRN LRFES
RATHR AR E & = % B R B rO B & 37 5%
A o

Fri&

BENEHEBD RN AFENEE
LM ERRTUSE A 16.5% (2012
F 1 16.5%) BT ERIEL - HibibE 2
FER B M 2 IR RIBA K EEE
ZRVEHERZ RITREGE

REFEBERRGEBDERSHAE
B2 ARRRE THEBRR®E
ERTFEEREE (BB IHEER
®E]) > PEMEREEMEHERH
2013F1A1BEERARFREERE
=,

2013
2013 &

2012
2012 4
HK$'000

FAT

HK$'000
TR

- 1,106
234,748 321,113
13,342 4,669
2,282 2,330
61,426 (137,354)

Total tax charge for the year FEBTIR

311,798 191,864
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRB% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/ AT RAMAXRAR - HEXEBHHER
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in AIFEMATERIER < AR R E M
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are BARBARR (F18) 2BHEBEX
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and b RREREGE cHAIER -
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax ANGERBE (AVAERR) BEERR
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: R HAIER -
Group - 2013 REE - 2013 F
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
EH EIARE HitE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEx T#x TRT
Profit/(loss) before tax Banan|/ (5i8) 320 (393,801) (1,218) (394,699)
Tax at the statutory REEREE
tax rates BB 53 16.5 (98,450)  25.0 (113) 9.3 (98,510)  25.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or TERIE Sty
enacted by local authority * HIEMBIER & - - - (2,705) 0.7 S - (2,705) 0.7
Profit not subject to tax due to AR %EEmEE
concessions ** FB 2R - - (6) - - - (6) -
Profits attributable to associates NGyl - - (28479) 7.2 - - (28479) 7.2
Income not subject to tax BERIHMA (56) (17.4)  (23,811) 6.0 - - (23,867) 6.0
Expenses not deductible for tax Tz T 3 0.9 34,255 (8.7) 438 (36.0) 34,69 (8.8)
Adjustments in respect of B R ETIE
current tax of previous periods i - - 13,342 (3.4) - - 13,342 (3.4)
Effect of withholding tax EREMALKI10%
at 10% on the asillicsivd
dividend income, net va 58 - - (35924) 9.1 = - (35924) 9.1
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B BT ERE B - - (16952 43 (361 296 (17313 44
Tax losses not recognised RERHE - - 470528 (119.4) 36 (29 470564 (119.2)
Tax charge at the Group's REEBURE
effective rate FEZRBEL - - 311,798 (79.2) - - 311,798 (79.0)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 1 6 1
TERRARAR —E-=FK
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

Group — 2012

Hong Kong
&h
HK$'000
T

Profit/(loss) before tax HaLER/ (8R) (31,403)

10.

Frigst (&)
A%E - 20124

Mainland China Elsewhere Total

PEAE
HK$000
a7

773518

2148 N
TAT T

784,022

Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEHENELHE (518 165 193379 250 8,147 194 19344 250
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or ERIE e

enacted by local authority * HIEMBIER &+ - - (9,998) (13 - - (9998  (13)
Profit not subject to tax due to ARBEENES

concessions ** iy - - (1,167) 0.1 - - (1,167) 01)
Profits attributable to associates NGy - - (16,830) 22 - - (16,830) @21
Income not subject to tax BERRLHMA (1,268) 40 (26,975) (35) (2,686) 64) (30929 39
Expenses not deductible for tax FaIfz i 7556 (24.0) 25,580 33 - - 33,136 42
Adjustments in respect of B AR

current tax of previous periods A - - 4,669 06 - - 4,669 06
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the BREMAL 10%

dividend income RinFEHze2 - - 48,570 63 - - 48570 6.2
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BRBRTHENE - - (65,782) (85) - - (65,782) (84)
Tax losses not recognised REDBE - - 33,264 43 587 14 33,851 43
Tax charge at the Group’s REBAWIE

effective rate SEER 1,106 (35 184710 239 6048 144 19184 245

& Under the PRC income tax laws, enterprises are subject to * BIEFRBIEHE - DEEK25%

corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25%. However,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are operating in specific
development zones in Mainland China, and the relevant
authorities have granted these subsidiaries a preferential CIT
rate of 15%.

o In addition to the preferential CIT rate granted to the Group’s
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China, tax holidays were
also granted by the relevant authorities to these subsidiaries,
where CIT is exempted for the first two profitable years of the
subsidiaries and is levied at half of the applicable rates for the
subsequent three years.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$42,428,000 (2012: HK$19,609,000) is included in “Share
of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

B R BB EREN ([EEME
Bil) e R AEEETHEBEQA
TR R BE B0 45 ) 3 R M [ 48 &
X% EHERECETZENBL
Al 15% HBEBEEMEHRE -

o BRAREREM R AR BRRERE TS
NAEREBLEMBHREIN A
MERERTRENBEARLM
5o BDFER R ) & M (B A 2
WEHRMMERAEH - WREE
B = M 6 1R A R ) — S Bk
LEFMEH

Bt & 2 AR TR 1B 42 42,428,00078 7T
(20124 : 19,609,000 7T) * JThgt A
MEBRHEMmRZ [BEBERBEN ]
A o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2013412 A31H

31 December 2013

11.

12.

13.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of
HK$62,532,000 (2012: HK$39,295,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
32(b)).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
during the year (2012: interim dividend of HK6.11 cents per
ordinary share).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share (2012: earnings per
share) amount is based on the loss for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent of HK$889,634,000
(2012: profit of HK$381,931,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 2,797,222,722 (2012:
2,794,663,465) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/loss per share amount
is based on the profit/loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings/loss per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2013 in
respect of a dilution because the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amount presented.

11.

12.

13.

S A TIEE A EERF
(K518)
BE2013F12A31HIEFEF AT
BEANEEGEEEREBET ALRRT
2 B E &k A 2 K5 1862,532,00078
7C (2012 4F : 39,295,0007% 7T) (Fi&E
32(b)) °

RE

ARRBRAFE L EIRE LT IR
(20124 : HIRR B @R E BAR6.11
il e

BATEBERESSE AR
EEREF (B8

BEREANERE (0RF: FRA
M) BBENESRARLTBEREREE
A FE 1l K F £ 55 18889,634,000%
7t (20124 : 3% %381,931,000 %
L) U RAEEBHITMETY
T @ §R2,797,222,722 0% (20124 -
2,794,663,465 %) 5T& o

FREBRT,BEBEDEGLQF
LRRESHE ARGRFEEHM,
EiEETE - AH RN IR ER
BT AR E B AT E BB BB
B - TWAREBREXREF BB
B MERERAAEEEEEBRRER
EITERER S EBRMATHEE
172 BB IAE a8 -

AR HARITERB S T 25 S E
AEBRSHETRREETE - QAR
HEZE2013F12HA31BILFEFRZE
I BBRENERSBIELHE -
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/loss per share BREAREERT EENTE WD

are based on: T

2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fix FHT
Earnings/(loss) BF, (&#8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary FARETEERERZEF],
equity holders of the parent, (E518) A7
used in the basic earnings/(loss) ~ ERREZERA A
per share calculation R (E18) (889,634) 381,931

Number of shares

e 4]
2013 2012
2013 20124
Shares iidv)
Weighted average number of RAREFTESREARRF,
ordinary shares in issue during EBEORFEE
the year, used in the basic BT mAR N
earnings/loss per share calculation g 2,797,222,722 2,794,663,465
Effect of dilution — weighted average ey e - Tl
number of ordinary shares: FHE -
Share options FER = 10,572,983

2,797,222,722 2,805,236,448
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31 December 2013

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013412 A31H

Freehold
land
KA

EE i

HK$'000

TAL

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
TAL

14. Y% - BERRE

Group

iy 1]
Plant,
machinery
and
equipment
BE
i R
HK$'000
TER

Construction
in progress
ERIR
HK$'000
THT

Total
by
HK$'000
TR

Company

LN

Plant and
equipment
BERRE
HK$'000
THT

31 December 2013 R2013%12A31R
At 31 December 2012 and R2012%512A318 kK

at 1 January 2013; 013F1A18:

Cost R 104,776 2,352,708 4,377,021 608,607 7,443,112 2,799

Accumulated depreciation ZHE

and impairment RmfE - (610,341)  (2,258,366) - (2,868,707) (2,469)

Net carrying amount EmFE 104,776 1,742,367 2,118,655 608,607 4,574,405 330
At 1 January 2013, net of R2013E1A18 -

accumulated depreciation HREEHE

and impairment LRfE 104,776 1,742,367 2,118,655 608,607 4,574,405 330
Additions AE - 75,220 270,698 364,664 710,582 -
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (995) (15,461) (13,776) (30,232) -
Depreciation provided ERfE

during the year BE - (102,524)  (383,564) - (486,088) (247)
Impairment iE - (10,399) (8,310) - (18,709) -
Transfers Er = 117,815 359,704  (477,519) - -
Exchange realignment ERAE (3,676) 52,092 66,182 16,762 131,360 =
At 31 December 2013, netof #2013 128318

accumulated depreciation NH2sHE

and impairment LRE 101,100 1,873,576 2,407,904 498,738 4,881,318 83

At 31 December 2013:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R2013512431R
AR
ZithE
RoE

101,100

2,614,255

(740,679)

5,054,593

(2,646,689)

498,738

8,268,686

(3,387,368)

2,265

(2,182)

Net carrying amount

REHE

101,100

1,873,576

2,407,904

498,738

4,881,318

83
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% - BERHRE (&)

(continued)
Group Company
A5E YN
Plant,
machinery
Freehold and
land equipment  Construction Plantand
KA Buildings JE«  inprogress Total  equipment
FELTH BF  HmRkE FRIR B BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiHr T T T T
31 December 2012 ®2012F12 A31H
At 31 December 2011 and 2011412 A31H
at 1 January 2012: R2012%1A18
Cost PR 99,276 2,214,656 3877742 236,820 6,428,494 2,79
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
and impairment RmfE - (534,502)  (2,004,592) - (2539,094) (2.221)
Net carrying amount EHFE 99,276 1,680,154 1,873,150 236820 3,889,400 578
At 1 January 2012, net of R2012€1A18
accumulated depreciation MR EGHTE
and impairment LRE 99,276 1,680,154 1,873,150 236,820 3,889,400 578
Additions RE - 22,163 399,829 746,085 1,168,077 -
Disposalsfrite-off HE /M = (650) (30,769) (3,984) (35,403) =
Depreciation provided FRfE
during the year BE = (79,09) (377,935) = (457,031) (248)
Transfers EL 3 - 118,150 252,375 (370,525) = =
Exchange realignment ER A% 5,500 1,646 2,005 211 9,362 =
At 31 December 2012, netof ~ R 20126128318
accumulated depreciation MR E5HE
and impairment A 104776 1742367 211865 608607 4574405 330
At 31 December 2012: R2012412A318 :
Cost KR 104,776 2,352,708 4,377,021 608,607 7443112 2,79
Accumulated depreciation Z2itfE
and impairment LirE - (610,341)  (2,258,366) - (2868707) (2469)

Net carrying amount FmFE 104776 1,742,367

2,118,655 608607 4574405 330

An impairment of HK$18,709,000 (2012: Nil) was recognised
for certain buildings, machinery and equipment in the
beverage segment with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$18,811,000 (before deducting the impairment loss) during
the year because those buildings, machinery and equipment
had been dormant and/or obsolete.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . E - BERKE (8)
(continued)
All of the Group’s buildings are situated outside Hong Kong. REBHE 2 EFHMRBEB AN
B o
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s buildings M20134 12 A31H  "EBEEA
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately =HEE 4 £189,542,000% 7T (2012
HK$189,542,000 (2012: HK$190,517,000) were pledged to 190,517,000 7T) 2EF - b
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note K BERRITERMIEE FIET
28). (KzE28) °
At 31 December 2013, certificates of ownership in respect MR2013F 128318 REBERF
of certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an A BE BR R E 4 £ 143,315,00078 7T
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$143,315,000 (2012: (20124F : 63,225,000/ 7C) Hy& THE
HK$63,225,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC FiRARIEFERE P BRI L AT AT -
authorities.
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZEEE 86,637 82,361
Net gain from a fair value adjustment &2 1B 5% M & A W E5 F 58 1,227 4,292
Exchange realignment e H 2,733 (16)
Carrying amount at 31 December 712 A 31 H ZBREE 90,597 86,637
The Group’s investment properties are situated outside Hong REB 2 EMEMNEE B AIME
Kong and are held under medium term leases. N AFREATE AR o
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

15. REM=E (&)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

168 |

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties are commercial properties based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2013 based on valuations performed by Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$90,597,000 (2012: HK$86,637,000).

AEECREMFEERMEAFAY
X ARRIEFEREEREMEZM
g FEHLER BYRENESE
R - M2013F 12831 R » B
BEABBRMEMSE — K FRESE
EMEXERARAREAKE 2K
& W) % & # 14 1 /90,597,000 7T
(20124 : 86,637,00047T) °

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

ZEREMELRBLCLAOMAT
BT HA IR B A R
T 34(a) °

DNPERR

TRIVAREBRENEN D FE
BB :

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2013 using

R2013F12 831 HFEATHARFENATLE

Quoted

pricesin  Significant  Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

ER IE IE
THHRE TEEZY FUHESY Total
(B—8) (5=H) (B=R8) #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET THET

Recurring fair value B TNAITRE TR
measurement for: NERE

Commercial properties ik ES - - 90,597 90,597

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
TERRARAR —E-=FK
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31 December 2013

15.

2013412 A31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

EERE

Commercial properties Discounted
[ElERIES cash flow method
BHRBREREE

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or
terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series
of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount
rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish
the present value of the income stream associated with the
asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

15. REY* (#)
AFEESR (K)
WP ATPERREE

EITEASED -

TR EH R ENEETHERR

RENGBETNEREIEZH

Significant
unobservable inputs

FERTBESY

Estimated rental value HK$60 to HK$226
(per s.q.m. and per month) 607&TTE 22678 7T
Bt EEE
(BEAREREA)

Rent growth (p.a.) 5% to 2 5.5%

HekE (85F)

Long term vacancy rate 0% to 2 20%

REZTEE X

Discount rate 5% to £ 6%

BRI X
RRERSTRESE  AFENEA
FHEEFHAMEENNREEE
BRER (B35} EWETE&WWETEH_
ITihEt e ZAES R B ERER
E%‘fﬁ%mu%miﬁﬁu Fﬁ ?ﬂf‘imﬁﬁ
WEFRANTERR &R EAE R H
BEBBNWAIRMNIRE - R
HEBERZEERTE  BARRAUE

[EEiZE —
EZ%IHLH 6 JREmEE = [

Ren N ERELRABNRH
BHARBEIABESRN  BOE
HRAREEE  EZRBHEFEHR
o BENFERERZTBITA (B
MEBRNEE) FE - EHRERER
ERBWEHKRZE  TAEKE
A WEREBEX HERB #EE
B REMAESRAREMEENE
BERMGE  ZEREHELERA
FE ERNEAMRGERTARZ &
REEGFTSREETRIREE -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

15. &Y= (&)
AP EER ()

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental
value and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair
value of the investment properties. A significant increase
(decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate
in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase)
in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally, a
change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value
is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long term vacancy rate.

16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

EREEEERTSHEEFRERE
BAMRIE N Of ) HEBIRE MR
RFEREEM O L) - REZEEX
KERBRREBBARILI Ofd) REE
REMENRFERBRD (GE0) -
—RMmE - AEFEEBEELNR
REHSERHEFRERERYREX
HRERES MEHEERHER
R

16. L&

Group
KEH
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1HZERAE 356,546 315,243
Additions B 47,365 49,258
Recognised during the year FANER (10,139) (7,893)
Exchange realignment e H 11,748 (62)
Carrying amount at 31 December 112 A 31 H ZBRAIE 405,520 356,546
Current portion included in BIENEMNFIE -
prepayments, deposits e R HALEWRIE
and other receivables Z BNEREL 15 (9,244) (7,917)
Non-current portion JERNHAER (D 396,276 348,629

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under medium term leases.

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Groups land use rights
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$17,919,000 (2012: HK$17,789,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note
28).

At 31 December 2013, certificates of land use rights in
respect of certain land of the Group in Mainland China with
an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$86,428,000 (2012:
HK$157,061,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.
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Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° Beverage cash-generating unit
° Wine cash-generating unit
° Confectionery cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of each of the above cash-generating
units has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections ranged
from 12% to 13% and cash flows beyond the five-year period

are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%.

17. GOODWILL
Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx F&T
At 1 January: KW1A18:
Cost B 1,727,752 1,727,793
Accumulated impairment REHRE - -
Net carrying amount REFE 1,727,752 1,727,793
Cost at 1 January, net of R1A1BZKA
accumulated impairment Ik REHmE 1,727,752 1,727,793
Impairment during the year FRRE (11,610) -
Exchange realignment e H T 30,290 (41)
Cost at 31 December, net of M12A31 B2/
accumulated impairment Mk REHRE 1,746,432 1,727,752
At 31 December: M12A318:
Cost [B%N 1,758,042 1,727,752
Accumulated impairment ZERE (11,610) -
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,746,432 1,727,752
Impairment testing of goodwill BEZRER

BREBHAHMBBZEE 2ok
EUATRSELEM (A T2HDE)
AERERIR -

s  HRMREEAEM
s EmBRSELBM
s HNHRMRESELEM

P EREELEMN 2 AJRERKER
TRBEREBEEE - EREEAR
ReERERBEREDFHETEK
BETERRSREREHE - B
MEREMERZBMBEENFR12%
£13% - MAFHEZINRERT
3% ZIBRE T AR o
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

17. B& (&)
BB ZRERNR (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the NREERcELESU  HEREE

cash-generating units are as follows:

N

2013 2012

2013 £ 2012 £

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Beverage okt 1,222,845 1,206,924
Wine ikl 523,587 509,218
Confectionery KER S = 11,610
1,746,432 1,727,752

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the cash-generating units for 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the years immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

In view that the confectionery business has been loss making
in recent years and it is not considered probable that profits
will be available in the foreseeable future, an impairment loss
of HK$11,610,000 (2012: Nil) was recognised for goodwill
in relation to the confectionery cash-generating unit with a
carrying amount of HK$11,610,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss).

201312 H31H K% 2012412 A 31
B EtERSELABU 2 EREER
- DEMAETRR . UTEAERE
RERCHEREMKEBE G AR
RE% > AETTRIZRERIF

HEEFE - RIFEEREENEM
?HIEFEZ%E RERREFEA
ETFERBZFHENE - WHEE
HimSEEM LT o

REBEE - AR BT ERE

Al 3 S AR AR B BB AT K 2 R RE L

G o
2N

ERABRMESOLFR—EHEE
B BEERAEIRAESRSEFIA ]
BEMER R BB BRMI(E A 11,610,000
BIL(RNBRESBR) 2hKBR
mECELBNERATERERSE
11,610,000 7T (20124 : #&) °
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18. HtWELEE

Computer
software
BB
HK$’000
FAT

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Water rights Total
KHE A%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

31 December 2013 2013 12A31H

2012412 431 H
N2013F1H1R :

At 31 December 2012 and
at 1 January 2013:

Cost BN 77,910 10,785 88,695
Accumulated amortisation RET (37,773) (540) (38,313)
Net carrying amount AR FAE 40,137 10,245 50,382
Cost at 1 January 2013, MR2013F1A1H
net of accumulated amortisation RS R RETE 40,137 10,245 50,382
Additions = 93 - 93
Amortisation provided during the year £ P9 $5# 45 (10,447) (157) (10,604)
Exchange realignment PE W % 1,027 (760) 267
Cost at 31 December 2013, R2013F 12 A31H
net of accumulated amortisation AR B R AT 30,810 9,328 40,138
At 31 December 2013: M2013F 12 A31H :
Cost 2 %N 80,377 9,974 90,351
Accumulated amortisation ZFTEE (49,567) (646) (50,213)
Net carrying amount BREFE 30,810 9,328 40,138
31 December 2012 2012%12H31H
At 31 December 2011 and M2011F12A31 8 &
at 1 January 2012: 201241 R18 :
Cost AN 76,893 10,006 86,899
Accumulated amortisation RET#EH (26,161) (349) (26,510)
Net carrying amount BREFE 50,732 9,657 60,389
Cost at 1 January 2012, R2012F1A1H
net of accumulated amortisation TR R RET 50,732 9,657 60,389
Additions NE 1,032 - 1,032
Amortisation provided during the year € sl 4 (11,619) (158) (11,777)
Exchange realignment Rk (8) 746 738

Cost at 31 December 2012,

net of accumulated amortisation

2012412 431 H
ZPRA - B R A

40,137

10,245

50,382

At 31 December 2012:
Cost

Accumulated amortisation

M2012412A31 8 :
AR
Rt

77,910
(37,773)

10,785
(540)

88,695
(38,313)

Net carrying amount

AREDHE

40,137

10,245

50,382
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RB AT ZRE
Company
XA F]
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F&T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE MR - A AE 2,106,711 2,106,711
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in AR RBRRBEERRBAEE S
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of SNSRI N Tl /NI I =
HK$5,992,454,000 (2012: HK$4,639,273,000) and 2 Bl £5,992,454,0007% T (20124 :
HK$389,690,000 (2012: HK$369,511,000), respectively, are 4,639,273,0007% 7T) % 389,690,000/%8
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. 7 (2012 % : 369,511,000787T) * 95
IR - BB RIFESRKEE -
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at ARAalEEKHBRRK2013F12 A
31 December 2013 are set out in note 37 to the financial 31 A FFIE - BRI BHRERMEIT -
statements.
Details of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a subsidiary AEEHEEEAFIEREZ B A
of the Group, which have material non-controlling interests are AR DA R B R AR 2 FFIB
set out below: ;o -

Percentage of equity interest held RS

by non-controlling interests ZBEERDL 35% 35%
Profit for the year allocated to FEER R A

non-controlling interests ZAFEE @A 223,745 229,501
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B R QAR

of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited BRDRIFEERER RS 78,300 212,626

Accumulated balances of non-controlling FEiE AR R 2R R i B A
interests at the reporting dates 22t 2,127,504 1,925,744
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RMIB AT Z2RE (&)
(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated TRIRFE O ALK ER AR
financial information of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage Limited. HiREMEERE - TEESER

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company MBRER AR EER -
eliminations:

2013 2012

2013 5 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Revenue WA 11,388,623 11,102,078

Total expenses FEl (11,074,715) (10,670,688)

Profit for the year FEEF 553,266 500,538

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FEZ2EUN A5 685,991 500,344

Current assets mBNEE 4,539,228 3,557,763

Non-current assets IERENEE 5,854,541 5,601,246

Current liabilities ViEI=N (4,164,942) (3,353,664)

Non-current liabilities e EN=E= (301,990) (486,199)

Net cash flows from operating activities SEEBEE RSN FHE 841,638 757,566

Net cash flows used in investing activities & EEFTH 2 IR & F58 (1,202,998) (838,453)

Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHELEZIRE T 221,700 20,277

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR & NMIR&EBYRIF58 (139,660) (60,610)
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REBtE N T2 RE

Group
rEE
2013 2012

2013 % 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET

Share of net assets DIREEFE 704,834 637,013

The amounts due from and to associates included in SFARHEENTHEBEZHERN

current assets and current liabilities of HK$21,753,000 BARBTERBEEANTRED B A

(2012: HK$4,411,000) and HK$248,369,000 (2012: 21,753,000 7T (2012 4F : 4,411,000

HK$256,618,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free 7B 7T) N 248,369,000/ 7T (2012 4F -

and are repayable on demand. 256,618,000/ 7T) * HAEEA - &
BRIZZEKEE -

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at AEBR2013F12A31 8 2= E 8
31 December 2013 are set out in note 38 to the financial ERNEIMFIEEN T R R3S -
statements.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:

Share of profits for the year
Share of the associates’ other
comprehensive loss
Share of the associates’ total
comprehensive income
Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group’s investments
in the associates

FEAR i A

S YNEIEN
Hit = EEE
NN
EJELONG L
ZASIE )i N
ZIREM

REEAF

20. RIFERTFZIRE (&)

TRINAAELE L T EFEAHEE
RARHERM B ER -

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
113,916 67,319
(477) -
113,439 67,319
Al
704,834 637,013

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

21. IHHERE

Group

REH
2013 2012
2013 fF 2012 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT

Unlisted equity investments

FEETMRERIE

214,129 203,103

The unlisted equity investments were outside Hong Kong.
They were stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of

them in the near future.

FLMBEREGN B BHE 25 -
HRAENAFEGFTHEEEN &

RBELMERREZAFEEZX
ISR E - MUAKAEHRRBETD
fR - AEBEVWESIHNBELE -
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31 December 2013

22. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 22. EYEE
Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
At 1 January R1A1H 184,427 165,833
Decrease due to harvest A U RS (16,411) (13,781)
Additions during the year FRRE 17,122 12,992
Disposal during the year FREE (6,248) (265)
Unrealised gains arising from changes AEEZEHSAFE
in fair value attributable to HIREBMEE
physical changes ZAREBR W 10,512 19,522
Exchange realignment M X 1,396 126
At 31 December R12H31H 190,798 184,427

During the year, the Group harvested approximately 1,708,000
kilograms (2012: 1,607,000 kilograms) of grapes, which had a
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of HK$16,411,000
(2012: HK$13,781,000). The fair value of grapes was
determined with reference to their market prices. The
unrealised gains arising from changes in fair value attributable
to physical changes are included in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Group’s biological assets are grape vines and were revalued
on 31 December 2013 based on valuation performed by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$190,798,000 (2012:
HK$184,427,000).

Significant assumptions made in determining the fair value
of the biological assets based on discounted cash flow
projections are as follows:

(i)  the grape vines will continue to be competently managed
and remain free from irremediable diseases in the
remaining estimated useful lives; and

(ii)  the expected prices of grapes are based on the historical
average district prices.

RAFER AEEEFHEKD
1,708,000 A7 (2012 % : 1,607,000
D) - BRFERGET HERK AR
16,411,000 7% 7T (2012 £ : 13,781,000
BT BEZAFETEWENE
Ee AEEEH SN TELREEME
EZABERWGCEEERRRRT

M2013%F 12310  AEELEMEE
2HnEEN  YHBIEXAER
BRELIE S NS 1§ R EE -
BARAR - E#EER 190,798,000
T (2012 4F : 184,427,000 7T) ©

ERUARSREEETENEEL
RFERMELZ ER/REWT

() DEEBEEEELEE  RG
T2 ABRAT T
=R

() BEZEEEDRIEES
SSEVTVS S
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22. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS(continued) . EMEE (&)

Fair value hierarchy ATEEER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINAREEEMEERN R FER
hierarchy of the Group’s biological assets: EER

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2013 using
R2013F 12 A 31 BRATHFRFEN D FE
Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

ER IE IE
TERE UBEE2H FTABRZY Total
(%8—FE) (8=FE) (B=R8) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THET THET

Recurring fair value S TSR B MR
measurement for: NFEFE
Grape vines BEH = - 190,798 190,798

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - A FEFEEF EHFZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BB EmETHEE  TEEE=[E
into or out of Level 3. HEITE A KB -

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the TRB TS Y E EEITHER
key inputs to the valuation of Biological assets: HANBEREREELH

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs

EER% FEFTBESH

Grape vines Discounted Estimated grape price 275102 14.8
BEl cash flow method (HK$ per kilogram)
BIRRERE) HEAEER (BATAT)
Price growth 0%-10%
BB IRIE

Estimated production 98-988
volume (kilogram/mu)

EErEE (AF/8)

Discount rate 8%-14%

BhIR &

Age of vine (year) 15-45

BEHER (F)
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22. £YEE ()

22. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

DNEER (&)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A
market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected cash
flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as life of
vines. The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour
that is a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less rental expenses,
labor costs, utilities and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income is then
discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated grape
price, market price growth rate per annum and the estimated
production volume in isolation would result in a significant
increase (decrease) in the fair value of the biological assets.
A significant increase (decrease) in the discount rate in
isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in
the fair value of the biological assets. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated grape price is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the grape
price growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the estimated production volume.

23. INVENTORIES

Raw materials =
Work in progress ERE

Finished goods

BRMBRBASREE  AFELRA
EREAEFHAMARNNEMNEE
MR ° R R R E R s i) —
HRBSRENTEAR - TIHITEMRL
REEANTERARSRE N EHETHE
BEEARAIRATIRKIRE -

BEenENFHERFELRABMR G
BENARRBAAEEFRES M
RE - BENRHBEREXTISTR
(RMEERNELE) 2 - EHRE
MERBERENHEEEER - ATK
A RHFBE R REMLENEIE
ERMAE % EZREHLEENE
BAEMAETTRRRE -

BETEEER  MHERFEERR
AEtEEEBEAEE M Ofd) HEH
EMEENRFHEAEEM ORD)
BERRERARIE I Ofd) KEEE
WMEEHNRFERERD (BMN) > —
mE - SEAEEERELNRR
MEHSENEEERFIBERER
FHREAEH REFEELRRA

25 .

23. &

Group
TEE
2013 2012

2013 £ 2012 £
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

2,402,038 2,182,747
14,808 73,449
3,449,359 2,818,819

5,866,205

5,075,015
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24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24. BYWERARRREE

Accounts and bills receivables R R E IR
Impairment A

Group

REE
2013 2012
2013 5 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT F&T

1,741,047 2,550,398
(46,290) (34,073)

1,694,757 2,516,325

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally for one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its accounts and bills receivable
balances. Accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of impairment, is as follows:

Within 3 months =EAR
3to 12 months —EAAZE+=—AR
11to 2 years

—FEWFA
Over 2 years BB

BIEPI AREREFZE 51K
RBEBREERNL  —RAEHE
FRENK - EEH-—KNF—E=
A BREFHRBEEERLR-
AEBEZRERFBEBITHEREER
WA KRB IEEEFIEE - BRBE
ERBREREK SRERETHE
B - ERX LIRE - A KRR
SESRRETREFL 2 RBRR -
BEERRZETREELTES - KN
SEYEREUEREREESRT A
EAERREMERERTR - &
WERR KRR R TETR

A BB R BR R B R 2 W BR R e R R AR
RREZ BB HBRIRER S0
T~

Group

= EE
2013 2012
2013 % 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH T FA&TT

1,476,198 2,097,276
204,526 352,725
6,857 65,999
7,176 325

1,694,757 2,516,325
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24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. EWERRKREE (§)
(continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts FEWERFOR B EZ T -
receivable are as follows:

Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx F&T
At 1 January MR1A1H 34,073 27,493
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BERREEE (M:E6) 11,800 8,210
Amount written off as uncollectible PN Az BR A M 8 < SRR (826) (1,624)
Exchange realignment b X 1,243 (6)
At 31 December R12H31H 46,290 34,073
Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts it SRR ERH R IS ER R E R
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts W BR R 2 B E 4946,290,0005% 7T (2012
receivable of HK$46,290,000 (2012: HK$21,807,000) with a F 1 21,807,000/8 ) © ZEEUREER
carrying amount before provision of HK$124,695,000 (2012: BT 2 BREE X 4 124,695,000 5 7T
HK$21,807,000). (20124 : 21,807,000 7T) °
The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to B B3 B < 1 Uk BR 5% T B 5 1A B R
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion R BFEER - FEHZERERERE
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. EBn e S [E] o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. EWERRKREE (§)
(continued)

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables that FEME B 2k H R R E BB 2 FE U AR 5%
are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SR ZERAITIT -
is as follows:

Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F&T
Neither past due nor impaired FEHTARRE 1,426,487 2,383,098
Within 1 year past due BHI 1 F AR 188,293 49,664
More than 1 year but less BEA1FA L
than 2 years past due BAORME 861 54,618
More than 2 years past due BEA2FA 711 -
1,616,352 2,487,380
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a KRB ABEZ EREER T EZ H
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no MW EBRERER SEREFA
recent history of default. g o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B ERRE 2 U ER KTy B %
to a number of independent customers that have a good BEEAAEERGLHRTFZBUR
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the FER - ERUELR  AAAES
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision RE ARZESHEBZEEEETE
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as HIREREHENHER B BEK
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and O WU ENERZEERIELRE
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. B o
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

24. BYERRRRE (&)

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2013, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the Mainland China (the
“Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of HK$9,092,000
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion
of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
Endorsed Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the
full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated
trade payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the
Group does not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed
Bills, including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the
trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year
to which the suppliers had recourse was HK$9,092,000 as at
31 December 2013.

Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2013, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of HK$171,719,000. The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity from one to six months at the end of the
reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills
have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.

AEHEHRR 2 EMEE

M20135612A31H - AEERESE
THEBREPBEAERITEANK
H 18 /39,092,000 T2 & T EKE
E(EERR])  WEERNTZEMH
FRANENESRER((EED &
ER& - AEEEREKED R K
¥ BREZSEEZBEMAE
WER - B HEBEREERE
KRIEEE B ERNE BRI 2R
EE - 5&K& AKELEREAEH
BERBRZEMEN  BRATARE
=HHE  BERIEREERE R
201312 A31 8 * F AN BRE
MEERBBEZRNESRRZER
E B 4%/ 9,092,000 & 7T °

EEMIHERZERMEE

M2013612A31H ' AEERESE
THEBRETBEAERITEANE
TRKER (TBUBRERRE]) - B
BRI ZFHERNEMNE SRR -
IRMEEA% /171,719,000% 7T « A
BERR - BUBRERZBOEMHAN
F—EXEA - REVPEREE -
ZEREARERITHRAR - BUBERR
BREAHAKEHRRERE ([
BHR])  EEZRR FEECEER
BRBUERERREA AR E R &
o FHitt - HEBURERZBURER
SEEEEERMNESRANEHER
B AEBRFESRBUERRARE
AR EREBURERRBENARTRRS
mMmEHN RS ERRRESNER
HE - EERR - AEEFES KR
HERARBEN A FELTEK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. EWERRKREE (§)
(continued)

Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety
(continued)

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss
on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been
made evenly throughout the year.

E2HEHRRZERHEE (H)

FR - AKEYERNEREUHERR
B2 AREREMIRE - AREIYEH
RESREAFAXREE - BE
ERFERGIFRET

Company
¥INE
2012 2013 2012

20124 2013 5 20124
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET T

25. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 25. AV EIABRE 2SR
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group
REE
2013
2013 F
HK$’000
THET
Listed equity securities aBLEm
in Hong Kong, AR
at fair value RAFEE 13,872

18,746 8,932 13,696

The above investments at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 26. RERBEEEER - ZR
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND FIRITESR R EEBER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Group Company
r5H RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 F 20124 20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FET
Cash and bank balances Re MiRITHES 2,457,736 1,923,160 42,654 25,665
Time deposits EETF 134,095 137,254 = -
2,591,831 2,060,414 42,654 25,665
Less: Restricted bank B R
balances * RITHE SR (165) (22,199) - -
Pledged time [EEEwia:E
deposits: TF
Pledged for TR
short term RITEN
bank loans 4 8
(note 28) (Pt5E 28) (116,273) (116,273) - -
Pledged for bills HENEE
payable i
(note 27) (M5x27) (17,382) (20,648) = -
Cash and cash Rekie%HE
equivalents 1HE 2,458,011 1,901,294 42,654 25,665
# The amounts were restricted solely for the purpose of the & ZECTEERREERBEREERY
acquisition of a 100% equity interest in an entity. 2 EPRRHE -
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash RWERAR AEENARE (TA
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits R&]) AEfvHsNReEE
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted - ZRBIERIT A R A R B AR
to HK$2,244,422,000 (2012: HK$1,892,169,000). The RMB TR A2,244,422 0007 7T (2012 4F -
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under 1,892,169,000/8 7T) - AR AT 5
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and BABAEMEYR - A - BIEFHE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign KB SN E R0 K2 45 B - TEE R B
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EERHRTE  NEBEEESBETE
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct TTONEZREB 2 RITIEA R LR
foreign exchange business. s o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

27.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of within one year depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances,
restricted bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

26.

27.

BeRESLEER - W
HIRTRB R EAER

(&)

FRNRITZRE TIREHRTHER
MEFAEZFEFNRRIAE - RF
AEBAE ZREFRME - BUE
HERNIE—FATNEZHEER
3 2 & 52 8 7 B A SRR SR BRERR 2. o
RITHER - RBHIRTEHR LD ER
FREAROYEZOREZEER
W2 IRAT ©

BERMEERE

R R R 2 BN RARRER
BRREZRHOTOT

Group

AEE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Within 3 months =@ARA 1,073,196 1,685,228
3 to 12 months —EAZE+=—EAR 92,656 93,914
1 to 2 years —FEMFNR 18,356 10,067
Over 2 years BB F 7,494 2,597
1,191,702 1,791,806

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and ERERRER AT E - —RAOM

are normally settled in one to three months and one to six
months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to HK$17,382,000
(2012: HK$20,648,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Group

2013 2012
2013 & 2012F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIRFIE (%) H#A ThEx  BBEMNE(%) = THL

Current SE
Bank loans - secured FITER - BEA 0.62-6.00 2014 293,817 0.66-6.00 2013 283,410
2014 2013F
Bank loans - unsecured ROTER - EERA 1.25-6.00 2014o0ron 2,198,535 098538 2013 oron 1,465,655
demand demand
20145 201355
REA eyl
Other loans - unsecured HinEH - EEA 5.60 2014 45,203 5.04 2013 246,655
20145 2013F
2,537,555 2,000,720
Non-current FHH
Bank loans - unsecured ROTEH - 2EH 0.90-1.20  2015-2016 1,600,000 0.98-1.48 2014 1,100,000
20156-2016 F 2014F
1,600,000 1,100,000
4,137,555 3,100,720
Analysed into: i
Bank loans repayable: BEERITER
Within one year or on —ENEE#%
demand RRAEE 2,492,352 1,754,065
In the second year FoF 200,000 1,100,000
In the third to fifth years, F-FEERF
inclusive (PEERME) 1,400,000 -

4,092,352 2,854,065

Other loans repayable: BERCEMER
Within one year —EREIH 45,203 246,655

45,203 246,655

4,137,555 3,100,720
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. %*tu\fﬁ?fﬁ?kﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁk
BORROWINGS (continued) (#&)
Notes: BT -
(a)  Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: (@) AEBEZIBHRITERIIANATS
TEVERELR :

(i)  mortgages over certain of the Group’s buildings, which () EHRAESBEEEBERLELYD
had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately /£189,542,0007%7T(20124F
HK$189,542,000 (2012: HK$190,517,000) (note 14); 190,517,000/ 7T) 2 & TEF

(Hf3E14) :

(i)  mortgages over certain of the Group’s land use (i BEHEAEEEERLRELY
rights, which had an aggregate carrying amount of /17,919,000 7T (20124
approximately HK$17,919,000 (2012: HK$17,789,000) 17,789,000 7T) 2 & T i
(note 16); and FA%E (fix16) : &

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time (i) EHRAEESFR 116,273,000
deposits amounting to HK$116,273,000 (2012: 7 7T (2012 £F : 116,273,000 7%
HK$116,273,000) (note 26). T0) ZETFEBFER(HIFE26) °

(b) Except for bank loans of HK$349,752,000 (2012: (b) K& M 2013412 A31H 349,752,000

HK$310,752,000) denominated in United States dollars and #7T(2012 4 : 310,752,000 7T) B

HK$239,803,000 (2012: HK$665,968,000) denominated RITEFIAZFEITFHE K& 239,803,000

in RMB as at 31 December 2013, all other borrowings were B7T(2012 £F 1 665,968,000787T) JA

denominated in Hong Kong dollars. ARBEEIN FTEEMERAET
B

The other loans at 31 December 2013 represented loans of MR2013412 831 H @ HMEZRIIA

HK$45,203,000 (2012:Nil) from a non-controlling shareholder SEMBARZIEERREREEZE

of subsidiaries of the Group. These balances are unsecured 3£45,203,0007% 7T (20124F : #&) °

and bear interest at the rate of 5.6% (2012: Nil) per annum. ZERBEERE KBS F56E

(20124 : &) WFIRGHS

The other loans at 31 December 2012 represented loans of R2012%12831H HME R
HK$246,555,000 from COFCO Finance Corporation Limited PREEHEZEZENB AR IR
(“COFCO Finance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. BAEREELAR ((FEFK]) BEX
These balances were unsecured and bore interest at the rate 246,555,000 7T - ZE @B A EK
of 5.04% per annum. 1 BB F5.04EMFIRETE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Company

2013 2012
2013 20124
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIFIE (%) L) TALT  EBAE%) 38R ThEL
Current SE
Bank loans - unsecured RIE - EEA 1.40-2.09 2014 oron 982,000 1.06-191  Ondemand 519,000
demand gyl
2014 &5
&EA
982,000 519,000
Non-current FEH
Bank loans - unsecured RITET - ERA 0.90-1.09 2016 1,400,000 0.98-1.48 2014 700,000
2016 F 2014F
1,400,000 700,000
2,382,000 1,219,000
Analysed into: o
Bank loans repayable: BEEZHRTEN:
Within one year or —F R Ee
on demand ERAEE 982,000 519,000
In the second year FoE = 700,000
In the third to fifth years, F-EEERE
inclusive (BIEERME) 1,400,000 }

2,382,000 1,219,000
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2013412 A31H

31 December 2013

29. IRFERIR

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the REBNELCHIEBEREE 2 ZE
year are as follows: PO

29. DEFERRED TAX

EEBIRAE

Deferred tax liabilities

Group NEE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

investment
properties,
biological assets
and acquisition
of subsidiaries
REWE -
EYEER
WEB T A =]

Withholding
- el taxes Total

AFERE
HK$'000
FHT

AMB #st
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET

At 31 December 2011 and M2011412A31H

at 1 January 2012 N2012F1A1H 50,132 - 50,132
Deferred tax charged to RAFEBRZREN

the statement of kg2

profit or loss during the year IEERIE

(note 10) (FF7E10) 7,349 38,202 45,551
Exchange realignment b 5 P 423 - 423
At 31 December 2012 and M20126 12 A31H

at 1 January 2013 N 2013F1A1H 57,904 38,202 96,106
Deferred tax charged to RAFERZREN

the statement of il v

profit or loss during IRERTIE

the year (note 10) (FF7E10) (88) (38,202) (38,290)
Exchange realignment b 5 1,215 = 1,215

At 31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

59,031
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IREFIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Group rEE
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
Provision taxable profits
against  Impairment  FAAREH Unrealised Deferred
inventories  of receivables  RIRFERH Accruals profits income ([ Total
GERE EUWSERE  EOER ERER AERER FERA it &it
HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSO0D
TAL TAL TEL THL ThR AL TAT THL
At 1 January 2012 HANRELALR g7l 7463 4639 BOR 29 - 559 16893
Deferred tax credited/(charged) REEERRRRRA/
tothe statement of profitor loss (HB) ZERHE
duing te year (nfe 10) (H£10) 72 66 10488 9625 60,666 718 7060 18905
Fxchange realignment ERRE - 1) 58 %) - - 5 55
At 31 December 2012 and at RO12E12A31BR
1 January 2013 31518 159 8124 109582 42650 60995 718 765 229853
Deferred tax credited/(charged) RAEEBRRERTN/
to the statement of profit or loss (k) ZBRHE
during te year (nfe 10) (H10) 1,068 945 (87769  (558)  (3335) 19983 6388 (99,716)
Exchange realignment ESHE 22 240 2,057 1,248 511 335 220 4,633
At31 December 2013 HA3E 128318 1,249 7419 23870 38316 28147 2103 14733 134770
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEBREPBEKEZRIE A
HK$1,802,903,000 (2012: HK$246,440,000) that are 1,802903000/87T(20124F : 24644000078
available for offsetting against future taxable profits to a o) M EAEIE 2 ARERRRRIE RS
maximum period of five years of the companies in which the 2 EARI AP S AR SR FEERES FI| o NS
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in France B ANFE R EER 2 1574 10,896,000
of HK$10,896,000 (2012: HK$10,567,000) that are available 7 75 (2012 4 : 10,567,000 7T) » ]
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the HEABE 2 ARERETEHARE
company in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have SHA R ERBUR T - RRZEEIERE
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have BERREEMRAE—RREEZHEBAT):
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some METRAEERT T AEBAZSE
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will g MU ERZESHERREERE
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BE-
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095355 0%%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

29. EERE (%)

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises which
are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprise (“CRE”). The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China or
offshore incorporated enterprises which are regarded as CRE
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the approvals received by the Company from the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
and most of its subsidiaries are regarded as CRE and relevant
enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to the
Company and these subsidiaries starting from 1 January
2013. As a result, the Company and these subsidiaries are
therefore no longer liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by their subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of retained earnings generated from 1 January
2008 to 31 December 2012. Accordingly, the Group has
reversed recognised deferred tax liabilities in respect of the
aforementioned withholding tax amounting to HK$38,202,000
which was attributed to certain of the Group subsidiaries
established in Mainland China with a plan to distribute
dividends in the foreseeable future and no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes on the unremitted
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries or associates established
in Mainland China at 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBTT
Authorised: VETE ¢
4,000,000,000 FREEOI0B T
(2012: 4,000,000,000) @AY 4,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares (20124 :
of HK$0.10 each 4,000,000,000 %) 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAT -
2,797,223,396 FREEOCI0B LY
(2012: 2,797,191,396) T 2,797,223,396 %
ordinary shares (20124 :
of HK$0.10 each 2,797,191,396 i%) 279,722 279,719
During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 32,000 ANEE 0 32,0001 B B #E AT 2 3R
share options were exercised at the subscription price of BREZRBESRA2E T (MFF
HK$4.952 per share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 32,000 31) 1T - BEEE1732,000 K=
shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before HECIOEB T 2K GH  RIRESNKE
expenses of HK$9,000, of approximately HK$158,000. An (B 217 29,0008 T 2 8I) #4
amount of HK$50,000 was transferred from the employee 158,0007% JT ° 50,0008 JT (& 17 {5 &
share-based compensation reserve to the share premium A& AE T FR (& B IR AN 45 5 5 B (R e o
account upon the exercise of the share options. ZERMRER -
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference SERQNABDBEITRA 2z L@
to the above movement in the Company’s issued share capital % FARSFMAT -
is as follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total

ERTROBE ERTRE RORER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR

At 1 January M 20124
2012 1A1H 2,792,891,756 279,289 9,650 288,939
Share options exercised AT AR 4,299,640 430 27,521 27,951

At 31 December 20124
2012 and 12A318 K
1 January 20134
2013 1A1H 2,797,191,396 279,719 37,171 316,890

Share options exercised BATEE A 32,000 3 196 199

At 31 December M20134%
2013 12H31H 2,797,223,396 279,722 37,367 317,089
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31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 31 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 November
2006, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The Scheme became effective on 21
November 2006 (the “Effective Date”) and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
senior management personnel and key employees of the
Company, and provide eligible participants with an opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the issued shares
of the Company at the date of the adoption of the Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
granted to each eligible participant pursuant to the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the relevant time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of its
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the relevant time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

31. BT S ()

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. The exercise periods of the
share options granted commence subject to the applicable
vesting schedule and in any event end on a date which is
not later than seven years from the date of acceptance of the
share options, subject to early termination thereof as provided
in the Scheme.

The exercise price shall be determined by the board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer; (b) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; or (c) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 27 September 2007, a total of 20,619,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group (the “2007 Options”). The exercise price of the 2007
Options is HK$4.952 per share. The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$4.85 per share.

The following 2007 Options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

hOREF 3
THEE
HK$

per share
BTER

MR1ALH
FRRM
FRITE

At 1 January
Lapsed during the year
Exercised during the year

4.952
4.952

2013
2013 &

Weighted
average
exercise price

Number
of options

BRERE

BRER NR H BB 28 A Wi
e BRIMBRENTTES (AR

REGHNFEY) BEmIfA TG e
EMBIER SRS F ERERK
AT EIFTEA BITE R AR LEMY IBSTERRID ©

TREREEEET - jtéE?%L‘AT:
IEZE%%_ (a)E’\E%’]“‘ EE/% 9P|:|
RGRBRAT ([BP]) §RAME
RFTERMETE D) REERENA
HRT F(E e % AR P& A mERT
D2 FHWRHE : S(c)kih 2
-

BREYEETRHAAKRBRAKE
FRBERAGRE 2R -

20079 A 27 B » ARBIFHALDA]
ETEERAREETREAASKE
HeMtAR TS M 4% & £ 20,619,000 17 8
P (12007 F BB A #E ) = 7% 2007 4F
BRENTEE/STR49528TT -
SZFER T B RE B B AN 2 R R B
W ERER4.85ETT

7 - R8I TH2007 S HRE
HsRATE -

2012
20124
Weighted
average
exercise price
INHEF 3
IEE
HK$
per share
BT

Number
of options

B ESE

000
T4

‘000
T

(734)
(32)

4.952
4.952

(949)
(4,300)

At 31 December W12 A31H
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

31. BT S ()

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

196 |

The weighted average closing price of the shares at the dates
of exercise of share options during the year was HK$7.45
(2012: HK$8.19).

The exercise price and exercise periods of the 2007 Options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Number of options granted to

FARITERREE B &I -FH
U T E A 7.45%8 7T (20124 : 8.19
7BTT) e

PR $RE HAR M R AT 2.2 2007 G R i
ZATEERITERNT -

RHBEREXE Exercise
Directors  Employees Vesting period price® Exercise period
E= =] BEH  TEE* 1T
HK$ per
‘000 {0/00] share
T4 T BITER
290 1,347 1,637  27-9-2007 to £ 26-9-2009 4952 27-9-2009 to & 26-9-2014
404 2,566 2,970  27-9-2007 to £ 26-9-2010 4.952 27-9-2010 to & 26-9-2014
785 3,637 4422  27-9-2007 to £ 26-9-2011 4.952 27-9-2011 to & 26-9-2014
1,479 7,550 9,029
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * AR R HEITHAR « BITARSHE

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

On 29 March 2011, a total of 30,880,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group (the “2011 Options”). The exercise price of the 2011
Options is HK$4.91. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.80 per
share.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) . BIRAESTE (&)
The following 2011 Options were outstanding under the FN - RIEZETEI TS 2011 FEE AR E
Scheme during the year: AT -
2013 2012
2013 20124
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
InREFS of options IS of options
THEE BREXE TEE EEAREEE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
per share T4 per share F1n
BTER BITER
At 1 January R1A1H 4910 28,580 4910 30,480
Lapsed during the year FRERM 4910 (1,680) 4910 (1,900)
At 31 December W12 A31H 4910 26,900 4910 28,580
The exercise price and exercise periods of the 2011 Options AR BRoR M AR T{E 2 2011 SR B IS e
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as ZITEERITERNT
follows:

Number of options granted to

RhBRERE Exercise
Directors  Employees Vesting period price* Exercise period
B2 =] BEH TEE* Cigcd

HK$ per

‘000 {0/00] share

T T BILER
656 4,780 5436  29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2013 4910 29-3-2013 to &£ 28-3-2018
656 4,710 5366  29-3-2011 to = 28-3-2014 4910 29-3-2014 to £ 28-3-2018
656 4,710 5366  29-3-2011 to &= 28-3-2015 4910 29-3-2015 to & 28-3-2018
656 4,710 5366  29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2016 4910 29-3-2016 to = 28-3-2018
656 4,710 5366  29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2017 4910 29-3-2017 to & 28-3-2018

3,280 23,620 26,900

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * fi A 22 REAT AR - BATALRR S K
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in IRAH IR A SE LS &) - RIBE AR
the Company'’s share capital. ZITEERTHE -
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31. BT S ()

The fair values of the 2007 Options and the 2011 Options of
the Scheme granted during the years ended 31 December
2007 and 31 December 2011 were HK$32,227,000
(approximately HK$1.563 each) and HK$47,124,000
(approximately HK$1.526 each), respectively, of which the
Company recognised a share option expense of HK$7,331,000
(2012: HK$12,211,000) during the year ended 31 December
2013.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2011 were estimated
as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option pricing model and a binomial option pricing model,
respectively, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

Date of grant B H
Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%)
Expected volatility (%) TE AR 08 (%)
Historical volatility (%) BAETE (%)

R (%)
BREERF A ()

Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of options (year)

Weighted average share price INREE PR B
(HK$) (Bm)

RIFZ AT &N B = 20074 12 A31 H
&20115F12A318 L F E & H &
2007 FEEMRE R 2011 FBEREZ A
B 5 R 732,227,000 7T (815 4
1.5637% JT) &47,124,0007% 7T (
#1526/ 7T) » HRARRBRE
Z2013F 12 A31 B L FE#RER
¥ B X 77,331,000 JT (20124 :
12,211,000 #7T) °

REZE 2007 F %2011 12 A31 HiE
BFEARNARANGEE 2 BRE 2
DHETIRER TEBIREE B2 5 A
N - FFRHT R EERA R AN
HiEEEA LG YEERK
B R 2 IR R MR A » DRI %
B 2B ABUE -

2011 Options
2011 FERRE

2007 Options
2007 G EERR e

29 March 2011
20113 H29H

27 September 2007
200749 A 27 H

2.109 0.8
33.716 30.570
33.716 30.570

2.40 4.102
7 5
4.910 4.952

The expected life of the options is determined with reference to
the vesting term and original contractual term of the Scheme
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that
the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.
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31 December 2013

31.

32.

2013412 A31H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 32,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 32,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of HK$3,200 and share premium of HK$205,000
(before issue expenses of HK$9,000), as further detailed in
note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, a total of 35,929,400 (2012:
38,375,480) share options remained outstanding under the
Scheme. The 2007 Options and the 2011 Options outstanding
at 31 December 2013 had remaining contractual lives of
0.74 years (2012: 1.74 years) and 4.25 years (2012: 5.25
years), respectively. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 35,929,400 (2012:
38,375,480) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately HK$3,593,000
(2012: approximately HK$3,838,000) and share premium
of approximately HK$173,200,000 (2012: approximately
HK$184,997,000) (before issue expenses).

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 97 to 98 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits
of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
in Mainland China has been transferred to reserve funds
which are restricted as to use.

The Group’s capital reserve includes:

(1) the differences between the consideration and the
book value of the share of net assets acquired/
disposed of when there is a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control; and

31.

32.

ER#ERTE (&)

RE R TT1E 32,000 17 BBAHE - BHUR
A @] 817 32,000 A% 3 i A & 3,200 7%
TCET IR K2 205,000 /8 7T AR (2% B ($0
BREE1TFI 9,000/ TTHT) - E£—F&F
BRI R SRR EE 30

R|EHR - SHEIET HRITED
BE % #E & #£35,929,40017 (20124 :
38,375,480153 ) ° 20074 } 201 1 FEEML
N 20134 12 A 31 B MR TER BB
EFIRE LR S 5 &0.744 (2012
F:1.74%F) K425 (20124 : 525
F) o EARRBEENEAEETN2E
T AR TR A B R I E AR A R 3%
735,929,400 J% (20124 : 38,375,480
1%) gEHNE A% K BB IINIR AN 93,593,000
7 T (20124F © 493,838,000/ 7t) &
%19 3% (B 49173,200,00078 7T (20124 :
47184,997,000/8 7t) (MK #EITH X
Al) °

EAE]
(@) AKE

FEEEFRBEFE RS
EREEBZIINETEESE
BEM B HE L HABARDY
B -

RETINGELE L BRAN R
AR NRBE TR BN
RASRBERE BN BN EE
BRERBIRHzHREEA -

REEZ EARERHRE

(1) ERAREHENBR
™ fri & A R P A R
mHREE - s H
EEEFERERME
FriEE HEBEFEL
REEZER R
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31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

32. RESERVES (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

(2)  the contributed surplus which represents:

(M)

(ii)

the excess value of the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor under the group
reorganisation in 1991, less the goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates which remains eliminated against
the capital reserve; and

the excess value of the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor under the
reorganisation as completed during the year
ended 31 December 2006.

On 15 April 2008, the board passed a resolution in
relation to a share premium cancellation pursuant to
Section 46 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
which was approved by shareholders on a special
resolution on 19 May 2008, and was later approved
by the registrar of companies of Bermuda on 3 June
2008. Accordingly, the share premium accounting for
approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was transferred to the
contributed surplus during the year ended 31 December

2008.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. f#f& (&)

(b) Company (b) AT

Employee Retained
share-based profits/
Share compensation (Accumulated
premium reserve  Contributed deficit)
account ESRA suplus  RERR/ Total
ROEER SEEMEHE BABR  (RHER) At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BT THL THL THL THr

At1 January 2012 R2012¥1A1R 9,650 3625 4759977 205512 5,008,764

Total comprehensive loss TER2EEER

for the year ek - - - (39,295) (39,295)
Exercise of share options ~ {T{EREMRE 30 21521 (6,719) - - 20,802
Equity-settled share RALEERE

option arrangements 7 31 - 12211 - - 12211
Transfer of employee HREERIER ek

share-based compensation  ZIHIEERES
reserve upon the forfeiture or ~ RAEE

expiry of share options G - (2,437) - 2437 -
Adjustment on 2011 dividend 2011 R EH8E - - (79 - (79
Interim 2012 dividend paid ~ EIR2012FRHARE 12 - - - (170769 (170,769)
At31December 2012and  H20126 12 A31H

1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 37,171 36,680 4,759,898 (2,115) 4,831,634
Total comprehensive income ~ AFEZEMA

for the year bk = = = 274,064 274,064
Exercise of share options TipERiE 30 196 (50) = = 146
Equity-settled share RALEERE

option arrangements Zi 31 = 7,331 = = 7,331
Transfer of employee HRERIER Mk

share-based compensation  ZIHIREERES

reserve upon the forfeiture or - FRAKE

expiry of share options G - (2,776) - 2,776 =

At 31 December 2013 R2013512A318 41,185 4,759,898 274725 5,113,175

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 20 1
TERRERAT =K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA5%% %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

32. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i)  the difference between the underlying net assets
of subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor
under a group reorganisation in 1991; and

(i) the difference between the consideration payable
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation
completed during the year ended 31 December
2006.

On 15 April 2008, the board passed a resolution in
relation to a share premium cancellation pursuant to
Section 46 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
which was approved by shareholders on a special
resolution on 19 May 2008, and was later approved
by the registrar of companies of Bermuda on 3 June
2008. Accordingly, the share premium accounting for
approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was transferred to the
contributed surplus during the year ended 31 December
2008.

In addition, the Company’s final dividends were
distributed out of the contributed surplus of the Company.

The employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. f#fE (&)
(b) Company (continued) (b) ZA&ARQF ()
In addition to the retained profits of the Company, under BRARE 2 RERFISN - BIEE
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed RIEIBIFRENE ARAEZ
surplus of the Company is also available for distribution ABBARTN A5 R T HEARER o
to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot SN - ARAEE NIIER TG
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of FIRIVRTRE + D RBAR
its contributed surplus, if: #RH 2 FRIH ¢
() the Company is, or would after the payment be, ()  ARABEEHEDIRES
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or OAEERSEEE ok
(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would (i) ARREBEZAEREE
thereby be less than the aggregate realisable value FHRLEMERE &G0 #
of its liabilities and its issued share capital and REE - AEEHTREAR
share premium account. BHRER=-EAFT 2R
B o
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. AEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant REERAR - AEEIL \EMEKRL
contingent liabilities. NEME -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s contingent REERAR - BBWMERAREHE A
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements were as NRILARBERT :
follows:

Company
YN
2013 2012

2013 F 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET

Guarantees given to banks in connection Bt —fMIE A RIER 2
with facilities granted to a subsidiary BE M RRITIRMH 2 ER 387,500 387,500

At the end of the reporting period, the banking facilities RIERR - BIEBEAQ R RRITIRME
granted to a subsidiary subject to guarantees given to banks ZERMEBETFHB AR ZIRITREE &
by the Company were not utilised (2012: Nil). RENAH (20124 : £E) -
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34. KREHENZTHE
(@) As lessor (a) #EHBEHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) REERBEEHOLHENHER
under operating lease arrangements, with leases JEWE (ME15)  LiHEmz
negotiated for terms ranging from three to twelve years. HBBR=ZE21+=F1% - —&M
The terms of the leases generally also require the T BAZIERIEERR A
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic & - WETAAE MR EERT
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market NFARES °
conditions.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total REERAR - NREEREBEHEHEE
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable PETAL 2 DA A & FH A FE R
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: ZARKEES BT -
Group
AEE
2013 2012
2013 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Within one year —FR 7,883 6,682
In the second to fifth years, E_RERF
inclusive (BEEREWF) 15,826 22,354
After five years AFE 17,796 20,132
41,505 49,168
(b) As lessee (b) {ERBEMEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under REERBEEHOLHEERSE
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are THAEWE  WEHOLHD
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years. ZHHR—FE+F1E -
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, KEHENZTH ()
(continued)
(b) As lessee (continued) (b) 1ERBEMBA (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RBERAR - NEBRBESITH
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable LA RN 2 RRKER S
operating leases falling due as follows: BRI -
Group
AEE
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Within one year —FR 129,371 66,521
In the second to fifth years, E_RERF
inclusive (BIEEREWF) 127,325 65,105
After five years AFE 61,930 53,275
318,626 184,901
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EXREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed E%E(\‘J:YW%I%(b)ﬁ%}l‘tz,@%ﬁ%"]ﬁk
in note 34(b) above, the Group had the following capital BN REBRBREHRBEATER
commitments at the end of the reporting period: A

Group
rEH
2013 2012

2013 F 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TET

Property, plant and equipment: W% - B NREE
Authorised but not contracted BEREERTD 84,587 26,610
Contracted, but not provided for EEEEE e 138,201 275,719

222,788 302,329

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no RBEHKR - AR F W EERHRIE
significant commitments (2012: Nil). (20124 : £®) -
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

36. BEALRS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed () BB mERE MM TTFTHEE 2
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the REESRIN REBREAFEE
following material transactions with related parties during NEREATHETZERZ SN
the year: N

Group
REE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Transactions with fellow EA[F KB
subsidiaries: NEZRS -
Sales of goods* HEEm™* (i) 187,299 101,128
Purchases of goods** EEEM (i) 8,366,573 8,776,182
Service fee income* RIS BULA * (i) 50,451 42,595
Rental expenses* HeEZH* (i) 41,122 30,790
Service fee expenses* RSB H * 0 7,531 4,476
Interest expenses FMEZ W (ii) 21,889 23,514
Transactions with the ultimate BBy AR
holding company: NS P
Sales of goods* HEEM™ 0) 1,752 9,864
Purchases of goods* BEER” (i) 88,167 198,871
Rental expenses* HeEZH* 0) 17,798 20,223
Service fee expenses* PRIFBZ L * (0 2,915 2,913
Transactions with associates: WIS NF RS
Purchases of goods** BEEm** (i 2,290,916 2,124,494
Compensation income BN (M = 2,101
Commission income HEWA ) 34,993 19,542
Transactions with related HEENR 2R 5"
companies®:
Sales of goods* HEEM™ 0) 7,139 54,945
Purchases of goods* BEEM* (i) 2,073,952 2,849,957
Service fee income* PRI BUA * 0 1,133 -
Service fee expenses* AR B * (i) 53 -

* %

These related party transactions also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
discloseable in accordance with the Listing Rules.

A certain portion of these related party transactions are

connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

discloseable in accordance with the Listing Rules.

i Related companies are companies under significant
influence by the Group’s ultimate holding company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTRF (E)
(continued)

(@) (continued)

Notes:

(i)  These transactions were carried out in accordance with () ZERGHIEBEBESLEFE
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties MR 2 R R AGHHETT ©
involved.

(i)  FBFAXELERRFEIHL

(i) Interest expenses arose from the loans from COFCO B ZEERREEARIE
Finance, which are unsecured, bear interest at the rate FBH04E (20124 : 5.04E
of 5.04% (2012: 5.04% to 6.10%) per annum (note 28). %£6.10F) &8 (FizE28) °

(b) Transactions with the ultimate holding company (b) BHEERAEZEBRARETZIRS

Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered into BREASEEEPEEBRI Y &

between the Group and COFCO, the Group was granted Tz - AEBEBRERT

the exclusive rights to use certain trademarks for its A TRNEEERMEREA

kitchen food business. The licensing fees for the current HETEE MAFERBEFE

year and the prior year were waived by COFCO. ZRFTREBERERRESERR -
(c) Commitments with related parties (c) EHERIEALZARE

Pursuant to certain lease agreements entered into REAS B EPEEE N B

between the Group and COFCO Plaza Development RElFEESERER ARG

Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of COFCO, the Group’s future METHER - K 2013F 124

minimum lease payments amounted to approximately 31HAREE R K& NHEHENHKE

HK$60,695,000 as at 31 December 2013. #/5 60,695,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Outstanding balances with related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Except for (1) the loans due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group’s subsidiaries of
HK$45,203,000 (2012: Nil) which are unsecured,
bear interests at the rate of 5.6% per annum and are
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period; (2) amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary of the Group of HK$28,541,000 (2012:
HK$27,675,000) which are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within one year; (3) amounts due
to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries of
the Group of HK$31,277,000 (2012: Nil) which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year; and (4) amounts due to the ultimate holding
company of HK$14,550,000 (2012: Nil) which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year,
the remaining balances with the holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries, associates, related companies and
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

ySEGIEERI
PR A E BB AR R X
RIRETEIHER

Short term employee benefits
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

36. BEALXRZ ()

(d)

(e)

BAEATRAEEKNERQF
FERBRRZ AR EBERE

BROR—2AREEKNE QA
I % B fX 3R B 5145,203,000 %
7T (20124« &) mEE M
REFL6EFENMNARNRSE
HRE-—FREE QREAHK
[ — [ Bf /B8 & 3] Ik 22 AL AR 3R K
18 28,541,000 T (20124 -
27,675,000/87T) REEMR - 2
ERTHER—FAEE: Q)
R—BARE BB R F IR
B #IE 31,277,000 % T (2012
F 8 REEAR  2EREAR
—FREE RAOREKEER
A A5kIE 14,550,000 7T (2012
F:8) REEAR  2EREAR
—FREEIN  ARERBEAR
Pzt GNCIRNCE =N
BRE - BEAE RIFERAR
MESBRYEER 28RS

AEBTEEEAS 2R
Group
REH
2013 2012
2013 % 2012 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FR&T T
5,708 10,041
1,510 2,209

Total compensation paid to key
management personnel

Z RN R

NFEIEEEAER

7,325 12,415

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA5%%: %99

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(f)

Transactions and balances with other state-
owned enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases of
raw materials, property, plant and equipment and other
assets, receiving of services, and making deposits and
borrowings with certain State-owned Enterprises, other
than COFCO and its affiliates, at terms comparable to
those with non-state-owned enterprises. The directors
consider that transactions with those State-owned
Enterprises were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and that dealings
of the Group have not been significantly or unduly
affected by the fact that the Group and those State-
owned Enterprises are ultimately controlled or owned by
the PRC government. The Group has also established
pricing policies for products and services, and such
policies do not depend on whether or not the customers
are State-owned Enterprises.

36. BEALXRS (&)

()

HAMBEECENRSRE
23

AEEEEMEERRETOHD
ERZRTEBRFREERS
R BEREEMEAME
EHREERALEFNEE (5
BWIBERER]  ANFEAKHE
HERUEACRETNEZRS
BREETNENHEER  BER
M X - BE KRB R EM
BE  BXRG - LHETERE
NEBBRRIAINBEE XS
FOMETR - FLRX HHIGRREIE
BELERZIEFMEL - EFR
o BEMBEACENR S RE
AEBEERBBETETHE
g - AAKEEBLFBRFR
RIEFIXBEENBRELEENES
WRBAXBTERE - AREE
I E M ARTS B E BEER - T
FEEBRILTNBRREFEE R
BERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2013 are as follows:

China Great Wall Wine
Co., Ltd. *
HERRESBAERAR

Yantai Greatwall Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd. *
BEaRMBEXEBEEGRAR"

Qinhuangdao Huaxia Greatwall
Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd. *
REBEERMBEBRAR "

COFCO Greatwall Winery
(Yantai) Co., Ltd. *
FREABEE (Ba) ARAR"

COFCO Huaxia Greatwall
Wine Co., Ltd. *
HEEERNEEEERAR "

COFCO Huaxiahong Wines &
Spirits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. **

HIEEEADEE ORI

BRAR

210 |
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Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL
S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R E R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B R EARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
BB ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B EARE

37. XEMBAR ZFHF

RAREENEAREE2013F12

A31AZFBNT :

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB180,000,000
AR # 180,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,0007T

RMB146,900,000
AR # 146,900,000 7

RMB200,000,000
AR # 200,000,000 7T

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,0007T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

IEEK

Production and
sale of grape

wine and
beverage products
FERFEHEN
REREHE @

Sale of
grape wine

HEFEE

Wholesale of
grape wine

HEIHEE

Production
and sale of
grape wine

EENEEREE

Production
and sale of
grape wine

HEREEREE

Wholesale of
grape wine

HEFED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 37. XEMBARIZFHTE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and business registered capital the Company Principal
Bl BRTZER AR, activities
S R AR it B AEMEREE N TEER
COFCO Junding Vineyard The PRC/ RMB140,000,000 55 Production
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China AR # 140,000,000 7C and sale of
FPREETBEHAR AR ** rhE B AR grape wine
HEREEEER
COFCO & Arrive Vine Plant The PRC/ EUR500,000 58.38  Plantation of vine
(Yantai) R&D Co., Ltd. * Mainland China 500,000t 7T and production of
HEREMERE A B R B AR related products
(B8) HEARAR* BEEER
HERBER
COFCO Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd. * ~ The PRC/ RMB11,760,000 100 Wholesale of
HIEREER AR Mainland China ~ AR# 11,760,000 70 grape wine
B, B KR HEFEE
COFCO Foods Penglai The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China A R® 1,000,000 7T grape wine
FRAEMERERLE" R B KR HEIEE
Shandong COFCO Junding The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 55 Sale and
World Famous Chateaus Mainland China A R# 10,000,000 7T distribution
Club Co., Ltd. ** FRE B AR and storage of
IWERPIER T R B grape wine, spirits,
AL AR AT and other related
products
BFEL - ZUAR
H it BB )

HE - D RHR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

COFCO Shaoxing Winery
Co., Ltd. *
FRRAEERR AR

Huailai Greatwall Vine Base
Development Co., Ltd. **

BRGERMBE G
BRAR**

COFCO Greatwall Sungod
Chateau (Huailai) Co., Ltd. **

FREMRTERL (%)
BRAR

COFCO Greatwall (Zhuolu)
Wines Co., Ltd. *
HRERW OFB) 88 RBRAR "

COFCO Greatwall Wine
(Ningxia) Co., Ltd. *
HERNEESE (FE) BRAR*

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL
S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
RE R EARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R BARE

37. TEMB AR ZHE (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB68,670,000

AE#68,670,0007T

RMB6,860,000
AE#6,860,000 7T

RMB1,000,000
A% 1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000

A% 1,000,0007T

US$16,080,000
16,080,000 7T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

100

75

100

100

100

Principal
activities

IEEK

Production and
sale of

Chinese yellow
rice wine
HEEREETRE

Vil

Plantation of vine

EEE®

Production
and sale of
grape wine

EENEETSEE

Wine processing
and bottling, sale
and distribution of
wine products
BEBEMIR
£ HEK
DIEBEEmR

Import and export
of grape wine and
related materials
EHOEERR
HEEH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Shenzhen Le conté
Marketing Services
Co., Ltd.**

AT eHEHFRAR

COFCO Le conté Food
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. *
HigeFRD ORI BRAF

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited
IR O T AR AR

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(China) Investment Ltd. *

FRERT O AT (FED) 1
BRAR

Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages
Co., Ltd. **
R ARTERRAR AR **

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL
S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BIARE

Hong Kong
B

The PRC/
Mainland China
B BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B B AR

37. TEMB AR S (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB15,000,000

AR 15,000,000 7T

US$24,994,370
24,994,370% 7T

Ordinary
HK$2,463,217,002
TR
2,463,217,002 7T

US$30,000,000
30,000,000% 7T

US$15,500,000
15,500,000 27T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

Principal
activities

IEEK

90 Distribution of
chocolate
products

AR NER

100 Production and
distribution

of chocolate

products

HERDH
IRNER

65 Investment
holding
BEER

65 Investment
holding
BEER

32.5%

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
FEHERAEE -

58 MBCx
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Limited *

BETEA AR ARAR ¥

Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola

Beverages Company Limited *
R O RS ER AR *

Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Limited *
ETH R DA AR AR *

Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Limited *

HERPRA O LRHERAR

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Xinjiang) Limited **
HIE R QAT KL (3T5E)

BRAR

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL

S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R EARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B R EARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B R EARE

37. TEMB AR ZHE (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

US$11,700,000
11,700,000 7T

US$8,000,000
8,000,000% 7T

RMB23,000,000
AR #23,000,0007T

US$5,000,000
5,000,000 37T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,000,0007T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

65

65

65

65

52

Principal
activities

IEEK

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE

8 KA

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
REEIREE

SHE Rl

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
BRI EE

$HE Rl

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
REFEMEE

$EE R B

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
REFEREE

$EE R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Jiangxi) Limited *

FE R O AT E (1)
BRRA"

COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (Shandong) Limited **
HE R QAT EEERE (LUER)
BRAR

COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (Jinan) Limited **
FE R O AT E ()
BRAR

Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage
Co., Ltd. **
JERA ARTEERRRT R IR A R **

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Inner Mongolia) Limited **

RIE AT A ATERE (WRE)
BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL

S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

37. TEMB AR S (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB40,000,000
AR #40,000,0007T

US$12,500,000
12,500,000 27T

US$5,000,000
5,000,000 27T

US$19,500,000
19,500,000 27T

RMB48,000,000
AR 48,000,000 7

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

Principal
activities

IEEK

65  Beverage hottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE

8 KA

48.75*  Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE
#HE MBcix
48.75*  Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE
#HE MBEcix
48.75*  Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE
#HE MBcix

43.55%

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE

#HE MBcix
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 37. XEMB AR ZFH1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and business registered capital the Company Principal
Bl BRTZER AR, activities
S R AR it B AEMEREE BREEDL TEXK
COFCO Food Sales & The PRC/ RMB370,000,000 100 Distribution of
Distribution Co., Ltd. * Mainland China AR # 370,000,000 7 consumer pack
HRERMEHERAR R B ARE edible oils and

other consumer
food products

DI NEER

REMEER R

COFCO Foods Management The PRC/ US$10,000,000 100 Research and
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China 10,000,000 % T development in
HERBEEARAR " FRE B AR food, wine and
beverage,

management and

consulting services
RERFEERR
BRI
B8 NGR AR

Vifia Santa Andrea Limitada Chile CLP7,750,000,000 100 Exploitation and
= 7,750,000,000 % |t & operation of

vineyards,

production and

sale of grape wine

REMEEEER

HERHEETER
COFCO Wines & The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape
Spirits (Huailai) Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  A&K# 1,000,000 7¢ wine, brandy
Pielz (EK) HEARAR " F B EARE and beverage
HERBE

BB MRt

COFCO (Ningxia) Vine The PRC/ US$7,040,000 100 Plantation and
Plantation Co., Ltd. * Mainland China 7,040,000% T sale of vines,
hig (ZE) §5BEARAR  TE/PEKRE production and
sale of grape

BELEEEE

BAEER

HERE
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0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Jinan Junding Hua Yue
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.**
EEEBRENBEER
BRAE

Beijing Junding Hua Yue
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.**
IERETEENAE
EEBRAT

COFCO Coca-Cola Supply
Chain (Tianjin) Limited*

8 R O AT e 8
(R#E) BRAR*

Top Glory Wines & Spirits
Europe SAS

Société Du Chateau de Viaud SAS

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL
S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
BB RE

France

5E

France
B

37. TEMB AR S (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB2,890,000
AR # 2,890,000 7T

RMB2,890,000
AR # 2,890,000 7T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

EUR4,150,000
4,150,000 47T

EUR3,920,000
3,920,000 B 7T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

Principal
activities

IEEK

55 Hospitality and
conference service

BIE R &R R

55 Hospitality and
conference service

BIE R & E R

65 Retails of bulk foods

and relevant

materials, information
consulting and

management

HERm KA
RENEE -

EEwAREE

100 Investment

holding
REER

100 Exploitation and

operation of

vineyards,

production and

sale of grape wine
HELEEFEE -
HEREERIEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Hebei) Limited **

g A A AT 4EAREY (AldE)
BRAR

Tibet COFCO Coca-cola

Commerce & Trade Limited*
PR O EEEER A"

Jinan Junding Hua Yue Wine
Co., Ltd. **
EERRENBRERAE

Beijing Junding Chateau Wine
Sales Co., Ltd. **
IERBEREERHERR AR

COFCO Greatwall Winery
(Xinjiang) Co., Ltd. *
FREREEE (@) ERAF*

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HMRIL

S R AR it B

The PRC/
Mainland China
R BARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B BIARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R BIARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
BB RE

The PRC/
Mainland China
B EARE

37. X EMB AR ZFE (&)

Nominal value

of ordinary issued/
registered capital
ERATLER
AEMEREE

RMB83,000,000
AR 83,000,000 7T

RMB2,000,000

AR # 2,000,000 7T

RMB100,000

AR 100,000 7T

RMB800,000

AR #800,0007T

RMB38,900,000
AR #38,900,0007T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG 3
N

325

65

55

55

100

Principal
activities

IEEK

Beverage bottling
production, sale
and distribution
RERIREE

#HE MBcix

Beverage sale
and distribution

REHEE )

Wholesale and
retail of

packaged foods
HERTER
BERM

Sales of Wines

HEBREM

Production
and sale of
grape wine

HERHEREE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 37. TEMB AR 2FH1E (E)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of ordinary issued/ attributable to
and business registered capital the Company Principal
Bl BRTZER KA TIRELE activities
R AR i B AMEREE BRABSL FTEEK
COFCO Greatwall Huaxia Chateau The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 Production
(Changli) Co., Ltd. Mainland China  AR# 1,000,000 7T and sale of
RIERMEEDRR (B%) R, R B AR grape wine
BRATE FERHEERER
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd.  The PRC/ RMB58,211,932 48.75 Wholesale of
ERBEARMBRAF Mainland China AK#58,211,9327C packaged foods
R B A RE HEBEERM
& Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises * INTTRBERE
**  Sino-foreign equity joint ventures > HNEEDE
" These are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the i ZEHABARNBIEERE Fﬁ%@ﬁjz
Company. Accordingly, they are accounted for as subsidiaries W%’Aﬁjﬁ' ﬁﬁﬂ@$ﬁﬁj¥ﬁ%%2
by virtue of the Company’s control over them. AAEEHEmMS AKNB AR
A The company name changed from “Huailai COFCO Greatwall A E%Qﬂ%ﬁ 5\2013%3)5] 20 EIEEEL
Sungod Chateau Co., Ltd.” with effect from 20 March 2013. BRAFBERBERTBHEERAAE
Bk o
All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the UA_EFB X 2B QR B AR RRE
Company. BRE -
Except for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, Top Glory Brehrgnl O %8R AR AR ~ Top
Wines & Spirits Europe SAS, and Société Du Chéateau de Viaud Glory Wines & Spirits Europe SAS &
SAS, the statutory audits of the above subsidiaries were not Société Du Chateau de Viaud SASS) -
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member LI R R IRl A T oK F TR
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. EBFIR K EHBRNEMKE R
AETTAEBZ o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FRINRARBZMBRR - MESR
in the opinion of the board, principally affected the results for GRE ZEMBAT A AFERE
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the BELSATEIBRAEBEETF
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion BZ2EEBH - EFLRE - T
of the board, result in particulars of excessive length. EMBARZFHBERESIBARBR

T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0I5 %%

31 December 2013

2013412 A31H

38. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates
31 December 2013 are as follows:

Nanjing BC Foods Co., Ltd.
ARPERMARAR

Hangzhou BC Foods Co., Ltd.
MNP ERRBRAF

CBPC Limited

Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing
Holdings Limited

Nominal

value of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE
HMEAEE

US$19,000,000
19,000,000 % T

US$20,000,000
20,000,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
@M% 10,0008 7T

Ordinary
HK$29,000
L@k 29,0008 7T

38.

as at

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
Eal A At
RARE

The PRC/
Mainland China
BB AR

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B ARE

Hong Kong
]

Hong Kong
)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the board, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of all associates would, in the opinion of
the board, result in particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the board, the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over the above companies as the boards
of these companies comprise representatives of the Group,
who participate in the policy-making processes. Accordingly,
they are accounted for as associates of the Group.

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.

The statutory audits of the above associates were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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AREE T BBENFN2013F 12 A
31BZFIBWT ¢

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group Principal
REEEN activities
BEREEZAE D TEEK
13 Beverages
processing
RN
13 Beverages
processing
EREHINT
16.3 Procurement of

raw materials

for Coca-Cola

bottlers in

Mainland China
TEREAREA

A] O AT 4455 R

REE A

13.7 Investment

holding
REER

ERINHEFTERREIEFEAEH
AEEREAVKASEEEFEZ
RER 2 AEEBERF - EEER
o BB ERRZHBRES
BARBELR -

EFERA ARRFRARZERS
FREAEEZRE  2EBRFIER
12 ANEEEmeEmE El A RTT6E
BEAFE Bt BREREFEAKE

ZBEAT -

IA_EFrB RS R R R AR B R
ﬁ o

P LB & ARSI B B LKE
FHEM SR TS P el 2k 2 ERAB AR By EL A AX
BRAETEERZ °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZEHE D 2EMIEA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial Bé\iﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ FHE M T ANKRE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BT
follows:

2013
2013 rEE
Financial assets Financial
SHEE assets at fair
Available- value through
for-sale profit or loss
financial Loans and  held for trading
assets receivables BAYE
AEHEZ BRR JABR2EE Total
SREE EWmE HESREE ‘st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Due from associates BE DRI = 21,753 = 21,753
Due from fellow subsidiaries FZMBARRRK = 704,968 = 704,968
Due from the ultimate holding &AL AR)
company R = 38,363 = 38,363
Due from the immediate holding B RER A
company KRR = 169 = 169
Due from non-controlling WA RIZEER
shareholders of subsidiaries BRRR - 26,820 - 26,820
Equity investments at fair value ~ RATEFIAEE
through profit or loss LEREE = = 13,872 13,872
Available-for-sale investments A/t ERE 214,129 - - 214,129
Accounts and bills receivables ~ EUIRT N iz - 1,694,757 - 1,694,757
Financial assets included in STAENGIE - &
prepayments, deposits and rER N TN
other receivables JERBEE - 1,015,809 = 1,015,809
Restricted bank balances XRFIFITEES = 165 = 165
Pledged deposits BIRRES = 133,655 = 133,655
Cash and cash equivalents RehReSEER = 2,458,011 = 2,458,011

214,129 6,094,470 g 6,322,471
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2013412 A31H

39. ZERIE Sz ERMT A (B)

2013 Group

2013 REE

Financial liabilities Financial

tEAas liabilities at

amortised

(o013

RS A FIE

ZEmMeE

HK$’000

FBx

Due to associates NN E R 248,369

Due to fellow subsidiaries PNGES N PNGIE S 2,343,573

Due to the ultimate holding company R EBEAERR A BISRIE 67,027

Due to related companies REAE N EIGRIA 799,229
Due to non-controlling shareholders of VGIENGIE ST E S

subsidiaries RIE 84,833

Accounts and bills payables ENEREER 1,191,702

Financial liabilities included in ST AE A FE S RIE K

other payables and accruals EEtRBEZERAE 2,001,653

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRIRITERREMER 4,137,555

10,873,941

2 2 2 | CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REHE s 2EMIT A (&)
(continued)

2012 Group
20124 KEE
Financial assets Financial
TREE assets at fair
Available- value through
for-sale profit or loss
financial Loansand  held for trading
assets receivables BAYE
AfHE 2 EFRE HIANBRZIHE Total
SREE IR EBECBEE mmEt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET FEL
Due from associates B N AR - 4411 - 4411
Due from fellow subsidiaries ~ FIRMTBRFIRHK - 588,635 - 588,635
Due from the ultimate holding ~ BAEAR A7
company R - 78,961 - 78,961
Due from the immediate holding B &R A A
company R - 165 - 165
Due from non-controlling B A RIFEIERR
shareholders of subsidiaries ~ BUGRA - 19,687 - 19,687
Equity investments at fair value RAFEFIAER
through profit or loss 2R E - - 18,746 18,746
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 203,103 - - 203,103
Accounts and bills receivables YR LR 1% - 2,516,325 - 2,516,325

Financial assets included in st ATERIEIE » &
prepayments, deposits and K EH b R IR

other receivables ZEMEE - 927,926 - 927,926
Restricted bank balances ZRIBITER - 22,199 - 22,199
Pledged deposits BEHEIFFR - 136,921 - 136,921
Cash and cash equivalents Be A EEFEER - 1,901,294 - 1,901,294

203,103 6,196,524 18,746 6,418,373
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REHE 2RI A (&)
(continued)

2012 Group

20124 rEE

Financial liabilities Financial

TRIBE liabilities at

amortised

cost

REESEPNANFE 2

CRMEE

HK$'000

F#T

Due to associates NN E R 256,618

Due to fellow subsidiaries PNGES N PNGIE S 2,093,245

Due to the ultimate holding company REBEAERR A BISRIA 58,211

Due to related companies R AR RIFUE 769,944
Due to non-controlling shareholders of VGIENGIE S E S

subsidiaries RIE 65,403

Accounts and bills payables JENEREER 1,791,806

Financial liabilities included in FTAE At FE S RIE K

other payables and accruals EEtRBEZERAE 2,109,769

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHFESRITEREEMER 3,100,720

10,245,716
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REHE s 2EMIT A (&)
(continued)

2013 Company
2013 % AT
Financial assets Financial
TREE assets at fair
value through
Loans and profit or loss
receivables BEATLETIA Total
EXREWTE BREzeREE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THET FTEx
Due from subsidiaries NIV 5,992,454 = 5,992,454
Due from the immediate BHRIEZERAR
holding company R 165 = 165
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKIRECEEEE 42,654 = 42,654
Equity investments at BAEE
fair value through HIAIEE=
profit or loss ZEEIRE = 8,932 8,932
6,035,273 8,932 6,044,205

2013 Company
2013 % VNN
Financial liabilities Financial
==L liabilities at
amortised

cost

RESHRASIEZ

TRIBE

HK$’000

FER

Due to subsidiaries RSB A RIFIE 389,690
Financial liabilities included in FTAE A ES FRTE &
other payables and accruals EEtaECERAE 2,532

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITER 2,382,000

2,774,222
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REHE 2RI A (&)
(continued)

2012 Company
20124 ZIN/NC]
Financial assets Financial
TRVEE assets at fair
value through
Loans and profit or loss
receivables BATETIA Total
SERREYGIE BucomEE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHT
Due from subsidiaries NIV 4,639,273 - 4,639,273
Due from the immediate HEERAT
holding company RER 165 - 165
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%EAR 25,665 - 25,665
Equity investments at BAFEE
fair value through HIAIEE=
profit or loss ZHERIEE - 13,696 13,696
4,665,103 13,696 4,678,799

2012 Company
20124 PiN/NG)|
Financial liabilities Financial
TRIBE liabilities at

amortised

cost

IR SE A SIE 2
THBE
HK$'000

FAT

Due to subsidiaries YNGR R 369,511
Financial liabilities included in FTAEAM B RIE R

other payables and accruals EEtaE s ERAE 90,303
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITER 1,219,000

1,678,814
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. TR T A AFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, other than the available-
for-sale investments, of which the range of reasonable fair

value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company'’s financial
instruments approximated to their fair values largely due to
the short term maturities or long term maturities with floating
interest rates of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

=

RBERR RARLERERGIEN
AFEGBHEERN EFRA/EAF
BETEASER BN AEERARR]E
MTAZEMEREAFERE 2
A 7% 5 T A S AR EE =X 2 HHAR
BEERFEHFRTE -

TREENBBZAFERZTAR
BRZ 57 (MIFREIERHEE) &
RIS N ZAIRZ SN

other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TEREVAEEeMIT AR AFER

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EER :
Assets measured at fair value: BATVENEZEE
Group rEH

Fair value measurement using
BATHRH B2 AFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

s FEA FERT
hHRE B2y BE2E Total
(E2—l)) (=) =) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET BT BT BT

As at 31 December 2013 72013 &
12A31H

Equity investments at BAFERTA
fair value through bi=Enyed
profit or loss S E 13,872 = = 13,872

As at 31 December 2012 201245
12A31H

Equity investments at BAFERTA
fair value through i=Enged
profit or loss EEmINE 18,746 - - 18,746

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2 2 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. R T A2 AFERAFE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =E (Z‘E)

Company ¥ N

Fair value measurement using
BUATHERFEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
s FEA FERT
TS RE B2y B2y Total
(%6—/8) (8=/E) (%5=/8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT THT FH&TT

As at 31 December 2013 72013 &

12A31H
Equity investments at BAFERTA
fair value through Bm
profit or loss S E 8,932 = = 8,932
As at 31 December 2012 201245
12A31H
Equity investments at BAFERTA
fair value through i=Enyed
profit or loss A 13,696 - - 13,696
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR WEFNBE —EREFE_E
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BATFEFTECENESE  RWES
into or out of Level 3 (2012: Nil). “ERMBAREDL (2012F : &) -
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TERRERAT =K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. B REREEBERBER

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and bank
balances and time deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on minimising potential adverse effects of these risks,
with material impact, on the Group’s financial performance.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term and short term
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.
The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the long
term and short term interest-bearing bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

AEEZFESRTI AEBET SR
ERREMER - URBRE RIBITE
BERERFR - ZFEMTATER
MIRARBZEBERES - A%
BEEETHMEREERARE  F
IMREMRAR R EMER (EEEEE
BmEL) -

AREEzERMTAMELE > TER
RRMERRE  SNERR - FERR
ERBELER ASEBRERARE
BHEETREBERIZFAR (B
AEEZHBERABREATE) 2
BETNEE BEESERLREE
BRERRZBOR - BURan T o

AR E

AREBAZOMISHNREB) 2 FEkRE
BERAEEZEIPNERFARZES
FIEHE BRITEE - ARBZRH
RIEHGF BRITEEZERNERE
AR IR R EE 28 R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%%9%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT . ERRERAERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)

M=Eb (&)

TRETEMAREMAZ2ERGRE
TEZBERTAEEBRBAESN,
(B18) CEBZRRBEZFE) X

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the

impact on floating rate borrowings):

ARt RIEEB  BREE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit/(loss)
basis before tax
points Al
B2 LA BR (EE)
(%) #gi, CR)
HK$'000
FETT
2013 2013 F
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 25,943
United States dollar = 100 3,253
Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) (25,943)
United States dollar = (100) (3,253)
2012 20124
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (17,692)
United States dollar =Y 100 (3,712)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 17,692
United States dollar =Y (100) 3,712
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. ﬂjﬁ@@%fiﬁ ERBUER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)
Foreign currency risk ShE R B
The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and Hong KEBEIERPRERERESEE -
Kong with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and MAEBEcBREODEKEE BFE
transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RRGAEEUET - ARBRET
Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group has not used FHE - AEEWEFNAERITEE®
any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk. SRS EL AT ¥ < AN B g o
The following table indicates the approximate change in the TRIR EEMEBEETENENR
Group’s profit before tax in response to reasonably possible T - ARG E 2 B A I BE FE 2 ] g8
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has EEEFH (AEER LA REHARE
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period with all FeE RER) 2BIAZE)E -

other variables held constant:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/US$ in profit/(loss)
rate before tax
e AT
B HF (EBER)
EH#(THE) i (B2
% HK$'000
BT
2013 2013 F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — &/BTHEARE
against Renminbi e 5 39,781
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens & /87TH AR
against Renminbi THE (5) (39,781)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens & /B 7LHETT
against the United States dollar B2 E 5 14,712
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens & /& 7L i.ETT
against the United States dollar FE (5) (14,712)

20124

2012

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens &8 AR

against Renminbi B2{E 5 (45,450)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens & /87T AR

against Renminbi FE (5) 45,450
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens & /B 7LHETT

against the United States dollar B8 5 (10,527)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens & /& 7L TT

against the United States dollar FE (5) 10,527
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0055 %:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. K EMRERE B ERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (4&)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S B ()
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table EREV 2 AMERBASE 2L
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group BESECASBZERB HANET
entities’ profit before tax measured in the respective functional It E2RE BN W28
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange LWMEIRERRE BB o
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.
Credit risk EE R
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. AEEZZERRIYNEF - ERER
The carrying amount of the accounts receivable represents FZEmMEDASEERSEHEE SR
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its BEZHANEERR - RNEBECDHIE
financial assets. The Group has policies in place to ensure that WX MRAAEZEFERL LT
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. FPEE-
Liquidity risk REE SR
The Group’s policies are to maintain sufficient cash and cash REBHERDBZREN RS RE
equivalents and to have available funding through bank and SEEER  UWEBRTREMEE
other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements. MEAHEESUENEEEESHES -
The contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Group AEBseMBECENIHABIE
including interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts STERITERREMER - RERH
due to fellow subsidiaries, an amount due to the ultimate BRARIFUE - REKERARIFIA
holding company, an amount due to the immediate holding REZRZERRARIFIA - REEQFK
company, amounts due to related companies, amounts due I8 - RIFEB AR FEIZERARRFRIE - A
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amounts MREENRIRIE  ERMBFHRE
due to associates have been disclosed in notes 28, 36, and 20 MieE28 ~ 36 M20 W #i 58 - =R EL
to the financial statements. For accounts and bills payables, EREER —REEHAREAR
they are generally on credit terms of one to three months —Z=( Ak REEE AR
after the invoice date or the date of the six months after the NAE A o B CE fh FE T R K g A
bills were issued. For the financial liabilities amounting to B 18 A 2,001,653,0005 JT (2012
HK$2,001,653,000 (2012: HK$2,109,769,000) included in #F :2,109,769,000F L) 2 A E
other payables and accruals disclosed in the consolidated EREEUBRARAREE - —K~8
statement of financial position, there are generally no specified EREAMNEEHE - WikTEBEER
contractual maturities, and they are paid on a regular basis or REF B EXBARK -

upon the counterparty’s formal notification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

. IBEREERERBE

(&)
RBESRR (&)

RBEHR  AEEERS KRR
MRz eRBEIHERDT

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group rEE
2013
2013 F
Less than lto5
On demand 1 year years Total
RiEA 1ER 1E5% a5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FRET FHET FHT
Due to associates U A=UNCIE ] 248,369 = = 248,369
Due to fellow VNGES
subsidiaries NGIESE 2,343,573 - - 2,343,573
Due to the ultimate holding REIRER
company RAIFIA 67,027 = = 67,027
Due to related companies REBENRIFIA 799,229 = = 799,229
Due to non-controlling RIEAR
shareholders of FEFERR
subsidiaries B IE 56,292 = 28,541 84,833
Accounts and bills payables ~ FEfTERF R EiE 114,757 1,076,945 = 1,191,702
Financial liabilities FH AE A e
included in AR ERT
other payables B&E
and accruals TRIBE - 2,001,653 = 2,001,653
Interest-bearing bank and FHESRITER
other borrowings REAMER 582,000 1,975,954 1,643,410 4,201,364
4,211,247 5,054,552 1,671,951 10,937,750
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT KRR EEEERBEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#8)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESERR (&)
Group (continued) AEE ()
2012
20124
Less than 1to5b
On demand 1 year years Total
gl 1FER 1E5%F =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FAT
Due to associates REE N R)FRIE 256,618 - - 256,618
Due to fellow NGES
subsidiaries ARIFA 2,093,245 - - 2,093,245
Due to the ultimate holding REIRER
companies INSE Q] 58,211 - - 58,211
Due to related companies REE A R)FIA 769,944 - - 769,944
Due to non-controlling N IErNG
shareholders of FEIERR
subsidiaries iR A 37,728 - 27,675 65,403
Accounts and bills payables  ERERFREE 77,706 1,714,100 - 1,791,806
Financial liabilities st AE At e
included in other payables AR e
and accruals BEZERARE - 2,109,769 - 2,109,769
Interest-bearing bank and FHRRITER
other borrowings REMER 519,000 1,561,230 1,125,571 3,205,801
3,812,452 5,385,099 1,153,246 10,350,797
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31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

. IBEREERERBE

(&)

REBESEE ()

RBERR  ARRERELHARITE
MRz eRBEIHERDT

Company ¥ N
2013
2013 F
Less than lto5

On demand 1 year years Total

REH 1R 1&E5% &5t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TET TERT FTET

Due to subsidiaries G ENGIE S 389,690 = = 389,690
Financial liabilities included s AE AR
in other payables EREFAE

and accruals Zeman = 2,532 = 2,532

Interest-bearing bank borrowings &1 S HRITER 582,000 402,485 1,440,797 2,425,282

971,690 405,017 1,440,797 2,817,504

On demand

B A

HK$'000

FHET
Due 1o fellow UNEES=

subsidiaries RAEFRIE 369,511
Financial liabilities FTAEME
included in [EER
other payables fEEtEE

and accruals Zemar -

Interest-bearing bank borrowings &T S HRITER 519,000

2012
20124
Less than 1tob
1 year years
1FR 1&E5%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT

90,303

718,642

Total
At
HK$'000
FAT

369,511

90,303
1,237,642

888,511

718,642

1,697,456
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
095%%:%00%

31 December 2013 2013412 A31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41, HHAREEEBREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for capital management
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

(&

EXxEE

AEBEEREANEZARZRER
SENBELER N RBEFBRNE
AEE  UXEEEHEREEAL
PREREE -

AEESRREREEREZILERRLE
ALRBUHEAEHRE - BAERNH
REARE AEERGRABINT
PRREBR B - REBATRIRE
BATH KRG - BLE 2013412 A31H
K2012F 12 A31BILFEN - BH#
EAEEMER  BREBREVEMT
a8

Group rEE

2013 2012
2013 5 2012 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT

Interest-bearing bank and FTERITER K
other borrowings EAMER 4,137,555 3,100,720
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & - Re KBS HEIER (2,458,011) (1,901,294)
Net borrowing position FEEMR 1,679,544 1,199,426

Net assets attributable to SRAREREA
owners of the parent EIEFEE 6,145,975 6,805,135
Net gearing ratio SFEB LR 27.3% 17.6%
42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 42. BIREERER 2 HE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board on 25 March 2014.
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Fl\iE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
b FLIT5 10

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- REEBEAREMREFELFEREE - 8
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, BHEIFERESMZEDREEE B KT
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial ZERE B mE - WKHEEER  BERND
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below: HNRTX :

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=A=t-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2013 F 20124F 20114 20104 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THIT FHT THET THET

REVENUE LON 26,218,351 30,878,390 28,010,761 19,955,984 16,823,475

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM  #Z&i&7/

OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&%) (405,512) 786,944 1,179,708 862,435 943,190
Finance costs MERAK (103,103) (70,241) (37,043) (45,425) (53,927)
Share of profits of AN

associates ol 113,916 67,319 65,437 64,038 60,438
PROFIT/(LOSS) BRBLATRR],

BEFORE TAX (E8]) (394,699) 784,022 1,208,102 881,048 949,701
Income tax expense FiSiAx (311,798) (191,864) (340,811) (260,326) (229,396)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR EERR

THE YEAR (E8) (706,497) 592,158 867,291 620,722 720,305
Attributable to: T

Owners of the parent [SYNGIEZY=PN (889,634) 381,931 645,609 427567 568,081

Non-controlling interests ~ 3EHERRIES 183,137 210,227 221,682 193,155 152,224

(706,497) 592,158 867,291 620,722 720,305

ASSETS, LIABILITIES EE - BEH
AND NON- FERER
CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS 20,973,517 20,212,181 18,329,983 14,974,970 12,495,840

TOTAL LIABILITIES (12,775,292)  (11,514,195) (9,816,186) (7,425,560) (5,610,701)

NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS s (2,052,250) (1,892,851) (1,844,174) (1,602,516) (1,402,240)

6,145,975 6,805,135 6,669,623 5,946,894 5,482,899

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 23 7
TERRARAR —E-=FK



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NN

DIRECTORS

Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director

Mr. Yu Xubo

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Managing Director)

Ms. Wu Wenting (Deputy General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Lu Xiaohui (Assistant General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ning Gaoning
Mr. Chi Jingtao
Ms. Liu Ding

Mr. Ma Jianping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
(Committee Chairman)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

Mr. Yu Xubo

Mr. Chi Jingtao

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Xubo (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Committee Chairman)
Ms. Wu Wenting
Mr. Lu Xiaohui
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73772 4% A4 (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark)
BIRFN S A (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells)
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M1 %4 (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark)
(ZEEEE)

BIRFNSE A (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells)
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YT 1= S A (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark)
BRI A (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda

SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE

33/F, Top Glory Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION AR &%

NEWE
BRER L

eS:]

Conyers, Dill & Pearman

BB ED
R BE

FEAERBRIT

TEEERITENERARETEDTT
RERITAD AR AR
REIRTT (FE) ERAR
RBIRITRINBRAE]
PERITRNARAE
PEERRITRMD AR AR
R ERRTT

EREB1T (FE) GRAA
BAERITARAA

PR TERRITRNARAR
IR B RIRTT
EFRTARABEENTT
=ERRURRITEEDT
BB LBESRTARAR

AR SR

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

2B

&%

SRR
ETITE 26257
BEFIp 0331

BEROBFETTE

SEREEARAA
e

ERABR 1835
B0 2218

NCIE N

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
89752051

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS EEXEENM

Tuesday, 25 March 2014 201443 A25H (28 2)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS ZERMBFERT

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the REERREFERRAFTFAGINE L&
Annual General Meeting: Friday, 30 May 2014 to Tuesday, 3 June EZEMER:2014F58308 (E8H) =

2014 (both days inclusive) 20146 A3R (EH) (BEMRBEE
")

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRBAFRSE

Tuesday, 3 June 2014 2014F6 A3H (EH2)

DIVIDENDS BB

Interim dividend: NIL FHARE &

Final dividend: NIL REARR S : 4
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33rd Floor, Top Glory Tower,
262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

&6 T RE S 178 262 5t
HERIR L 33 18

Tel E:E(852)2833 0388
Fax & (852) 2833 0380

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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